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To:  Oneida County Industrial Development Agency Board of Directors 
From:   Shawna M. Papale 
Date:   March 22, 2023 
RE:   OCIDA Meeting Agenda 
 
The Oneida County Industrial Development Agency shall meet – 8:00 AM Tuesday, March 28, 2023. 

Members of the public may listen to the Agency meeting by calling +1-408-418-9388, Access code: 2632 051 
6980 or join via Webex at this link: 
https://mvedge.webex.com/mvedge/j.php?MTID=mca2a306d03c749168518b96959e7f633. Members of the public 
may also attend in person at MV EDGE offices at 584 Phoenix Drive, Rome, NY 13441 or 3211 Oriole Drive, 
Sarasota, FL 34243. The Minutes of the Agency meeting will transcribed and posted on the OCIDA website. 

1. Executive Session 
2. Open Meetings Law 
3. Minutes – 12/8/22, 2/10/23 
4. Financials 

a) Interim Financials 
b) 2022 Audit  

5. Consider a SEQR resolution relating to the Kris-Tech Wire Company, Inc. 2023 Expansion Project. The 
City of Rome Planning Board acted as lead agency and the Agency wishes to adopt the determinations 
and findings of the lead agency. 

 
6. Consider a final authorizing resolution relating to the Kris-Tech Wire Company, Inc. 2023 Expansion 

Project, authorizing financial assistance (consistent with the Agency’s Uniform Tax Exemption Policy) in 
the form of exemptions from sales tax (not to exceed $437,500), exemptions from mortgage recording tax 
(not to exceed $63,750) and reduction of real property tax on the increased assessment resulting from the 
Project for a period of 10 years (estimated at $1,437,672), and authorizing the form and execution of 
related documents, subject to counsel review. The Agency conducted a public hearing on March 13, 2022. 

 
7. Consider an amended resolution relating to the Alder Creek Beverages, LLC facility. The Agency adopted 

a resolution on February 13, 2023 relating to the consent to change of control and wishes to consider an 
amendment. 
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8. Consider an inducement resolution relating to the GLDC 2023 Master Lease and PILOT Extension, 

granting preliminary approval for financial assistance (that is a deviation from the Agency’s Uniform Tax 
Exemption Policy) in the form of extending the full exemption from real property taxes for a period of ten 
years (valued at approximately $6,781,293.00) and authorizing the Agency to conduct a public hearing. 

 
9. Consider an inducement resolution relating to the Mohawk Adirondack & Northern Railroad 

Inc./Genesee & Mohawk Valley Railroad, Inc. 2023 Lease and PILOT Extension, granting preliminary 
approval for financial assistance (that is a deviation from the Agency’s Uniform Tax Exemption Policy) in 
the form of extending the full exemption from real property taxes for a period of ten years (valued at 
approximately $1,000,000.00) and authorizing the Agency to conduct a public hearing. 

 
10. Consider an inducement resolution relating to the Collins Solar, LLC (Barneveld Community Solar) 

Facility, granting preliminary approval for financial assistance in the form of reduction of real property 
taxes for a period of 25 years during which time the Company will pay PILOT Payments equal to $10,000 
per MW-AC (valued at approximately $1,628,296.00), which is consistent with the Agency’s Uniform Tax 
Exemption Policy and authorizing the Agency to conduct a public hearing. 

 
11. Consider a SEQR resolution relating to the Collins Solar, LLC (Barneveld Community Solar) Facility. 

The Town of Trenton Planning Board acted as lead agency and the Agency wishes to adopt the 
determinations and findings of the lead agency as a “Type 1” action. 

 
12. Consider a resolution relating to the Horsht, LLC Facility, authorizing an increase in the value of sales tax 

exemptions (not to exceed $186,479) and an extension of time of the agency appointment to September 
30, 2023 and approving the form and execution of related documents. 

 
13. Consider a resolution relating to the Griffiss Local Development Corporation/Building 302 Facility, 

consenting to a one-month extension of an existing license agreement and authorizing the form and 
execution of related documents, subject to counsel review. 

 
14. Consider a resolution relating to the Research Associates of Syracuse, Inc. Facility, extending the 

period of time for the landlord to identify a replacement tenant to June 30, 2023 and authorizing the 
execution of related documents, subject to counsel review. 

 
15. Ratify the execution and delivery of a mortgage modification document relating to the Sovena USA 

facility. The Agency was asked to join in a mortgage modification to amend certain business terms of a 
mortgage to which the Agency is a party. Such action was authorized by the resolution adopted by the 
Agency on December 15, 2015 and this ratification is to note the action on the record. 

 
16. Request to apply to Empire State Development (ESD) for FAST NY on behalf of Mohawk Valley EDGE for 

the Marcy Nanocenter site 
 

17. PAAA Submissions 

mailto:info@mvedge.org
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18. New Business 
 

19. Old Business 
 
20. Current Projects 
 
 
Next meeting date – FRIDAY, MAY 5 at 8 AM at 584 Phoenix Drive, Rome, NY  

mailto:info@mvedge.org
http://www.mvedge.org/


Procedures for Member Videoconferencing Pursuant to    
Public Officers Law § 103-a 

 
In compliance with Public Officers Law (POL) §103-a(2)(a), the Oneida County Industrial 
Development Agency (“OCIDA”) following a public hearing, authorized by resolution on 
___________ the use of videoconferencing as described in POL §103-a. 

 
The following procedures are hereby established to satisfy the requirement of POL §103-a(2)(b) 
that any public body which in its discretion wishes to permit its members to participate in 
meetings by videoconferencing from private locations - under extraordinary circumstances - 
must establish procedures governing member and public attendance. 

 
1. OCIDA members shall be physically present at any meeting of the OCIDA unless 

such member is unable to be physically present at one of the designated public 
meeting locations due to extraordinary circumstances. 

 
2. For purposes of these procedures, the term “extraordinary circumstances” includes 

disability, illness, caregiving responsibilities, pre-planned out of state travel, or any other 
significant or unexpected factor or event which precludes the member’s physical 
attendance. 
 

3. Regardless of any extraordinary circumstances, each Board Member of the OCIDA 
must be physically present at the designated public meeting location in Rome, New 
York for no less than Seventy Percent (70%) of the meetings of the OCIDA within 
any given calendar year.  

 
4. If a member is unable to be physically present at the designated public meeting 

location and wishes to participate by videoconferencing from a private location due to 
extraordinary circumstances, the member must notify Executive Director, Shawna 
Papale, no later than four business days prior to the scheduled meeting in order for 
proper notice to the public to be given. If extraordinary circumstances present 
themselves on emergent basis within four days of meeting, the OCIDA shall update 
its notice as soon as practicable to include that information. If it is not practicable for 
the OCIDA to update its notices, the OCIDA’s Board of Directors shall note the 
unexpected absence, reason for the delay or inability to notify the public of such 
absence, and the extraordinary circumstances leading to such absence in the minutes 
of the OCIDA for said meeting to put the public on notice.  

 
5. If there is a quorum of members participating at a physical location(s) open to the public, 

the OCIDA may properly convene a meeting. A member who is participating from a 
remote location that is not open to in-person physical attendance by the public shall not 
count toward a quorum of the OCIDA, but may participate and vote if there is a quorum 
of members at a physical location open to the public in Rome, New York 

 
6. If a quorum is physically present in person at the Rome meeting location at the start of 

any such meeting, and a physically present Board Member has to leave the meeting 
before the conclusion of such meeting, the Board of Directors, before the departing 



Board Member leaves the meeting, may choose to pass a resolution agreeing to allow 
such meeting to continue. Such resolution may also authorize all remaining Board 
Members, whether in attendance physically or virtually, to continue to vote on any such 
remaining matters to the conclusion of any such meeting.  

 
7. Except in the case of executive session conducted pursuant to POL §105, the OCIDA 

shall ensure that it members can be heard, seen for all proposals, resolutions, and any 
other conduct, including but not limited to any motions, proposals, resolutions, and any 
other matter formally discussed or voted upon. This shall include the use of first and last 
name place cards physically placed in front of the members, or member's participation 
by videoconferencing from a private location due to extraordinary circumstances, such 
members must ensure that their full first and last name appears on the 
videoconferencing screen. 
 

8. The minutes of the meeting involving videoconferencing based on extraordinary 
circumstances pursuant to POL §103-a shall include which, if any members 
participated by video conferencing from a private location due to such extraordinary 
circumstances, and which members had to leave any meeting prior to its conclusion 
due to any extraordinary circumstances. 
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Minutes of the Meeting of the  
Oneida County Industrial Development Agency 

December 8, 2022 
584 Phoenix Drive, Rome, NY/Webex Video/Teleconference 

Members Present: David Grow, Michael Fitzgerald, Steve Zogby, Kirk Hinman, Gene Quadraro, Mary Faith Messenger. 

Members Present: WebEx: Ferris Betrus.  

EDGE Staff Present: Shawna Papale, Bill Van Shufflin, Tim Fitzgerald, Steve DiMeo, Laura Cohen. 

EDGE Staff Present: WebEx: Maureen Carney. 

Other Attendees:  Rome Mayor Jackie Izzo 
Other Attendees:  WebEx: Paul Goldman, Goldman Attorneys PLLC; Linda Romano & Laura Ruberto, Bond, Schoeneck & 
King; Karen Hawkins, Fogel & Brown, P.C.; Genevieve Trigg & Paige Beyer, Barclay-Damon; Alexis Manore, Sentinel 
Media Co. 
 
Chair Grow called the meeting to order at 3:16 PM.  
 

 
Minutes 
The November 18, 2022 meeting minutes were reviewed. A motion to approve the November 18, 2022 minutes, as 
corrected, was moved by M. Fitzgerald and seconded by M.F. Messenger. The motion carried 7-0. 
 
Interim Financials 
M. Carney presented the 11/30/2022 interim financial statement. Cash is up around $177,000 over the past twelve 
months. Regarding restricted cash, all Hampton Inn PILOT payments have been received, and checks will be 
distributed to the taxing jurisdictions imminently. The fourth quarter Wolfspeed PILOT payment shows up as an 
account receivable, but so that it does not overstate the Agency’s assets, there is a contra-account booked against it. 
D. Grow asked if the effected taxing jurisdictions for The Hartford PILOT Increment Financing agreement (PIF) have 
verified this year’s debt service payment to the Agency. L. Ruberto explained that the Agency has prepared letters to 
the Town of New Hartford concerning both the Hampton in PIF agreement and The Hartford PIF agreement. The 
Hampton Inn PILOT is terminating at the end of December 2022; counsel has determined that the company has 
fulfilled all of its PILOT agreement obligations, and the Agency is asking the Town to certify that its debt service has 
been completed. But the answer from the Town does not impact the company’s PILOT agreement obligations. It is 
necessary that the company fulfill all of its obligations so that it can terminate its agreement with the Agency early, in 
order to facilitate its sale. The Hartford PILOT agreement terminates after 2023. M. Carney further shared that Lithia 
Motors has not made its 2022 lease payment to the Agency, and that the Agency closed on the Horsht, LLC project, 
which brings annual admin fees for 2022 to approximately $280,000. There are still some outstanding projects that 
may close in 2022. Regarding the Sovena PILOT, the school tax bill was just received, which will be sent to Sovena 
immediately. Sovena will have 30 days to pay it. She is hopeful the Agency will receive it by the end of 2022. M. 
Fitzgerald stated that the Agency needs to start looking at putting some of its cash into a certificate of deposit. M. 
Carney stated that she has already begun looking at rates across area banks. There being no questions or comments, 
the Agency received and accepted the interim financials presented, subject to audit. 
 
EDGE Project Related Debt (Wolfspeed Facility) 
Chair Grow introduced a resolution approving the modification of EDGE Project Related Debt (Wolfspeed Facility) and 
authorizing the form and execution of related documents, subject to counsel review. This has to do with finalizing the 
permanency of the debt previously authorized by the Agency for Marcy Nanocenter infrastructure improvements. S. 
Zogby motioned, and F. Betrus seconded, to approve the modification of EDGE Project Related Debt (Wolfspeed 
Facility) and authorizing the form and execution of related documents, subject to counsel review.. The motion 
carried 7-0. 
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LT Group, LLC (Hampton Inn) Facility - Early Termination 
Chair Grow introduced a resolution authorizing the early termination of the LT Group, LLC (Hampton Inn) facility. The 
lease term expires December 31, 2022 and the Company submitted a certification that its obligations under the 
Leaseback Agreement have been satisfied. M. Fitzgerald motioned, and M.F. Messenger seconded, to authorize the 
early termination of the LT Group, LLC (Hampton Inn) facility. The motion carried 7-0. 
 
Central Utica Building, LLC Facility – Amended Application for Financial Assistance 
Chair Grow introduced a supplemental resolution relating to the Central Utica Building, LLC Facility, accepting an 
amendment to the Application for Financial Assistance and authorizing an increase in the value of mortgage recording 
tax exemption (from $128,138 to $191,250, a difference of $63,112). A public hearing is not required since the 
proposed increase in assistance is less than $100,000. M. Fitzgerald motioned, and D. Grow seconded, to authorize 
an increase in the value of mortgage recording tax exemption (from $128,138 to $191,250, a difference of $63,112) 
to the Central Utica Building, LLC Facility. The motion carried 7-0. 
 
2023 EDGE-OCIDA Staff Service Contract 
S. Papale presented for consideration the proposed 2023 EDGE-OCIDA Staff Service Contract. The contract amount is 
$176,400 and the scope of service remains the same. D. Grow suggested modifying future EDGE- OCIDA Staff Service 
Contracts with a clause to make them automatically renewable annually, with amendments that adjust dates of 
service and fee amounts, and giving either party the ability to opt out of the contract renewal within 90 days of the 
renewal. The members of the Corporation were in consensus to implement this modification. A motion to approve the 
proposed 2023 EDGE-OCIDA Staff Service Contract.  Included in the motion was a modification to make future EDGE-
OCIDA Staff Service Contracts renewable annually, with amendments that adjust dates of service and fee amounts 
and giving either party the ability to opt out of the contract with 90 days’ notice of the renewal was moved by F. 
Betrus and seconded by M.F. Messenger. The motion carried 7-0. 

 
2023 EDGE-OCIDA Supplemental Staff Service Contract 
S. Papale presented for consideration the proposed 2023 EDGE-OCIDA Supplemental Staff Service Contract. The 
contract amount is $176,400 and the scope of service remains the same. Chair Grow reminded the members that this 
contract is specific to retaining human resources for large development initiatives occurring in Oneida County. D. Grow 
suggested modifying future EDGE- OCIDA Staff Service Contracts with a clause to make them automatically renewable 
annually, with amendments that adjust dates of service and fee amounts, and giving either party the ability to opt out 
of the contract renewal within 90 days of the renewal. The members of the Corporation were in consensus to 
implement this modification. A motion to approve the proposed 2023 EDGE-OCIDA Supplemental Staff Service 
Contract.  Included in the motion was a modification to make future EDGE-OCIDA Staff Service Contracts renewable 
annually, with amendments that adjust dates of service and fee amounts and giving either party the ability to opt 
out of the contract with 90 days’ notice of the renewal was moved by S. Zogby and seconded by K. Hinman. The 
motion carried 7-0. 
 
Old Business 
 
SG Oneida PV, LLC  
S. Papale presented to the Agency a request from SG Oneida PV, LLC to extend the deadline of its Inducement 
Agreement for a period of twelve months under the same terms and conditions as originally approved. She reminded 
Agency members that this project was induced last December, and that projects have 12 months to proceed with their 
project, from time of inducement. M. Fitzgerald stated that if this project is looking to start over, that it should be under 
the Agency’s new solar policy. G. Trigg explained the circumstances that have led to the delay in this project moving 
forward, including supply chain issues on solar panels, and difficulty in obtaining the required insurance. Chair Grow 
opined that while an official request has been made by the applicant, as is allowed under the inducement agreement, 
the Agency is under no obligation to grant that request. L. Romano confirmed that the Agency is not obligated to grant 
the extension. M. Fitzgerald made a motion to extend the inducement agreement for SG Oneida PV, LLC until March 
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31st but if the closing occurs after January 1st, 2023, the new benefit per megawatt would be $7,500 instead of the 
originally induced $5,500. This splits the difference between the rate under the old policy and the rate under the 
current policy. K. Hinman seconded the motion. The motion carried 7-0. 
 
Chair Grow stated that the SSC Kirkland project would be subject to a similar arrangement if it cannot meet the original 
inducement agreement deadline. 
 
There being no further business, at 3:55 PM Chair Grow asked for a motion to adjourn the meeting: M. Fitzgerald 
moved, and F. Betrus seconded the motion to adjourn. Motion carried 7-0. 
 
Chair Grow reopened the meeting at 4:10. 
 
At 4:10 PM a motion to enter executive session in order to discuss potential contracts was made by M. Fitzgerald, 
seconded by M.F. Messenger, and carried 7-0. 

At 5:15 PM a motion to exit executive session and return to the open meeting was moved by F. Betrus, seconded by E. 
Quadraro, and carried 7-0. 

 

There being no further business, at 5:15 PM Chair Grow asked for a motion to adjourn the meeting: M. Fitzgerald 
moved, and F. Betrus seconded the motion to adjourn. Motion carried 7-0. 
 

Respectfully Submitted,  
 
Tim Fitzgerald 
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Minutes of the Meeting of the  
Oneida County Industrial Development Agency 

February 10, 2022 
584 Phoenix Drive, Rome, NY/Webex Video/Teleconference 

Members Present: David Grow, Mary Faith Messenger, Steve Zogby, Kirk Hinman. 

Members Present: WebEx: Ferris Betrus, Mike Fitzgerald, Gene Quadraro.  

EDGE Staff Present: Tim Fitzgerald, Laura Cohen, Bill Van Shufflin. 

EDGE Staff Present: WebEx: Shawna Papale, M. Carney, Mark Kaucher 

Other Attendees:  Jenna Peppinelli, Levitt & Gordon; Rome Mayor Jackie Izzo. 

Other Attendees:  WebEx: Mark Levitt, Levitt & Gordon Paul Goldman, Goldman Attorneys PLLC; Linda Romano & Laura 
Ruberto, Bond, Schoeneck & King 

 
Chair Grow called the meeting to order at 8:00 AM.  
 

 
At 8:01 AM a motion to enter executive session in order to discuss litigation was made by S. Zogby, seconded by M.F. 
Messenger, and carried 7-0. 

At 8:55 AM a motion to exit executive session and return to the open meeting was moved by S. Zogby, seconded by K. 
Hinman, and carried 7-0. 

Minutes 
The members reviewed meeting minutes from the Agency meetings from December 8, 2022, January 3, 2023, and 
January 9, 2023. M. Fitzgerald pointed out the need to revise the third and fourth motions made during the December 8, 
2022 meeting. Staff stated they would review notes and recording and revise minutes to more accurately capture the 
motions made. These minutes will be reviewed again at the March 2023 meeting. M. Fitzgerald also pointed out that the 
meeting minutes from January 9, 2023 list an incorrect date at the top, and that the motion to authorize special counsel 
was made by D. Grow (not F. Betrus). A motion to approve the January 3, 2023 minutes, as presented, and the January 
9, 2023 minutes, as corrected, was moved by M. Fitzgerald and seconded by F. Betrus. The motion carried 7-0. 
 
Interim Financials 
M. Carney presented the 12/31/2022 interim financial statement. Cash is up around $98,000 over the past twelve 
months, and the fund balance is up 22% over that same period. During the 2022 year, the Agency received a total of 
$338,786 in application and admin fees PILOT holdings have been disbursed to the appropriate taxing jurisdictions for 
the Wolfspeed, Sovena, and Hartford projects. All 2022 rents were received. The Agency has received five $1,000 
commitment fees for projects that have not yet closed. She also shared that the Agency received a bill in the amount 
of $3,500 from the Madison-Oneida BOCES for the tuition agreement to support its carpentry trade program; this 
agreement was voted for in September 2022; the total amount of support from the IDA for the program is $7,500. 
Staff has decided to open two certificates of deposit – one with Berkshire Bank, the other with Adirondack Bank. A 
third CD, with KeyBank is also being considered. Finally, M. Carney stated that staff from Bonadio will be participating 
in an entrance conference following this meeting, after which the Agency’s audit can proceed. There being no 
questions or comments, the Agency received and accepted the interim financials presented, subject to audit. 
 
Alder Creek Beverages, LLC 
Chair Grow introduced a resolution relating to the Alder Creek Beverages, LLC Facility, consenting to a change of 
control of the Company and authorizing the form and execution of related documents, subject to counsel review. 
Chair Grow clarified that the change in control has formally taken place, but Agency consent is still needed. After 
reviewing the materials submitted by the Company, M. Fitzgerald suggested that consent be granted, conditioned 
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upon the Company creating an additional 20 FTEs by the end of 2024. M. Fitzgerald motioned, and S. Zogby 
seconded, to consent to a change of control of the Company conditioned upon the Company creating an additional 
20 FTEs by the end of 2024 and authorizing the form and execution of related documents, subject to counsel review. 
The motion carried 7-0. 
 
Kris-Tech Wire Co., Inc. 
Chair Grow introduced an inducement resolution relating to the Kris-Tech Wire Co., Inc. Facility (2023 Expansion 
Project), granting preliminary approval for financial assistance (consistent with the Agency’s Uniform Tax Exemption 
Policy) in the form of exemptions from sales tax (not to exceed $420,000), exemptions from mortgage recording tax 
(not to exceed $63,750) and reduction of real property tax on the increased assessment resulting from the Project for 
a period of 10 years (estimated at $1,437,672), subject to completion of a SEQR review, and authorizing the Agency to 
conduct a public hearing. Mr. Bob Pagano, representing Kris-Tech, introduced himself and the project, stating that this 
investment will double the size of the facility and consolidate operations. Mayor Izzo expressed her support for the 
project, and appreciated the company’s investment in Rome. K. Hinman asked about the implications on the 
company’s California warehouse. Mr. Pagano said the company will consider whether that facility would be necessary 
once this expansion is operational. F. Betrus motioned, and K. Hinman seconded, to approve the inducement 
resolution relating to the Kris-Tech Wire Co., Inc. Facility (2023 Expansion Project), granting preliminary approval for 
financial assistance (consistent with the Agency’s Uniform Tax Exemption Policy) in the form of exemptions from 
sales tax (not to exceed $420,000), exemptions from mortgage recording tax (not to exceed $63,750) and reduction 
of real property tax on the increased assessment resulting from the Project for a period of 10 years (estimated at 
$1,437,672), subject to completion of a SEQR review, and authorizing the Agency to conduct a public hearing. The 
motion carried 6-0, with M. Fitzgerald abstaining. 
 
M. Fitzgerald complimented the board summary for the Kris-Tech project, which was included in the meeting 
materials; Chari Grow concurred. The intent is to continue to use this summary for future projects. 
 
OCIDA Website Discussion 
Regarding the new Agency website, S. Papale stated that staff has selected the option from Quadsimia that gives the 
Agency the most functionality and best addresses the new requirements implemented the State’s Authorities Budget 
Office. The website will start to resemble a file storage system; it will require many documents to be scanned into the 
system, and it will also change how members receive meeting materials. She stated that the proposed cost of $8,000 
was not included in the Agency’s 2023 budget. She asked the members for consent to proceed with this expenditure, 
which will be a new budget expense. F. Betrus motioned, and M.F. Messenger seconded, to consent to proceed with 
ordering the buildout of the OCIDA’s new website. The motion carried 7-0.  
 
New Reporting Requirements for IDAs 
S. Papale reminded the members that the State legislature has passed new laws changing the requirements by which 
industrial development agencies must notify taxing jurisdictions of deviations from standard PILOTs, and notifying 
jurisdictions that PILOTs are expiring at least two years in advance. This will require additional attention and measures 
to ensure compliance, including requesting return-receipts on mailed notifications. Staff will work with counsel to 
identify the ways which will best ensure compliance. 
 
There being no further business, at 9:38 AM Chair Grow asked for a motion to adjourn the meeting: M.F. Messenger 
moved, and E. Quadraro seconded the motion to adjourn. Motion carried 7-0. 
 

Respectfully Submitted,  
 
Tim Fitzgerald 



Oneida County Industrial Development Agency 
Notes to the Financial Statements 
February 28, 2023 
 
Balance Sheet:  

1. Cash increased by $69K over the last 12 months 
2. The balance in restricted cash is made up of the PILOT holdings where checks were received 

but the payment to the jurisdiction has not been processed the dollars currently in the account 
are related the Sovena PILOT will be disbursed accordingly 

3. The balance in accounts receivable Wolfspeed PILOTs is the Q1 billing; the invoice is due to 
the Wolfspeed on February 15th of each year; Q1 payment is due no later than March 31 

4. Wolfspeed PILOT holdings is the offsetting account against the balance in the receivable; 
balances in these accounts will zero out once the payment is received from Wolfspeed and the 
Agency disburses the funds according to the PILOT 

5. The $1,000 commitment fees collected from the following for projects that have not closed as 
of February 2023: 

1. Source Renewables LLC (received April 2020- Project on Hold- commitment fee will 
be held and used to pay certain legal bills from BS&K related to the project) 

2. EDF Renewables (former partner in the Quiet Meadows projects) (received November 
2021) 

3. Central Utica Building (received November 2021) 
4. Solitude Solar, LLC (received February 2022) 
5. Kris-Tech Wire, Inc. (received January 2023) 

 
Budget Comparison Report (Income Statement): 
 

1. 2023 annual lease payments have been billed  
2. The following are the closings and application fees received from 1/1/23-2/28/23:  

 
3. Additional costs will be incurred due to the NYS website requirements implemented by the 

State’s Authorities Budget Office; the additional costs were presented to the board, reviewed 
and voted on in the February 10th meeting 
  

Other Significant Items to Note: 
 
1. The 1st quarter invoice to Wolfspeed was billed 2/15 and was received by the agency in March; 

the Agency distributed the funds according to the PILOT terms in March as well 
2. The IDA received all payments related to the Hartford PILOT for 2022 and payments to the 

jurisdictions were made in accordance with the PILOT agreement; a payment was received by 
Indium for the last year of the Hartford PILOT; the Agency will distribute the funds once all are 
billed by the jurisdictions and received by the Agency 

3. The payment from Sovena for the County tax bills was received and was paid in accordance with 
the PILOT agreement 

1/30/2023 Solar Power Capital (SSC Kirkland) Admin & Commitment Fee 41,580.40
2/7/2023 Kris-Tech Wire Application Fee 500.00

Total as of 2/28/23 41,580.40



Current Year Prior Year

918,485 848,946 1
143,141 205,320 2

PILOT Holdings- Payment Received (143,141) (205,320) 2

50,892 47,750 
Accounts Receivable- Wolfspeed PILOT 782,284 809,546 3
Wolfspeed PILOT Holdings (782,284) (809,546) 4

2,037 953 
971,415 897,650 

6,679 6,679 
(6,679) (6,679)

0 0 

971,415 897,650 

14,728 35,298 
8,250 1,217 
5,000 9,000 5

27,978 45,515 

27,978 45,515 

543,437 452,135 
400,000 400,000 
943,437 852,135 

971,415 897,650 

Accounts Payable 

Total Assets

Liabilities

Restricted Cash - PILOT Holdings

A/D-Furniture/Fixt/Eqpt 

Oneida County Industrial Development Agency

Balance Sheet

Accrued Expenses

Total Liabilities & Net Assets

Total Liabilities

Net Assets
Fund Balance
Fund Balance-Board Restricted

Total Net Assets

Total Current Liabilities
Deferred Revenue

Current Liabilities

February 28, 2023 and 2022

Fixed Assets

Assets

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Prepaid Expenses

Furniture/Fixture/Eqpt

Current Assets

Liabilities & Net Assets

Accounts Receivable

Total Current Assets

Total Fixed Assets



Current Period
Actual

Current Period
Budget

Year-to-Date
Actual

Year-to-Date
Budget 2/28/2022 2/28/2021

Reimbursements 0 0 216 0 0 0 
Interest Income & Miscellaneous 149 92 424 183 541 88 
Lease Payments 56,750 4,563 58,750 1 9,125 50,250 3,250 
PILOT Application / Admin Fees 500 23,333 42,080 2 46,667 42,231 40,748 
PILOT Clawback MSP 0 0 0 0 0 0 

57,399 27,988 101,470 55,975 93,022 44,086 

Business Expense 0 83 216 167 224 175 
Contracted Service-Accounting 625 625 1,250 1,250 1,167 1,167 
Contracted Services - Legal 850 850 1,700 1,700 1,700 1,600 
Legal Services & PILOT Clawback MSP 0 0 0 0 0 0 
Contracted Services- Other 169 417 338 833 0 0 
Marketing- Contracted Services 4,000 83 4,330 3 167 45 45 
Dues & Subscriptions 0 167 0 333 1,250 1,250 
Insurance - General 304 333 608 667 608 665 
Special ED Projects Contingency 10,417 10,417 20,833 20,833 16,667 8,333 
Tuition Agreement 0 0 0 0 0 0 
Office Supplies & Expense 0 0 0 0 0 0 
Seminars & Conferences 0 250 0 500 0 0 
Service Fees 14,700 14,700 29,400 29,400 28,000 26,667 

31,065 27,925 58,676 55,850 49,661 39,902 

26,334 62 42,795 125 43,361 4,184 
Excess or (Deficiency) of 
Revenue Over Expenses

Oneida County Industrial Development Agency
Budget Comparison Report

Current Period: 2/1/2023 - 2/28/2023
Budget Period: 1/1/2023 - 12/31/2023

With Comparative Periods Ending 2/28/2022 and 2/28/2021

3Revenue

Total Revenue

Expenses

Total Expenses



Cash Flows From ( Used by) Operating Activities

Increase (Decrease) in Net Assets 91,302$          
Adjustments for Noncash Transactions

Depreciation and Amortization 0
(Increase) Decrease in Assets
Accounts Receivable (3,142)
Accounts Receivable- Wolfspeed PILOT 27,262
Prepaid Expenses (1,084)
Increase (Decrease) in Liabilities
Accounts Payable and Accrued Liabilities (13,537)
Deferred Revenue (4,000)
Wolfspeed PILOT Holdings (27,262)

Net Cash Flows From Operating Activities 69,539

Cash Flows From (Used By) Investing Activities

Capital Expenditures 0
Net Cash From (Used by) Investing Activities 0

Cash Flows From (Used By) Financing Activities

Repayments of Long Term Debt 0
Proceeds from  Long Term Debt 0

Net Cash Flows (Used by) Financing Activities 0

Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents 69,539

Cash and Cash Equivalents, Beginning of Period 848,946

Cash and Cash Equivalents, End of Period 918,485$        

Oneida County Industrial Development Agency

Statement of Cash Flows

For the Period Ending February 28, 2023



Financial Statements as of 

December 31, 2022 and 2021

Together with Independent 

Auditor's Report

ONEIDA COUNTY INDUSTRIAL 

DEVELOPMENT AGENCY
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Board of Directors of the

Oneida County Industrial Development Agency

Opinion

Basis for Opinion

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements

March 28, 2023

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the Oneida County

Industrial Development Agency (the Agency), as of and for the years ended

December 31, 2022 and 2021, and the related notes to the financial statements,

which collectively comprise the Agency's basic financial statements as listed in the

table of contents.

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the

financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted

in the United States of America, and for the design, implementation, and

maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation

of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to

fraud or error.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted

in the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits

contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General

of the United States. Our responsibilities under those standards are further

described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

section of our report. We are required to be independent of the Agency and to

meet our other ethical responsibilities, in accordance with the relevant ethical

requirements relating to our audit. We believe that the audit evidence we have

obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all

material respects, the financial position of the Agency, as of December 31, 2022

and 2021, and the changes in financial position, and cash flows thereof for the

years then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in

the United States of America.
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Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

‐

‐

‐

‐

‐

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole

are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report

that includes our opinions. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute

assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with generally

accepted auditing standards and Government Auditing Standards will always detect a material

misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is

higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional

omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Misstatements are considered

material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, they would influence

the judgment made by a reasonable user based on the financial statements.

In performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and Government 

Auditing Standards,  we:

Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to

fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such

procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in

the financial statements.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit

procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an

opinion on the effectiveness of the Agency’s internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion is

expressed.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant

accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the

financial statements.

Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate,

that raise substantial doubt about the Agency’s ability to continue as a going concern for a

reasonable period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other

matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal

control‐related matters that we identified during the audit.

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are

conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the Agency’s

ability to continue as a going concern for twelve months beyond the financial statement date,

including any currently known information that may raise substantial doubt shortly thereafter.
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Required Supplementary Information

Other Information

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated March 28,

2023 on our consideration of the Agency’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of

its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other

matters. The purpose of that report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control

over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion

on the effectiveness of the Agency’s internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That

report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards  in 

considering the Agency’s internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

Management is responsible for the other information included in the basic financial statements. The

other information comprises the supplemental schedule of the Oneida County Industrial

Development Agency's revenue bonds and other bonds (conduit debt obligations), but does not

include the basic financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon. Our opinions on the basic

financial statements do not cover the other information, and we do not express an opinion or any

form of assurance thereon.

In connection with our audit of the basic financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other

information and consider whether a material inconsistency exists between the other information and

the basic financial statements, or the other information otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work performed, we conclude that an uncorrected material misstatement of the

other information exists, we are required to describe it in our report.

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the

management’s discussion and analysis be presented to supplement the basic financial statements.

Such information is the responsibility of management and, although not a part of the basic financial

statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be an

essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate

operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the

required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the

United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of

preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with management’s

responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during

our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on

the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express

an opinion or provide any assurance.
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis (Unaudited)

For the Years Ended December 31, 2022 and 2021

GENERAL INFORMATION 

• Statement of Net Position

• Statement of Revenue, Expenses and Change in Net Position 

•

•

•

•

•

The Agency's total net position was $900,644, $808,773, and $641,634 at December 31, 2022, 2021, and

2020, respectively. The Agency's net position increased by $91,871 from 2021 to 2022 and increased by

$167,139 from 2020 to 2021. 
Total current assets were $1,082,805, $918,102, and $1,235,986 at December 31, 2022, 2021, and 2020,

respectively. In all three years, they were comprised of cash and cash equivalents, investments and prepaid

expenses. In 2022 and 2021, current assets also included accounts receivable. Current assets in 2020 were

higher than in the other years primarily because it included the collection of PILOT payments not yet

disbursed. 

Total current liabilities were $182,161, $109,329, and $594,352 at December 31, 2022, 2021, and 2020,

respectively. As noted above, current liabilities in 2020 also included the collection of PILOT payments not yet

disbursed. 
Normal operating revenues, comprised primarily of administrative and agency fees as well as lease payments

were $394,039 for the year ended December 31, 2022, a decrease of $128,000 from the prior year. Included

in 2021 operating revenues was a PILOT clawback of $65,000. Operating revenues for the year ended

December 31, 2020 totaled $975,845. The higher level of revenues in 2020 was due to the closing of two large

projects. 

The Oneida County Industrial Development Agency (the Agency) was created on October 28, 1970, by the Oneida

County Board of Legislators under the provisions of Chapter 372 of the 1970 Laws of New York State for the

purpose  of  encouraging  economic  growth  in Oneida County. 

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

ONEIDA COUNTY INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY

The following Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) provides a comprehensive overview of the Oneida

County Industrial Development Agency (the Agency) financial position as of December 31, 2022 and its changes in

financial position for the year then ended, showing 2021 and 2020 for comparison. This MD&A should be read in

conjunction with the financial statements and related footnotes of the Agency, which directly follow the MD&A.

Overview of the Financial Statements
The financial statements of the Agency have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally

accepted in the United States as prescribed by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB). The financial

statement presentation consists of the following  basic financial statements:

Statement of Cash Flows

The Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Revenue, Expenses and Change in Net Position are prepared

using the economic resource measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting. Revenues, expenses, assets

and liabilities resulting from exchange and exchange‐like transactions are recognized when the exchange takes

place. Revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities resulting from non‐exchange transactions are recognized when the

amounts to be received are measurable and collection is probable. These policies are more fully described in the

accompanying notes to the basic financial statements.
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis (Unaudited)

For the Years Ended December 31, 2022 and 2021

ONEIDA COUNTY INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY

CURRENT ASSETS

CURRENT LIABILITIES 

OPERATING REVENUES

Professional Fees

Special Project Fees

Current assets at December 31, 2022 and 2021 were comprised of cash and cash equivalents, investments,

accounts receivable and prepaid expenses. Current assets at December 31, 2020 were comprised of substantially

the same categories, but did not have accounts receivable. 

The Agency had current liabilities of $182,161 at December 31, 2022, $109,329 at December 31, 2021, and

$594,352 at December 31, 2020.

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE AGENCY’S FINANCIAL POSITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

The Agency focuses on the attraction, retention, and expansion of new and current businesses to the County. The

Agency’s financial performance can vary from year‐to‐year based on the level of economic activity and the ability to

offer some form of assistance to businesses that can validate their economic value to the community. 

CONTACTING THE AGENCY’S ADMINISTRATION

This financial report is designed to provide readers with a general overview of the Agency's finances. If you have

questions about this report or need additional information, contact the Agency's board at the Oneida County

Industrial Development Agency, 584 Phoenix Drive, Rome, NY 13441.

Revenues are made up of PILOT (Payment in Lieu of Taxes) application and administrative fees as well as lease back

rental payments. Total operating revenue decreased in 2022 by $128,331, primarily as a result of PILOT clawback

payments in the amount of $65,000 received in 2021 .  Total operating revenue in 2020 is $975,845. 

Professional fees in 2022, 2021 and 2020 include legal fees associated with corporate matters and activities of the

organization and staff service fees paid to Economic Development Growth Enterprises Corporation (EDGE) for

various administrative and accounting services.

Special project fees in 2022, 2021 and 2020 include amounts paid to EDGE for economic development initiatives. 

CURRENTLY KNOWN FACTS, DECISIONS AND CONDITIONS
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2022 2021

1,072,852$            710,264$               

7,081  97,837 

268  7,428 

2,604 1,299
‐  101,274 

1,082,805  918,102 

6,679 6,679

(6,679)  (6,679) 

‐  ‐ 

1,082,805  918,102 

175,080 11,492

PILOT funds held 500 88,256

6,581  9,581 

182,161  109,329 

7,081  97,837 
893,563  710,936 

900,644  808,773 

1,082,805$            918,102$               

ONEIDA COUNTY INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY

Statements of Net Position

December 31, 2022 and 2021

Total assets

CAPITAL ASSETS: 

Accumulated depreciation

ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS:

Cash and cash equivalents

Accounts receivable

Total current assets

Prepaid expenses

Investments

Equipment 

Capital assets, net

Restricted cash and cash equivalents

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these statements.

LIABILITIES AND NET POSITION

CURRENT LIABILITIES:

Unearned revenue

Total current liabilities

NET POSITION:

Unrestricted

Total net position

Total liabilities and net position

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities

Restricted 
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2022 2021

394,039$                457,370$               
‐                                65,000                    

394,039                  522,370                 

243,000 235,000

17,150 16,600

‐                                60,695                    

3,810 3,788

‐                                8,089                      

28,563 25,000

11,427                     6,598                      

303,950                  355,770                 

90,089                     166,600                 

1,782                       539                         

1,782                       539                         

CHANGE IN NET POSITION 91,871                     167,139                 

NET POSITION ‐ beginning of year 808,773                  641,634                 

NET POSITION ‐ end of year 900,644$                808,773$               

 

Interest income

Total non‐operating revenue

Consultant services

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these statements.

NON‐OPERATING REVENUE:

Operating income (loss)

ONEIDA COUNTY INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY

Statements of Revenues, Expenses, and Change in Net Position

For the years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021

Total operating expenses

Administrative services fees

OPERATING REVENUES:

Administrative and agency fees

Total revenues

OPERATING EXPENSES:

Recovered PILOT payments

Insurance

Professional fees

Special project

Other  

Clawback settlement
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Statements of Cash Flows

For the years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021

2022 2021

304,978$                454,986$               

7,160  (3,450) 

‐  65,000 

(168,000)                (160,000)               

(17,150)  (27,253) 

‐  (50,042) 

(3,810)  (3,788) 

(103,563)                (100,000)               

(11,427)  (6,598) 

163,588                  (484,967)               

‐  (8,089) 

Project commitment fees paid (3,000)  (1,000) 

168,776                  (325,201)               

1,782  539 

101,274                  207,739                 

103,056                  208,278                 

271,832                  (116,923)               

808,101                  925,024                 

1,079,933$            808,101$               

90,089$                  166,600$               

Changes in assets and liabilities:

7,160  (7,428) 

(1,305)  650 

163,588                  (484,967)               

(87,756)  944 

(3,000)  (1,000) 

168,776$                (325,201)$             

Net cash flow from investing activities

Net change in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents ‐ beginning of year

Cash and cash equivalents ‐ end of year

Net cash flow from operating activities

CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:

Interest income

ONEIDA COUNTY INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY

Cash received from administrative and agency fees

CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:

Other investments

Cash received and due to other entities

Cash paid for administrative service fees

Cash paid for professional fees

Cash paid for insurance

Cash paid for special projects

Cash paid for other expenses

Cash received from miscellaneous souces

Cash paid for consulting services

Cash received from recovered PILOT payments

Cash paid for clawback settlements

PILOTS funds held

Deferred revenue

Net cash flow from operating activities

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these statements.

RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) TO NET 

CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:

Operating income (loss)

Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss) to net 

cash flow from operating activities ‐

Accounts payable and accrued expenses

Accounts receivable

Prepaid expenses
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Notes to Basic Financial Statements

December 31, 2022 and 2021

1.

2.

Accounts Receivable

Accounts receivable are recorded and revenues are recognized as earned or as specific expenditures are

incurred. All accounts receivable are deemed collectible; therefore, no allowance account has been

established.

ONEIDA COUNTY INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The Agency operates as a proprietary fund. Proprietary funds utilize an “economic resources” measurement

focus. The accounting objectives of this measurement focus are the determination of operating income,

changes in net position, financial position, and cash flows. All assets and liabilities (whether current or

noncurrent) and deferred inflows and outflows associated with their activities are reported. Fund equity is

classified as net position. The Agency utilizes the accrual basis of accounting. Under the accrual basis of

accounting, revenues are recognized when earned and expenses are recorded when the liability is incurred

or an economic asset is used.

ORGANIZATION

The Oneida County Industrial Development Agency (the Agency) was created on October 28, 1970, by the

Oneida County Board of Legislators under the provisions of Chapter 372 of the 1970 Laws of New York

State for the purpose of encouraging economic growth in Oneida County. The Agency's primary

functions are to act as intermediary between bonding companies and local businesses for the purpose of

issuing industrial revenue bonds and to grant PILOT (payment in‐lieu‐of tax) benefits to local businesses who

have expanded their facilities.

Basis of Accounting 

Investments

Investments include certificate of deposits invested at individual banks earning interest for a specified length

of time.  

Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the

United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported

amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial

statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results

could differ from these estimates, particularly given the economic disruptions and uncertainties associated

with the ongoing COVID‐19 pandemic, and such differences may be significant.

For the purpose of the statement of net position and statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents

include deposits, and all highly liquid debt instruments with original maturities of three months or less.

Cash and Cash Equivalents
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Notes to Basic Financial Statements

December 31, 2022 and 2021

ONEIDA COUNTY INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY

a.

b.

c.

The Agency is related through common management and Board of Directors membership with the Oneida 

County Local Development Corporation, which also promotes economic development in the County. 

PILOT Funds Held 

PILOT funds held are amounts received for PILOT payments by the Agency that have not been remitted to the 

respective government agency at December 31. 

Net Position

Net investment in capital assets ‐ capital assets including restricted capital assets, net of accumulated

depreciation and reduced by the outstanding balances of any bonds, mortgages, notes, or other

borrowings that are attributable to the acquisition, construction, or improvement of those assets.

Restricted net position ‐ net position with constraints placed on their use either by (1) external groups

such as creditors or laws or regulations of other governments; or (2) law through constitutional

provisions or enabling legislation.

It is the Agency’s policy to first apply restricted resources when an expense is incurred for purposes for which

both restricted and unrestricted net position is available.

Unrestricted net position ‐ all other assets that do not meet the definition of net investment in capital

assets or restricted net position.

Special Project Expenses

The Agency entered into an agreement with Mohawk Valley EDGE for the support of economic development

initiatives within Oneida County. 

Related Party

GASB requires the classification of net position into three components. These classifications are displayed in

three components below:

Capital Assets

Capital assets are recorded at acquisition cost and depreciated over the estimated useful lives of the

respective assets using the straight‐line method. Assets purchased or acquired with a cost of $1,000 or

greater and a useful life exceeding one year are capitalized. At December 31, 2022 and 2021, the Agency

had capital assets with a cost of $6,679 that were fully depreciated. 

Operating Revenues and Non‐operating Revenues

The Statements of Revenues, Expenses, and Change in Net Position distinguishes between operating and non‐

operating revenues. Operating revenues, such as administrative and agency fees, grant income and

miscellaneous income, result from exchange transactions associated with the principal activities of the

Agency. Exchange transactions are those in which each party to the transaction receives or gives up

essentially equal values. Non‐operating revenues arise from exchange transactions not associated with the

Agency’s principal activities and from all non‐exchange transactions.

Draf
t- 

Su
bje

ct
to 

Cha
ng

e

Draf
t- 

Su
bje

ct 
to 

Cha
ng

e

10



Notes to Basic Financial Statements

December 31, 2022 and 2021

ONEIDA COUNTY INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY

3.

•

•

•

•

•

Obligations of the United States of America;

Obligations where payment of principal and interest are guaranteed by the United States of America;

Special time deposit account; and

Custodial Credit Risk

Custodial credit risk is the risk that, in the event of a failure of a depository financial institution, the reporting

entity may not recover its deposits. In accordance with the Agency’s investment and deposit policy, all

deposits of the Agency including certificates of deposit and special time deposits, in excess of the amount

insured under the provisions of the Federal Deposit Insurance Act (FDIA) shall be secured by a pledge of

securities with an aggregate value equal to the aggregate amount of deposits.  

Interest Rate Risk

The Agency monies must be deposited in Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC) insured commercial

banks or trust companies located within and authorized to do business in New York State. Permissible

investments include special time deposit accounts, certificates of deposit and obligations of the United

States or of federal agencies whose principal and interest payments are fully guaranteed by the federal

government, or of New York State or in general obligations of the State’s political subdivisions.

Policies

The Agency follows an investment and deposit policy, the overall objective of which is to adequately

safeguard the principal amount of funds invested or deposited; conform with federal, state and other legal

requirements; and provide sufficient liquidity of invested funds in order to meet obligations as they become

due.  Oversight of investment activity is the responsibility of the Executive Director.

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value of investments will be affected by changing interest rates. The

Agency’s investment policy does not limit investment maturities as a means of managing its exposure to fair

value losses arising from increasing interest rates.

DEPOSITS WITH FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS AND INVESTMENTS

Credit Risk

The Agency’s policy is to minimize the risk of loss due to failure of an issuer or other counterparty to an

investment to fulfill its obligations. The Agency’s investment and deposit policy authorizes the reporting

entity to purchase the following types of investments:

Obligations of the State of New York;

Certificates of deposit.
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Notes to Basic Financial Statements

December 31, 2022 and 2021

ONEIDA COUNTY INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY

•

•

•

•

•

4.

Investment Policy

Investment Valuation

Obligations issued, or fully insured or guaranteed as to the payment of principal and interest, by the

United States of America, an agency thereof or a United States government sponsored corporation;

Fair value measurements of the Agency’s investments at December 31, 2022 and 2021 are comprised of

certificate of deposits valued at $0 and $101,274, respectively, based on fair market value (Level 1 inputs).

The Agency restricts the securities to the following eligible items:  

Obligations issued by states (other than New York State) of the United States of America rated in one of

the two highest rating categories by at least one Nationally Recognized Statistical Rating Organization 

The Agency maintained cash balances with a financial institution insured by the FDIC up to $250,000, for

demand and non demand accounts. At December 31, 2022, the Agency's deposits were $1,079,933 and the

bank balance was $2,218,020. $636,492 was covered by FDIC while the remaining balance was uninsured

and uncollateralized in the amount of $1,581,528. At December 31, 2021, the Agency’s deposits were

$808,101 and the bank balance was $1,046,621. $473,897 was covered by FDIC while the remaining balance

was uninsured and uncollateralized in the amount of $572,724.

INVESTMENTS

The Agency follows an investment policy which the overall objective of which is to adequately safeguard the

principal amount of funds invested or deposited; conformance with federal, state and other legal

requirements; provide sufficient liquidity of invested funds in order to meet obligations as they become due;

and attainment of a market rate of return. Oversight of investment activity is the responsibility of the

Finance Committee.

The Agency categorizes the fair value measurements of its investments based on the hierarchy established

by generally accepted accounting principles. The fair value hierarchy, which has three levels, is based on the

valuation inputs used to measure an asset’s fair value: Level 1 inputs are quoted prices in active markets for

identical assets; Level 2 inputs are significant other observable inputs; Level 3 inputs are significant

unobservable inputs. The Agency did not have any investments that are measured using Level 2 or Level 3

inputs.

Obligations partially insured or guaranteed by an agency of the United States of America;

Obligations issued or fully insured or guaranteed by the State of New York;

Obligations issued by a municipal corporation, school district or district corporation of New York State; 
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Notes to Basic Financial Statements

December 31, 2022 and 2021

ONEIDA COUNTY INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY

5.

6.

7.

8. 

INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT BONDS

The Agency issues tax‐exempt or taxable bonds to provide financial assistance to private‐sector entities for

the acquisition and construction of facilities deemed to be in the public interest. The bonds are secured by

the property financed and are payable solely from payments received on the underlying mortgage loans.

Upon repayment of the bonds, ownership of the acquired facilities transfers to the borrowing entity served

by the bond issuance. The Agency is not obligated in any manner for repayment of the bonds. Accordingly,

neither the related property nor the bonds are reported as assets or liabilities in the accompanying financial

statements.

SERVICE FEE EXPENSE

The Agency shares common space with Economic Development Growth Enterprises Corporation (EDGE) and

Griffiss Local Development Corporation (GLDC). In addition, EDGE performs various administrative and

accounting services for the Agency. In lieu of incurring the related personnel, operating, and overhead

expense, the Agency paid $243,000 and $235,000 in service fees to EDGE for each of the years ended

December 31, 2022 and 2021, respectively.

CLAWBACK SETTLEMENT 

The Agency received a clawback settlement for the year ended December 31, 2021 of $65,000 as a project

was unable to satisfy its employment obligation. The Agency distributed a total of $50,042 to the taxing

authorities of Oneida County, City of Rome and Rome City School District and incurred $10,653 in legal fees

in 2021, and nothing in 2022.  The net effect of the total clawback settlement was $0 to the Agency. 

BOARD DESIGNATION

The Board of Directors has voted to restrict $400,000 of net position for future economic development

projects. 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL

REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT 

AUDITING STANDARDS

March 28, 2023

To the Board of Directors of the

Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the

Agency’s internal control over financial reporting (internal control) as a basis for

designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the

purposes of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the

purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Agency’s internal

control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the

Agency’s internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control

does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing

their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, misstatements on a

timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in

internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material

misstatement of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented or detected

and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a

combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material

weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with

governance.

Oneida County Industrial Development Agency:

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in

the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits

contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of

the United States, the financial statements of Oneida County Industrial

Development Agency (the Agency), as of and for the year ended December 31,

2022, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise

the Agency’s basic financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated

March 28, 2023.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the

first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in

internal control that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies.  Given 

these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal

control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses

or significant deficiencies may exist that were not identified. 
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The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and

compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the

entity’s internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in

accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity’s internal control and

compliance.  Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Agency’s financial statements are free

from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws,

regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and

material effect on the financial statements. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those

provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The

results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be

reported under Government Auditing Standards.

Purpose of this Report

Report on Compliance and Other Matters
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Supplemental Schedules of Revenue Bonds and Other Bonds (Conduit Debt Obligations) ‐ (Unaudited)

Project Number Description of Financing Closing Date

Interest at 

Issuance

Bonds Outstanding at 

January 1, 2022

Incurred

 During 2022

Developer Paid During 

2022

Bonds Outstanding at 

December 31, 2022 Term Ending Date

3001‐99‐07A Champion Homes June 1, 1999 3.75%  $ 6,820,000   $ ‐   $ ‐   $ 6,820,000  June 1, 2029

3001‐07‐05A Eastern Star June 21, 2007 4.56% 1,570,000  ‐      1,570,000  ‐  July 1, 2037

3001‐04‐02A MVCC December 1, 2004 4.051% 5,220,000  ‐  280,000  4,940,000  December 1, 2036

 $ 13,610,000   $ ‐   $ 1,850,000   $ 11,760,000 

Project Number Description of Financing Closing Date

Interest at 

Issuance

Bonds Outstanding at 

January 1, 2021

Incurred

 During 2021

Developer Paid During 

2021

Bonds Outstanding at 

December 31, 2021 Term Ending Date

3001‐99‐07A Champion Homes June 1, 1999 3.75%  $ 6,820,000   $ ‐   $ ‐   $ 6,820,000  June 1, 2029

3001‐07‐05A Eastern Star June 21, 2007 4.56% 1,710,000  ‐          140,000  1,570,000  July 1, 2037

3001‐02‐01A Hamilton College June 1, 2002 5.20% 5,990,000  ‐      5,990,000  ‐  September 15, 2032

3001‐04‐02A Mohawk Valley Community College December 1, 2004 4.051% 5,485,000  ‐  265,000  5,220,000  December 1, 2036

 $ 20,005,000   $ ‐   $ 6,395,000   $ 13,610,000 

Principal of the Issue

ONEIDA COUNTY INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY

For the years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021

Principal of the Issue
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REPORT ON SECTION 2925(3)(f) OF THE NEW YORK STATE PUBLIC 

AUTHORITIES LAW 

March 28, 2023 

To the Board of Directors of the 
  Oneida County Industrial Development Agency: 

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally 
accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable to 
financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the 
Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of 
Oneida County Industrial Development Agency (the Agency), a discretely 
presented component unit of the County of Oneida, New York (the County), 
as of and for the year ended December 31, 2022, and the related notes to 
the financial statements, which collectively comprise the Agency’s basic 
financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated March 28, 
2023.  

In connection with our audit, nothing came to our attention that caused us 
to believe that the Agency failed to comply with the Corporation’s 
Investment Guidelines, the New York State (NYS) Comptroller’s Investment 
Guidelines and Section 2925(3)(f) of the NYS Public Authorities Law 
(collectively, the Investment Guidelines), which is the responsibility of the 
Agency's management, insofar as they relate to the financial accounting 
knowledge of noncompliance with such Investment Guidelines. However, 
our audit was not directed primarily towards obtaining knowledge of 
noncompliance with such Investment Guidelines. Accordingly, had we 
performed additional procedures, other matters may have come to our 
attention regarding the Agency’s noncompliance with the Investment 
Guidelines. 

This report is intended solely for the information and use of management, 
the Board of Directors, and the Office of the State Comptroller of the State 
of New York.  It is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone 
other than these specified parties. 
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1 

March 28, 2023 

To the Board of Directors of the 
  Oneida County Industrial Development Agency: 

We have audited the financial statements of Oneida County Industrial Development 
Agency (the Agency), for the year ended December 31, 2022. Professional standards 
require  that  we  provide  you  with  information  about  our  responsibilities  under 
generally accepted auditing standards and Government Auditing Standards, as well 
as  certain  information  related  to  the planned  scope  and  timing of our  audit. We 
have  communicated  such  information  in  our  letter  dated  January  23,  2023.  
Professional  standards  also  require  that  we  communicate  to  you  the  following 
information related to our audit. 

SIGNIFICANT AUDIT MATTERS 

Qualitative Aspects of Accounting Practices  
Management  is  responsible  for  the  selection  and  use  of  appropriate  accounting 
policies.  The  significant  accounting  policies  used  by  the  Agency  are  described  in 
Note 2  to  the  financial statements. No new accounting policies were adopted and 
the  application  of  existing  policies  was  not  changed  during  2022. We  noted  no 
transactions entered into by the Agency during the year for which there is a lack of 
authoritative  guidance  or  consensus.  All  significant  transactions  have  been 
recognized in the financial statements in the proper period. 

Accounting estimates are an  integral part of  the  financial  statements prepared by 
management  and  are  based  on management’s  knowledge  and  experience  about 
past and current events and assumptions about  future events. Certain accounting 
estimates  are  particularly  sensitive  because  of  their  significance  to  the  financial 
statements  and  because  of  the  possibility  that  future  events  affecting  them may 
differ significantly from those expected.   

The financial statement disclosures are neutral, consistent, and clear. 

Difficulties Encountered in Performing the Audit  
We  encountered  no  significant  difficulties  in  dealing  with  management  in 
performing and completing our audit. 

Corrected and Uncorrected Misstatements 
Professional standards require us to accumulate all known and likely misstatements 
identified  during  the  audit,  other  than  those  that  are  clearly  trivial,  and 
communicate  them  to  the  appropriate  level of management.   We noted no  such 
misstatements.  Draf
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2 

SIGNIFICANT AUDIT MATTERS (Continued) 

Disagreements with Management  
For purposes of  this  letter, a disagreement with management  is a  financial accounting,  reporting, or auditing 
matter, whether or not resolved to our satisfaction, that could be significant to the financial statements or the 
auditor’s report. We are pleased to report that no such disagreements arose during the course of our audit. 

Management Representations  
We  have  requested  certain  representations  from  management  that  are  included  in  the  management 
representation letter dated with the date of our Independent Auditor’s Report. 

Management Consultations with Other Independent Accountants  
In  some  cases, management may  decide  to  consult with  other  accountants  about  auditing  and  accounting 
matters, similar to obtaining a “second opinion” on certain situations. If a consultation involves application of an 
accounting principle  to  the Agency’s  financial  statements or a determination of  the  type of auditor’s opinion 
that may be expressed on  those statements, our professional standards  require  the consulting accountant  to 
check with us to determine that the consultant has all the relevant facts. To our knowledge, there were no such 
consultations with other accountants. 

Other Audit Findings or Issues  
We  generally  discuss  a  variety  of  matters,  including  the  application  of  accounting  principles  and  auditing 
standards, with management each year prior to retention as the Agency’s auditors. However, these discussions 
occurred  in the normal course of our professional relationship and our responses were not a condition to our 
retention. 

Other Matters 
We  applied  certain  limited  procedures  to  management’s  discussion  and  analysis,  which  is  required 
supplementary  information (RSI) that supplements the basic financial statements. Our procedures consisted of 
inquiries of management  regarding methods of preparing  the  information and comparing  the  information  for 
consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge 
we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We did not audit the RSI and do not express an 
opinion or provide any assurance on the RSI. 

We were not engaged to report on the Schedule of Revenue Bonds and Other Bonds (Conduit Debt Obligations), 
which accompany  the  financial  statements but are not RSI.   Such  information has not been  subjected  to  the 
auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements, and accordingly, we do not express an 
opinion or provide any assurance on it.  

Restriction on Use 
This information is intended solely for the use of the Board of Directors and management of the Oneida County 
Industrial Development Agency and is not intended to be, and should not be used by anyone other than these 
specified parties. 
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Transcript Document No. [   ] 

 

 

SEQR Resolution 

Kris-Tech Wire Company, Inc.  

2023 Facility Expansion Project 

 
RESOLUTION OF THE ONEIDA COUNTY INDUSTRIAL 
DEVELOPMENT AGENCY DETERMINING THAT ACTION 
TO PROVIDE FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE RELATING TO A 
PROJECT FOR THE BENEFIT OF KRIS-TECH WIRE 
COMPANY, INC. WILL NOT HAVE A SIGNIFICANT 
EFFECT ON THE ENVIRONMENT 

 
WHEREAS, Kris-Tech Wire Company, Inc., on behalf of itself and/or the 

principals of Kris-Tech Wire Company, Inc., and/or an entity formed or to be formed on 
behalf of any of the foregoing (collectively, the “Company”) previously entered into 
transactions with the Oneida County Industrial Development Agency (the “Agency”) in 
which the Agency provided financial assistance in connection with construction of (a) a 
45,000± square foot manufacturing facility; (b) a 22,000± square foot addition to the 
manufacturing facility; and (c) a 3,000± square foot addition to the manufacturing facility 
(collectively, the “Existing Improvements”), all situated on an 8.040± acre parcel of land 
located at 80 Otis Street in the Griffiss Business and Technology Park, City of Rome 
(the “Existing Land”); and (d) acquisition and installation of equipment in the Existing 
Improvements (collectively, the “Existing Equipment”), all to be used for the 
manufacturing of bare and insulated copper wire products (the Existing Land, the 
Existing Improvements and the Existing Equipment referred to collectively as the 
“Existing Facility”); and 

WHEREAS, the Company has applied to the Agency to enter into a transaction in 
which the Agency will assist in (a) acquisition of a 3.98± acre parcel of land adjacent to 
the Existing Land, to be consolidated into the Existing Land (collectively, the “Land”) (b) 
construction of a 75,000± square foot addition to the Existing Improvements and all 
infrastructure and utilities to service the same (the “Addition”); (c) renovations to the 
Existing Improvements; and (d) acquisition and installation of equipment in the Addition 
and Existing Improvements (the “Equipment”), all for the purpose of expanding the 
capabilities of the Existing Facility and enabling the manufacturing of critical supply 
chain components for energy and infrastructure projects across New York State and the 
United States (the Land, the Addition and the Equipment are referred to collectively as 
the “2023 Facility” and the construction and equipping of the Addition and renovation 
and equipping of the Existing Improvements is referred to as the “2023 Project”); and 
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WHEREAS, pursuant to Article 8 of the Environmental Conservation Law, 
Chapter 43-B of the Consolidated Laws of New York, as amended (the "SEQR Act") 
and the regulations adopted pursuant thereto by the Department of Environmental 
Conservation of the State of New York, being 6 NYCRR Part 617, as amended (the 
"Regulations"), the Agency desires to determine whether the construction and equipping 
of the 2023 Facility may have a "significant effect on the environment" (as said quoted 
term is defined in the SEQR Act and the Regulations) and therefore require the 
preparation of an environmental impact statement; and 
 

WHEREAS, to aid the Agency in determining whether the construction, and 
equipping of the 2023 Facility may have a significant effect upon the environment, the 
Company has prepared and submitted to the Agency a long environmental assessment 
form (the "EAF"), a copy of which was presented to and reviewed by the Agency at this 
meeting and copies of which are on file at the office of the Agency; and 

 
WHEREAS, to aid the Agency in determining whether the 2023 Project may have 

a significant effect upon the environment, the Agency has reviewed the minutes of the 
March 20, 2023 meeting of the City of Rome Planning Board, its findings and negative 
declaration in connection with its site plan review (the “Planning Board Review”), a copy 
of which was presented to and reviewed by the Agency at this meeting and copies of 
which are on file at the office of the Agency; and 

 
WHEREAS, pursuant to the Regulations, the Agency has examined the EAF and 

the Planning Board Review in order to make a determination as to the potential 
environmental significance of the 2023 Facility. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF 

THE ONEIDA COUNTY INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY AS FOLLOWS: 
 

Section 1. Based on an examination of the Application, the EAF, the 
Planning Board Review, and based further upon the Agency's knowledge of the area 
surrounding the 2023 Facility and such further investigation of the 2023 Facility and its 
environmental effects as the Agency has deemed appropriate, the Agency makes the 
following findings and determinations with respect to the 2023 Facility: 
 

(A) The 2023 Facility is as described in the Application and the 
EAF; 

 
(B) The 2023 Facility constitutes an "Unlisted Action" (as defined 

in the Regulations); 
 
(C) No potentially significant impacts on the environment are 

noted in the EAF for the 2023 Facility, and none are known to the Agency; 
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(D) The 2023 Facility will not result in (i) substantial adverse 

change in existing air quality; ground or surface water quality or quantity, traffic or 
noise levels; a substantial increase in solid waste production; or a substantial 
increase in potential for erosion, flooding, leaching or drainage problems; (ii) the 
removal or destruction of large quantities of vegetation or fauna; substantial 
interference with the movement of a resident or migratory fish or wildlife species; 
impacts on a significant habitat area; substantial adverse impacts on threatened 
or endangered species of animal or plant, or the habitat of such species; or (iii) 
other significant adverse impacts to natural resources;  

 
(E) The 2023 Facility will not affect a critical environmental area 

as designated pursuant to 6 NYCRR 617.14(g);  
 

(F) The 2023 Facility will not conflict with the community's 
current plans or goals as officially approved or adopted; 

 
(G) The 2023 Facility will not result in the impairment of the 

character or quality of important historical, archeological, architectural, or 
aesthetic resources or of existing community or neighborhood character;  

 
(H) The 2023 Facility will not result in a major change in the use 

of either the quantity or type of energy; 
 

(I) The 2023 Facility will not result in the creation of a hazard to 
human health; 

 
(J) The 2023 Facility will not result in a substantial change in the 

use, or intensity of use, of land including architectural, open space or recreational 
resources, or in its capacity to support existing uses; 

 
(K) The 2023 Facility will not result in encouraging or attracting 

of a large number of people to a place or places for more than a few days, 
compared to the number of people who would come to such place absent the 
action; 

 
(L) The 2023 Facility will not result in the creation of a material 

demand for other actions that would result in one or more of the above 
consequences;  

 
(M) The 2023 Facility will not result in changes in two or more 

elements of the environment, no one of which has a significant impact on the 
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environment, but when considered together result in a substantial adverse impact 
on the environment; and 

 
(N) The 2023 Facility will not result in two or more related 

actions undertaken, funded or approved by an agency, none of which has or 
would have a significant impact on the environment, but when considered 
cumulatively would meet one or more of the criteria in 6 NYCRR Section 
617.7(c).   

 
Section 2. The Agency hereby determines that the 2023 Facility will not 

have a significant impact on the environment and the Agency will not require the 
preparation of an environmental impact statement with respect to the 2023 Facility.  As 
a result, the Agency has prepared a negative declaration with respect to the 2023 
Facility. 
 

Section 3. The Executive Director of the Agency is hereby directed to 
file in the Agency's records a negative declaration with respect to the 2023 Facility (said 
negative declaration to be substantially in the form and substantially to the effect of the 
negative declaration attached hereto). 

 
Section 4. This resolution shall take effect immediately. 

 
                   [Remainder of page left blank intentionally] 
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STATE OF NEW YORK ) 
 :  SS.: 
COUNTY OF ONEIDA ) 

I, the undersigned Secretary of the Oneida County Industrial Development 
Agency, DO HEREBY CERTIFY THAT: 

I have compared the foregoing copy of a resolution of the Oneida County 
Industrial Development Agency (the “Agency”) with the original thereof on file in the 
office of the Agency, and the same is a true and correct copy of such resolution and of 
the proceedings of the Agency in connection with such matter. 

 Such resolution was passed at a meeting of the Agency duly convened on March 28, 
2023 at eight a.m., local time, at Rome, New York which the following members were: 
 

Members Present:  
Members Present Webex/Teleconference:  

Member Excused:  

EDGE Staff Present:  
 
EDGE Staff Present Webex/Teleconference:  
 
Others Present:  
 
Others Present Webex/Teleconference:  
 

 
 The question of the adoption of the foregoing resolution was duly put to vote, 
which resulted as follows: 
 

 

 

 

and, therefore, the resolution was declared duly adopted. 
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 I FURTHER CERTIFY that (i) all members of the Agency had due notice of said 
meeting, (ii) the meeting was open for the public to attend and public notice of the date, 
time, location and call-in information for said meeting was duly given, (iii) the meeting in 
all respects was duly held, and (iv) there was a quorum present throughout.. 

 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand as of _____, 2023. 
 
 

_________________________________ 
            Shawna Papale, Secretary 
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TO:      OCIDA Board of Directors 

FROM:  Mark Kaucher 

DATE:  March 13th, 2023 

 

RE:   Kris-Tech Wire Company, Inc. 2023 Facility Expansion 
         March 13, 2023 Public Hearing Minutes   
         584 Phoenix Drive, Rome NY 
         And via WebEx 
   

Representing the Agency: Mark Kaucher and William VanShufflin 

Other Attendees: Graham Brodock, representing Kris-Tech via WebEx. 

Public hearing opened at 1:30 PM. 

Reading of the public hearing notice was waived, upon consensus of the 
attendees. Mr. Brodock expressed his appreciation to the Agency for 
considering Kris-Tech’s request for assistance in this investment in the Rome 
facility. 

Public Hearing was closed at 1:45 PM. 
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Final Authorizing Resolution 
Kris-Tech Wire Company, Inc. 
2023 Facility Expansion 
 
Transcript Document No. [     ] 

 
Date: March 28, 2023 

 
At a meeting of the Oneida County Industrial Development Agency (the 

“Agency”) held at 584 Phoenix Drive, Rome, New York 13441 on March 28, 2023, the 
following members of the Agency were: 
 

Members Present:  
 
 
 
EDGE Staff Present:  
 
 
 
Others Present:  
 
 
 
 
After the meeting had been duly called to order, the Chairman announced that 

among the purposes of the meeting was to consider and take action on certain matters 
pertaining to proposed financial assistance to Kris-Tech Wire Company, Inc. (2023 
Facility Expansion Project). 
 

The following resolution was duly moved, seconded, discussed and adopted with 
the following members voting: 

 
Voting Aye Voting Nay 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Michael Fitzgerald abstained from the discussion and the vote. 
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RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE AGENCY TO 
EXECUTE THE FIRST AMENDED AND RESTATED 
LEASEBACK AGREEMENT, THE THIRD AMENDED AND 
RESTATED PAYMENT-IN-LIEU-OF-TAX AGREEMENT, 
THE RECAPTURE AGREEMENT, THE LOAN 
DOCUMENTS AND RELATED DOCUMENTS WITH 
RESPECT TO THE KRIS-TECH WIRE COMPANY, INC. 
2023 FACILITY EXPANSION PROJECT LOCATED IN THE 
CITY OF ROME, ONEIDA COUNTY. 

 
WHEREAS, by Title 1 of Article 18-A of the General Municipal Law of the State of 

New York, as amended and Chapter 372 of the Laws of 1970 of the State of New York 
(collectively, the “Act”), the Agency was created with the authority and power among 
other things, to assist with the acquisition of certain industrial development projects as 
authorized by the Act; and 
 
 WHEREAS, Kris-Tech Wire Company, Inc., on behalf of itself and/or the 
principals of Kris-Tech Wire Company, Inc., and/or an entity formed or to be formed on 
behalf of any of the foregoing (collectively, the “Company”) previously entered into 
transactions with the Oneida County Industrial Development Agency (the “Agency”) in 
which the Agency provided financial assistance in connection with construction of (a) a 
45,000± square foot manufacturing facility; (b) a 22,000± square foot addition to the 
manufacturing facility; and (c) a 3,000± square foot addition to the manufacturing facility 
(collectively, the “Existing Improvements”), all situated on an 8.040± acre parcel of land 
located at 80 Otis Street in the Griffiss Business and Technology Park, City of Rome 
(the “Existing Land”); and (d) acquisition and installation of equipment in the Existing 
Improvements (collectively, the “Existing Equipment”), all to be used for the 
manufacturing of bare and insulated copper wire products (the Existing Land, the 
Existing Improvements and the Existing Equipment referred to collectively as the 
“Existing Facility”); and 
 

WHEREAS, the Company has applied to the Agency to enter into a transaction in 
which the Agency will assist in (a) acquisition of a 3.98± acre parcel of land adjacent to 
the Existing Land, to be consolidated into the Existing Land (collectively, the “Land”) (b) 
construction of a 75,000± square foot addition to the Existing Improvements and all 
infrastructure and utilities to service the same (the “Addition”); (c) renovations to the 
Existing Improvements; and (d) acquisition and installation of equipment in the Addition 
and Existing Improvements (the “Equipment”), all for the purpose of expanding the 
capabilities of the Existing Facility and enabling the manufacturing of critical supply 
chain components for energy and infrastructure projects across New York State and the 
United States (the Land, the Addition and the Equipment are referred to collectively as 
the “2023 Facility” and the construction and equipping of the Addition and renovation 
and equipping of the Existing Improvements is referred to as the “2023 Project”); and 
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WHEREAS, the Company leases the Existing Facility to the Agency pursuant to 
a Lease Agreement dated as of November 1, 2015 (the “Existing Lease Agreement”); 
and 

 
WHEREAS, the Agency leases the Existing Facility back to the Company 

pursuant to a Leaseback Agreement dated as of November 1, 2015 as amended on 
November 1, 2016 and May 23, 2019 (collectively, the “Leaseback Agreement”); and 

 
WHEREAS, the Agency and the Company are party to a Second Amended and 

Restated PILOT Agreement dated as of May 23, 2019 (the “PILOT Agreement”) with 
respect to the Existing Facility; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Company will lease the 2023 Facility to the Agency pursuant to a 

Lease Agreement (the “Lease Agreement”) and the Agency and the Company will 
amend the Leaseback Agreement by way of a First Amended and Restated Leaseback 
Agreement (the “First Amended Leaseback”) to add and include the 2023 Facility; and 

 
WHEREAS, Chase Bank (the “Bank”) intends to finance a portion of the costs of 

the Project by extending one or more loans in the aggregate principal amount not to 
exceed $8,575,000.00, to be secured by one or more mortgages and/or other 
documents deemed necessary by the Bank to secure its interest (collectively, the “Loan 
Documents”) ; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Agency by resolution duly adopted on February 10, 2023 (the 

“Inducement Resolution”) decided to proceed under the provisions of the Act to lease 
the 2023 Facility and directed that a public hearing be held and enter into the First 
Amended Leaseback; and 

 
WHEREAS, on February 28, 2023 the Agency mailed letters via certified mail, 

return receipt requested, to each of the affected taxing jurisdictions providing a copy of 
the Inducement Resolution and notice of the date, time and place of the public hearing 
and requested comments on the proposed 2023 Facility and the proposed Financial 
Assistance; and 

 
 WHEREAS, the Agency conducted a public hearing on March 13, 2023 and the 
minutes of said hearing have been provided to the members; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Agency contemplates that it will provide financial assistance to 
the Company in connection with the 2023 Project in the form of exemptions from sales 
and use taxes, exemptions from mortgage recording taxes, and reduction in real 
property taxes for a period of ten years on the increased assessment resulting from the 
2023 Project (the “Financial Assistance”), which financial assistance is consistent with 
the Agency’s Uniform Tax Exemption Policy, and which will be more particularly set 
forth in a final authorizing resolution; and 
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 WHEREAS, based upon representations made by the Company in the 
Application, the value of the Financial Assistance is described as follows: 
 

• Sales and use tax exemption not to exceed $420,000.00 
• Mortgage recording tax exemption not to exceed $63,750.00 
• Reduction of real property taxes, valued at approximately $1,437,672 

 
WHEREAS, the Company has agreed to indemnify the Agency against certain 

losses, claims, expenses, damages and liabilities which may arise in connection with 
the Project and the Agency’s leasehold interest in the Facility; and 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Oneida County Industrial 

Development Agency (a majority of the members thereof affirmatively concurring) as 
follows: 

 
Section 1.  The Agency hereby finds and determines: 
 
(a) By virtue of the Act, the Agency has been vested with all powers 

necessary and convenient to carry out and effectuate the purposes and provisions of 
the Act and to exercise all powers granted to it under the Act; and 

 
(b) The Facility constitutes a “project”, as such term is defined in the Act; and 
 
(c) The acquisition, construction and equipping of the 2023 Facility, the 

leasing of the Facility to the Company and the Agency’s Financial Assistance with 
respect thereto, will promote and maintain the job opportunities, health, general 
prosperity and economic welfare of the citizens of Oneida County and the State of New 
York and improve their standard of living and thereby serve the public purposes of the 
Act; and 

 
(d) The acquisition, construction, equipping and financing of the 2023 Facility 

is reasonably necessary to induce the Company to maintain and expand its business 
operations in the State of New York; and 

 
(e) Based upon representations of the Company and Company's Counsel, the 

Facility conforms with the local zoning laws and planning regulations of Oneida County 
and all regional and local land use plans for the area in which the Facility is located; and 

 
(f) The SEQRA findings adopted by the Agency on March 28, 2023 

encompassed the actions to be undertaken by this resolution and no changes have 
been made since that time to the proposed action that would create new or increased 
adverse environmental impacts; and 

 
(g) It is desirable and in the public interest for the Agency to undertake the 

2023 Project; and 
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(h) The Lease Agreement, in form satisfactory to the Chairman and Agency 
counsel, will be an effective instrument whereby the Company conveys to the Agency a 
leasehold interest in the 2023 Facility; and 

 
(i) The First Amended Leaseback, in form satisfactory to the Chairman and 

Agency Counsel, will be an effective instrument whereby the Agency and the Company 
amend the Leaseback Agreement to add and include the 2023 Facility; and 

 
(j) The Third Amended and Restated Payment-in-Lieu-of-Tax Agreement (the 

“Third Amended PILOT Agreement”) between the Company and the Agency, in form 
satisfactory to the Chairman and Agency Counsel, will be an effective instrument 
whereby the Agency and the Company set forth the terms and conditions of their 
amended agreement regarding the Company’s payments in lieu of real property taxes; 
and 

 
(k) The Recapture Agreement (the “Recapture Agreement”) between the 

Company and the Agency will be an effective instrument whereby the Company agrees 
that the Financial Assistance relating to the 2023 Facility is conditioned upon 
maintaining certain employment levels as a result of the 2023 Project; and 

 
(l) The Environmental Compliance and Indemnification Agreement (the 

“Environmental Compliance and Indemnification Agreement”) between the Company 
and the Agency will be an effective instrument whereby the Company agrees to comply 
with all Environmental Laws (as defined therein) applicable to the 2023 Facility and will 
indemnify and hold harmless the Agency for all liability under all such Environmental 
Laws; and 

 
(m) The Loan Documents will be effective instruments whereby the Agency 

grants to the Bank a security interest in the Facility. 
 
Section 2.  In consequence of the foregoing, the Agency hereby determines to:  

(i) acquire a leasehold interest in the 2023 Facility and execute, deliver and perform the 
Lease Agreement, (ii) lease the 2023 Facility back to the Company pursuant to the First 
Amended Leaseback, (iii) execute, deliver and perform the First Amended Leaseback, 
(iv) execute, deliver and perform the Third Amended PILOT Agreement, (v) execute, 
deliver and perform the Recapture Agreement; (vi) execute and deliver the 
Environmental Compliance and Indemnification Agreement, (vii) execute, deliver and 
perform the Loan Documents, and (viii) provide the Financial Assistance to the 
Company in support of the 2023 Project. 

 
Section 3.  The Agency is hereby authorized to accept a leasehold interest in the 

real property described in Exhibit A to the Lease Agreement and the personal property 
described in Exhibit B to the Lease Agreement and to do all things necessary or 
appropriate for the accomplishment thereof, and all acts heretofore taken by the Agency 
with respect to such acquisition are hereby approved, ratified and confirmed. 
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Section 4.  The form and substance of the Lease Agreement, the First Amended 
Leaseback, the Recapture Agreement, the Third Amended PILOT Agreement, and the 
Environmental Compliance and Indemnification Agreement (each in substantially the 
forms presented to the Agency and which, prior to the execution and delivery thereof, 
may be redated) are hereby approved. The form and substance of the Loan Documents 
are hereby approved, subject to the inclusion of the Agency’s standard financing 
provisions and subject to counsel review. 

 
Section 5. 
 
(a) The Chairman, Vice Chairman, Secretary or any member of the Agency 

are hereby authorized, on behalf of the Agency, to execute and deliver the Lease 
Agreement, the First Amended Leaseback, the Recapture Agreement, the Third 
Amended PILOT Agreement, the Environmental Compliance and Indemnification 
Agreement and the Loan Documents, all in substantially the forms thereof presented to 
this meeting with such changes, variations, omissions and insertions as the Chairman, 
Vice Chairman, Secretary or any member of the Agency shall approve, and such other 
related documents as may be, in the judgment of the Chairman and Agency Counsel, 
necessary or appropriate to effect the transactions contemplated by this resolution 
(hereinafter collectively called the “Closing Documents”).  The execution thereof by the 
Chairman, Vice Chairman, or any member of the Agency shall constitute conclusive 
evidence of such approval. 

 
(b) The Chairman, Vice Chairman, Secretary or member of the Agency are 

further hereby authorized, on behalf of the Agency, to designate any additional 
Authorized Representatives of the Agency (as defined in and pursuant to the Leaseback 
Agreement). 

 
Section 6.  The officers, employees and agents of the Agency are hereby 

authorized and directed for and in the name and on behalf of the Agency to do all acts 
and things required or provided for by the provisions of the Closing Documents, and to 
execute and deliver all such additional certificates, instruments and documents, pay all 
such fees, charges and expenses and to do all such further acts and things as may be 
necessary or, in the opinion of the officer, employee or agent acting, desirable and 
proper to effect the purposes of the foregoing resolution and to cause compliance by the 
Agency with all of the terms, covenants and provisions of the Closing Documents 
binding upon the Agency. 

 
Section 7.   This resolution shall take effect immediately. 
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STATE OF NEW YORK ) 
    ) ss.: 
COUNTY OF ONEIDA ) 
 
 

I, the undersigned Secretary of the Oneida County Industrial Development 
Agency (the “Agency”), DO HEREBY CERTIFY: 

 
That I have compared the annexed extract of the minutes of the meetings of the 

Agency, including the resolutions contained therein, held on March 28, 2023 with the 
original thereof on file in my office, and that the same is a true and correct copy of the 
proceedings of the Agency and of such resolutions set forth therein and of the whole of 
said original insofar as the same related to the subject matters therein referred to. 

 
That the Lease Agreement, the First Amended Leaseback, the Recapture 

Agreement, the Third Amended PILOT Agreement, the Environmental Compliance and 
Indemnification Agreement and the Loan Documents contained in this transcript of 
proceedings are each in substantially the form presented to the Agency and/or 
approved by said meeting. 

 
I FURTHER CERTIFY that (i) all members of the Agency had due notice of said 

meetings, (ii) pursuant to Sections 103a and 104 of the Public Officers Law (Open 
Meetings Law), said meetings were open to the general public and public notice of the 
time and place of said meetings were duly given in accordance with such Sections, (iii) 
the meetings in all respects were duly held, and (iv) there was a quorum present 
throughout. 

 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand as of _____, 2023. 

 
ONEIDA COUNTY INDUSTRIAL 
DEVELOPMENT AGENCY 
 
 
By:___________________________________ 
     Shawna M. Papale, Secretary 
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    Authorizing Resolution 
    Consent to Change of Control  
    Alder Creek Beverages, LLC Facility 
    
    Date: February 10, 2023 
 
 At a meeting of the Oneida County Industrial Development Agency (the 
“Agency”), held at 584 Phoenix Drive, Rome, New York at 8:00 a.m. on February 10, 
2023, the following members of the Agency were: 
 

Members Present:  
 
 
EDGE Staff Present:  
 
 
 
Others Present:  
 
 
 

 
 After the meeting had been duly called to order, the Chairman announced 
that among the purposes of the meeting was to consider and take action on certain 
matters pertaining to the change of control of a certain industrial development facility 
more particularly described below (Alder Creek Beverages, LLC Facility). 
 
 The following resolution was duly moved, seconded, discussed and adopted 
with the following members voting: 
 
 Aye Nay Abstain 
 
Ferris Betrus ______ ______ ______ 

Michael Fitzgerald ______ ______ ______ 

David Grow ______ ______ ______ 

Mary Faith Messenger ______ ______ ______ 

Kirk Hinman  ______ ______ ______ 

Eugene Quadraro ______ ______ ______ 

Steve Zogby ______ ______ ______ 
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RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE AGENCY TO CONSENT TO THE 
CHANGE OF CONTROL OF THE ALDER CREEK BEVERAGES, LLC 
FACILITY AND TO EXECUTE RELATED DOCUMENTS. 

 
 WHEREAS, by Title 1 of Article 18-A of the General Municipal Law of the 
State of New York, as amended and Chapter 372 of the Laws of 1970 of the State of 
New York (collectively, the “Act”), Oneida County Industrial Development Agency (the 
“Agency”) was created with the authority and power among other things, to assist with 
the acquisition of certain industrial development projects as authorized by the Act; and 
 
 WHEREAS, Alder Creek Beverages, LLC (the “Company”) previously 
requested that the Agency provide certain financial assistance, consisting of exemptions 
from sales and use taxes and reduction of real property taxes (the “Financial 
Assistance”), for a project consisting of acquisition and renovation of a 240,000± square 
foot building (the “Improvements”) situated on a 1,679± acre parcel of land located at 
One Nirvana Plaza, 12044 State Route 12, Town of Boonville, Oneida County, New 
York, together with all water rights associated therewith (collectively, the “Land”); and 
acquisition and installation of equipment in the Improvements (the “Equipment”), all to 
be used for the manufacture of bottled spring water for distribution to retail sales outlets 
(the Land, the Improvements and the Equipment are referred to collectively as the 
“Facility” and the acquisition, renovation and equipping of the Facility is referred to as 
the “Project”); and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Company leases the Facility to the Agency pursuant to a 
Lease Agreement dated as of February 1, 2017 (the “Lease Agreement”); and  
 
 WHEREAS, the Agency leases the Facility back to the Company pursuant to 
a Leaseback Agreement dated as of February 1, 2017 (the “Leaseback Agreement”); 
and  
 
 WHEREAS, the Facility is the subject of that certain Payment-in-Lieu-of-Tax 
Agreement by and between the Agency and the Company, dated as of February 1, 2017 
(the “PILOT Agreement”); and 
 
 WHEREAS, payments under the PILOT Agreement are made pursuant to the 
terms of a PILOT Payment Escrow Account Agreement by and among the Agency, the 
Company and Adirondack Bank (the “PILOT Escrow Agreement”); and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Facility is also the subject of an Environmental Compliance 
and Indemnification Agreement by and between the Agency and the Company, dated as 
of February 1, 2017 (the “Environmental Compliance Agreement”); and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Facility is also the subject of a Job Creation and Recapture 
Agreement by and between the Agency and the Company, dated as of February 1, 2017 
(the “Recapture Agreement” and together with the Lease Agreement, the Leaseback 
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Agreement, the PILOT Agreement, the PILOT Escrow Agreement and the 
Environmental Compliance Agreement, the “Agency Documents”); and 
 
 WHEREAS, by letter dated January 26, 2023, the Company notified the 
Agency that, on or about January 31, 2023, it intends to transfer 100% of the ownership 
interest of its members, Wade Abraham and Paul Rayhill (collectively, the “Original 
Members”) to Nirvana Water Sciences Corp. (the “New Sole Member”); and 
 
 WHEREAS, under the terms of the Leaseback Agreement, such transfer of 
membership interest from the Original Members to the New Sole Member (the “Change 
of Control”) requires the prior written consent of the Agency; and 
 
 WHEREAS, based on information provided by the Company, the Company is 
in compliance with all conditions of the Agency Lease Documents, will operate the 
Facility, and will remain primarily liable for all of the obligations of the Company under 
the Agency Lease Documents; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Company has requested the Agency consent to the Change 
of Control. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Oneida County Industrial 
Development Agency (a majority of the members thereof affirmatively concurring) as 
follows: 
 
 Section 1.  The Agency hereby finds and determines: 
 
 (a) By virtue of the Act, the Agency has been vested with all powers 
necessary and convenient to carry out and effectuate the purposes and provisions of the 
Act and to exercise all powers granted to it under the Act; and 
 
 (b) The Facility constitutes a “project,” as such term is defined in the Act; 
and 
 
 (c) The Change of Control will promote and maintain the job opportunities, 
health, general prosperity and economic welfare of the citizens of Oneida County and 
the State of New York and improve their standard of living and thereby serve the public 
purposes of the Act; and 
 
 (d) The Change of Control is reasonably necessary to induce the Company 
to maintain and expand its business operation in the State of New York; and 
 
 (e) It is desirable and in the public interest for the Agency to consent to the 
Change of Control. 
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 Section 2.  In consequence of the foregoing, the Agency hereby determines 
to consent to the Change of Control, subject to the Company fulfilling the following 
condition(s) to the satisfaction of the Agency: 
 

• The New Sole Member shall execute and deliver a Closing Certificate of the 
Company affirming it is aware of its obligations under the Agency Documents 
and providing organizational documents, in a form acceptable to Agency counsel; 
and 

• The Company creating an additional twenty (20) full time equivalent positions 
prior to the end of the eighth year of the Lease Term and retaining all for the 
balance of the Lease Term. 

 
 Section 3.  The Agency is hereby authorized to do all things necessary or 
appropriate for the accomplishment of the Change of Control, and all acts heretofore 
taken by the Agency with respect to such sale, assignment and financing are hereby 
approved, ratified and confirmed. 
 
 Section 4. 
 
 (a) The Chairman, Vice Chairman, Secretary or any member of the Agency 
are hereby authorized, on behalf of the Agency, to execute and deliver all documents as 
may be, in the judgment of the Chairman and Agency Counsel, necessary or 
appropriate to effect the transactions contemplated by this resolution (hereinafter 
collectively called the “Closing Documents”).  The execution thereof by the Chairman, 
Vice Chairman, or any member of the Agency shall constitute conclusive evidence of 
such approval. 
 
 (b) The Chairman, Vice Chairman, Secretary or member of the Agency are 
further hereby authorized, on behalf of the Agency, to designate any additional 
Authorized Representatives of the Agency (as defined in and pursuant to the Leaseback 
Agreement). 
 
 Section 5.  The officers, employees and agents of the Agency are hereby 
authorized and directed for and in the name and on behalf of the Agency to do all acts 
and things required or provided for by the provisions of the Closing Documents, and to 
execute and deliver all such additional certificates, instruments and documents, pay all 
such fees, charges and expenses and to do all such further acts and things as may be 
necessary or, in the opinion of the officer, employee or agent acting, desirable and 
proper to effect the purposes of the foregoing resolution and to cause compliance by the 
Agency with all of the terms, covenants and provisions of the Closing Documents 
binding upon the Agency. 
 
 Section 6.   This resolution shall take effect immediately. 
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AMENDMENT TO FEBRUARY 10, 2023 RESOLUTION 
 
    Date: March 28, 2023 
 
 At a meeting of the Oneida County Industrial Development Agency (the 
“Agency”), held at 584 Phoenix Drive, Rome, New York at 8:00 a.m. on March 28, 2023, 
the following members of the Agency were: 
 

Members Present:  
 
 
EDGE Staff Present:  
 
 
 
Others Present:  
 
 
 

 
 After the meeting had been duly called to order, the Chairman announced 
that among the purposes of the meeting was to consider and take action on an 
amendment to the February 10, 2023 resolution pertaining to the change of control of a 
certain industrial development facility more particularly described below (Alder Creek 
Beverages, LLC Facility). 
 
 The following resolution was duly moved, seconded, discussed and adopted 
with the following members voting: 
 
 Aye Nay Abstain 
 
Ferris Betrus ______ ______ ______ 

Michael Fitzgerald ______ ______ ______ 

David Grow ______ ______ ______ 

Mary Faith Messenger ______ ______ ______ 

Kirk Hinman  ______ ______ ______ 

Eugene Quadraro ______ ______ ______ 

Steve Zogby ______ ______ ______ 
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 WHEREAS, the Agency adopted a resolution on February 10, 2023 (the 
“Change of Control Resolution”) consenting to a Change of Control Transaction relating 
to the Alder Creek Beverages, LLC (the “Company”) Facility; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Agency conditioned its consent on the Company creating an 
additional twenty (20) full time equivalent positions prior to the end of the eighth year of 
the Lease Term and retaining all for the balance of the Lease Term; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Agency now wishes to amend the Change of Control 
Resolution to omit said condition. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Oneida County Industrial 
Development Agency (a majority of the members thereof affirmatively concurring) as 
follows: 
 
 1. The condition that the Company create an additional twenty (20) full 
time equivalent positions prior to the end of the eighth year of the Lease Term and 
retaining all for the balance of the Lease Term is hereby omitted. 
 
 2. This resolution shall take effect immediately. 
 

END OF RESOLUTION 
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STATE OF NEW YORK ) 
     : ss.: 
COUNTY OF ONEIDA ) 
 
 
 I, the undersigned Secretary of the Oneida County Industrial Development 
Agency, DO HEREBY CERTIFY: 
 
 That I have compared the annexed extract of the minutes of the meetings 
of the Oneida County Industrial Development Agency (the “Agency”), including the 
resolutions contained therein, held on February 10, 2023 and on March 28, 2023 
with the original thereof on file in my office, and that the same is a true and correct 
copy of the proceedings of the Agency and of such resolutions set forth therein and 
of the whole of said original insofar as the same related to the subject matters 
therein referred to. 
 
 I FURTHER CERTIFY that (i) all members of the Agency had due notice 
of said meetings, (ii) said meetings were open for the public to attend and public 
notice of the time, place of, and instructions to access, said meetings was duly 
given, (iii) the meetings in all respects were duly held, and (iv) there was a quorum 
present throughout. 
 
 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand as of March 28, 
2023. 
 
  ONEIDA COUNTY INDUSTRIAL 
  DEVELOPMENT AGENCY 
 
 
 By: ______________________________ 
  Shawna Papale, Secretary 



TERMS OF FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE 

Board Summary 
 

General Project Information 
 

Company: Griffiss Local Development Corporation Master PILOT  
 

Description of Project: 

Request that the OCIDA continue to retain fee ownership of the Griffiss Properties with Agency’s real property 
tax exempt status to promote, encourage and assist the GLDC in its development of the Developable Properties 
and its stewardship of the Open Space Properties and will thereby advance the job opportunities, general 
prosperity and economic welfare of the residents of Oneida County at the Griffiss Business and Technology 
Park. The OCIDA’s continued involvement at Griffiss will further (a) attracting new businesses, (b) growing 
existing businesses, (c) stimulating additional private investment, (d) creating and/or retaining jobs (particularly 
private sector jobs), (e) strengthening the competitive position of the Air Force Research Lab (a major 
economic driver in our area), (f) generating additional tax/PILOT payment revenues for the benefit of the 
County of Oneida, the City of Rome and the Rome City School District, and (g) enhancing the area’s quality of 
life through the Company’s continued stewardship of the Open Space Properties (e.g., the Sculpture Park, the 
trail system, the disc golf course, etc.), all of which has long been a priority for region. 

 
Type of Facility: industrial, commercial, retail, market rate housing, community solar, community 

facilities, vacant land, utilities  
 

Will Project involve the abandonment of a facility?  No 

 

Request for Financial Assistance 
 

PILOT  - Length of PILOT:  10 years  
 

Affected Tax Jurisdictions: County of Oneida, City of Rome, Rome School District 
 
Describe PILOT Payments: 100%  Exempt  

 
Deviation from UTEP: Yes 

 
Current real estate taxes or current PILOT on property: $9,278,164 (with disclaimer) 

 
Estimated PILOT Benefit (with disclaimer): PILOT Benefit Total - $ 6,781,293 (6j) 

Company Obligations for Financial Assistance 

• There is no job development associated with this PILOT 

• Continue with the efforts set forth in the Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) executed among the 
parties the at the time of  the BRAC realignment of which the OCIDA, Air Force, GLDC, taxing 
jurisdictions, and others  

• Continue the development and redevelopment of the GB&TP and the continued stewardship of the open 
spaces and undevelopable parcels 

 
  



















































fact and do not omit to state a material fact necessary to make the statements contained herein not 
misleading. 

ST A TE OF NEW YORK 
COUNTY OF ONEIDA 

----"'S.,,te'"'v-"e"n""'J.,_. "'D.,,iM=e""o _____ , being first duly sworn, deposes and says: 

I. That I am the Authorized Representative (Corporate Office) of 
Griffiss Local Development Corporation (Applicant) and that I am duly 

authorized on behalf of the Applicant to bind the Applicant. 

2. That have read the attached Application, l know the contents thereof, and that to the best
ofmy knowledge and belief, this Application and the contents of this Application are true,
accurate and complete.

(Signature of Officer) 

Subscribed and affirmed to me under penalties of 

perjury this _22_ day of March , 2023. 

(Notary Public) 

If the application has been completed by or in part by other than the person signing this application 
for the applicant please indicate who and in what capacity: 

Name: ---"J""o"'se.,p"'h'""E"'.'"'S""a"'u"'n,.d.,er"'s ______ _ 

Title: ___ �A=tt"'o.,m...,e:..v _________ 

_ 

Date: ___ =M=a=rc=h�22�2=0=2�3 

______ _ 
Please submit the signed and notarized completed application along with payment of a non-refundable 
$500 Application Fee and a $1.000 Commitment Fee (will be applied to final closing costs) to the 
Oneida County Industrial Development Agency. 584 Phoenix Drive, Rome NY 13441-1405, 
within 14 days prior to the OCIDA Board of Directors meeting at which you want the 

Application to be included on the Agenda. Wire transfer and ACH payments are acceptable but all 
related fees incurred by the Agency are payable by the Applicant. It is advised that an electronic 
version of the application accompany the original application via hard copy or e-mail. An electronic 
version of the application must accompany the original application via physical media or e-mail. 
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Short Environmental Assessment Form 
Part 1 - Project Information 

Instructions for Completing 

Part 1 – Project Information.  The applicant or project sponsor is responsible for the completion of Part 1.  Responses become part of the 
application for approval or funding, are subject to public review, and may be subject to further verification.  Complete Part 1 based on 
information currently available.  If additional research or investigation would be needed to fully respond to any item, please answer as 
thoroughly as possible based on current information. 

Complete all items in Part 1. You may also provide any additional information which you believe will be needed by or useful to the 
lead agency; attach additional pages as necessary to supplement any item. 

Part 1 – Project and Sponsor Information 

Name of Action or Project: 

Project Location (describe, and attach a location map): 

Brief Description of Proposed Action: 

Name of Applicant or Sponsor: Telephone: 

E-Mail:
Address: 

City/PO: State: Zip Code: 

1. Does the proposed action only involve the legislative adoption of a plan, local law, ordinance,
administrative rule, or regulation?

If Yes, attach a narrative description of the intent of the proposed action and the environmental resources that 
may be affected in the municipality and proceed to Part 2.  If no, continue to question 2. 

NO YES 

2. Does the proposed action require a permit, approval or funding from any other government Agency?
If Yes, list agency(s) name and permit or approval:

NO YES 

3. a. Total acreage of the site of the proposed action?     __________ acres 
b. Total acreage to be physically disturbed?     __________ acres 
c. Total acreage (project site and any contiguous properties) owned

or controlled by the applicant or project sponsor?     __________ acres 

4. Check all land uses that occur on, are adjoining or near the proposed action:

Rural (non-agriculture)       Industrial        Commercial        Residential (suburban) 

 Aquatic   Other(Specify):Agriculture

□ Urban

□ Forest

SEAF 2019

Parkland

http://www.dec.ny.gov/permits/90156.html
http://www.dec.ny.gov/permits/90178.html
http://www.dec.ny.gov/permits/90533.html
http://www.dec.ny.gov/permits/90533.html
http://www.dec.ny.gov/permits/90380.html
http://www.dec.ny.gov/permits/90372.html
http://www.dec.ny.gov/permits/90372.html
http://www.dec.ny.gov/permits/90372.html
http://www.dec.ny.gov/permits/90372.html
http://www.dec.ny.gov/permits/90390.html
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5. Is the proposed action,

a. A permitted use under the zoning regulations?

b. Consistent with the adopted comprehensive plan?

NO YES N/A 

6. Is the proposed action consistent with the predominant character of the existing built or natural landscape?
NO YES 

7. Is the site of the proposed action located in, or does it adjoin, a state listed Critical Environmental Area?

If Yes, identify: ________________________________________________________________________________ 

NO YES 

8. a.    Will the proposed action result in a substantial increase in traffic above present levels?

b. Are public transportation services available at or near the site of the proposed action?

c. Are any pedestrian accommodations or bicycle routes available on or near the site of the proposed
action?

NO YES 

9. Does the proposed action meet or exceed the state energy code requirements?

If the proposed action will exceed requirements, describe design features and technologies:

_____________________________________________________________________________________________

_____________________________________________________________________________________________

NO YES 

10. Will the proposed action connect to an existing public/private water supply?

If No, describe method for providing potable water: _________________________________________ 

_____________________________________________________________________________________________ 

NO YES 

11. Will the proposed action connect to existing wastewater utilities?

If No, describe method for providing wastewater treatment: ______________________________________ 

_____________________________________________________________________________________________ 

NO YES 

archaeological sites on the NY State Historic Preservation Office (SHPO) archaeological site inventory?

NO YES 

13. a.   Does any portion of the site of the proposed action, or lands adjoining the proposed action, contain
wetlands or other waterbodies regulated by a federal, state or local agency?

b. Would the proposed action physically alter, or encroach into, any existing wetland or waterbody?

If Yes, identify the wetland or waterbody and extent of alterations in square feet or acres: _____________________ 

_____________________________________________________________________________________________ 

_____________________________________________________________________________________________ 

NO YES 

12. a. Does the project site contain, or is it substantially contiguous to, a building, archaeological site, or district
which is listed on the National or State Register of Historic Places, or that has been determined by the
Commissioner of the NYS Office of Parks, Recreation and Historic Preservation to be eligible for listing on the
State Register of Historic Places?

b. Is the project site, or any portion of it, located in or adjacent to an area designated as sensitive for

http://www.dec.ny.gov/permits/90444.html
http://www.dec.ny.gov/permits/90444.html
http://www.dec.ny.gov/permits/90449.html
http://www.dec.ny.gov/permits/90454.html
http://www.dec.ny.gov/permits/90470.html
http://www.dec.ny.gov/permits/90492.html
http://www.dec.ny.gov/permits/90497.html
http://www.dec.ny.gov/permits/90507.html
http://www.dec.ny.gov/permits/90517.html
http://www.dec.ny.gov/permits/90517.html
http://www.dec.ny.gov/permits/90512.html
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14. Identify the typical habitat types that occur on, or are likely to be found on the project site. Check all that apply:

□Shoreline     □ Forest       Agricultural/grasslands        Early mid-successional

Wetland       □ Urban       Suburban

15. Does the site of the proposed action contain any species of animal, or associated habitats, listed by the State or
Federal government as threatened or endangered?

NO YES 

16. Is the project site located in the 100-year flood plan? NO YES 

17. Will the proposed action create storm water discharge, either from point or non-point sources?
If Yes,

a. Will storm water discharges flow to adjacent properties?

b. Will storm water discharges be directed to established conveyance systems (runoff and storm drains)?
If Yes, briefly describe: 
_____________________________________________________________________________________________ 

_____________________________________________________________________________________________ 

NO YES 

18. Does the proposed action include construction or other activities that would result in the impoundment of water
or other liquids (e.g., retention pond, waste lagoon, dam)?

If Yes, explain the purpose and size of the impoundment:______________________________________________ 

____________________________________________________________________________________________

_ 

NO YES 

19. Has the site of the proposed action or an adjoining property been the location of an active or closed solid waste
management facility?

If Yes, describe: _______________________________________________________________________________ 

_____________________________________________________________________________________________ 

NO YES 

20.Has the site of the proposed action or an adjoining property been the subject of remediation (ongoing or
completed)            for hazardous waste?
If Yes, describe: _______________________________________________________________________________

_____________________________________________________________________________________________ 

NO YES 

I CERTIFY THAT THE INFORMATION PROVIDED ABOVE IS TRUE AND ACCURATE TO THE BEST OF 
MY KNOWLEDGE 

Applicant/sponsor/name: ____________________________________________________     Date: 
_______________________________________________    

Signature: _____________________________________________________Title:_____________________________

22

Laura Cohen

http://www.dec.ny.gov/permits/90194.html
http://www.dec.ny.gov/permits/90545.html
http://www.dec.ny.gov/permits/90545.html
http://www.dec.ny.gov/permits/90565.html
http://www.dec.ny.gov/permits/90575.html
http://www.dec.ny.gov/permits/90580.html
http://www.dec.ny.gov/permits/90580.html
http://www.dec.ny.gov/permits/90585.html
http://www.dec.ny.gov/permits/90585.html
http://www.dec.ny.gov/permits/90590.html
http://www.dec.ny.gov/permits/90590.html
http://www.dec.ny.gov/permits/90595.html


EXHIBIT A 
 

PROJECT DESCRIPTION 
 

Background 
 

 In 1993, the Federal Government decided to close and/or realign Griffiss AFB in Rome, 
New York and transfer the 1,600± acres of surplus federal property (and the buildings and other 
improvements situate thereon) created by such closure and/or realignment to local ownership and 
control for the purpose of undertaking the development and/or redevelopment thereof. 
 

To pave the way for such development and/or redevelopment, the Agency executed a 
Memorandum of Understanding whereby it agreed to act as the “local reuse authority” and accept 
from the Federal Government the fee title to the surplus Griffiss properties (collectively, the 
“Griffiss Properties”). The Agency did this in recognition of the need for and the importance of a 
having public body accept responsibility for the development, redevelopment and/or stewardship 
of the Griffiss Properties, especially given that these properties are located in an area designated 
as an economic development zone (Empire Zone) and, thus, in a “highly distressed area” (as 
defined in Section 854 (18) of the General Municipal Law).  

 
To assist the Agency in its endeavors, Griffiss Local Development Corporation (the 

“Company” or “GLDC”) was formed in 1994 as a Section 501(c)(3) not-for-profit local 
development corporation. Under its Certificate of Incorporation, the Company is operated 
exclusively for the charitable and public/quasi-public purposes of: 
 

participating in the development and implementation of a comprehensive strategy 
to maintain, strengthen and expand the uses and viability of the former Griffiss Air 
Force Base in the City of Rome and Oneida County. 

 
To make possible the Company’s development and/or redevelopment efforts at Griffiss, 

particularly that portion thereof known as the Griffiss Business Park, the Agency has leased the 
Griffiss Properties to the Company for the past 20+ years pursuant to various lease agreements 
because the Company is the entity best suited to foster and oversee the development and/or 
redevelopment of the Griffiss Properties.   
 
 At present, the Griffiss Properties owned in fee by the Agency (which are shaded in purple 
on the map attached to the Application as Exhibit A-1) are leased by the Agency to the Company 
pursuant to three lease agreements: (1) a Lease Agreement dated as of July 1, 2012 (the “GLDC 
Master Lease”), (2) a Lease Agreement dated as of November 1, 2012 (the “GLDC Facility XVI 
Lease”) and (3) a Lease Agreement dated as of August 1, 2013 (the “GLDC Facility XVII Lease”). 
The GLDC Master Lease, the GLDC Facility XVI Lease and the GLDC Facility XVII Lease are 
hereinafter sometimes collectively referred to as the “GLDC Leases”.1 

 
1 Pursuant to each of the GLDC Leases, GLDC (a) has the right at any time during the lease term to acquire, for nominal 
consideration, the fee title to all or any portion of the leased premises described therein not previously conveyed out to a third party, 
(b) has the obligation to acquire such fee title at the end of the lease term, and (c) bears all of the financial and other responsibilities 
typically borne by the fee owners of real property. 
 



  
 The GLDC Master Lease is accompanied by a PILOT Agreement between the Agency and 
the Company dated as of July 1, 2012 which exempts the Company from paying any real property 
taxes on the leased premises described in the GLDC Master Lease (the “GLDC Master PILOT 
Agreement”). The GLDC Facility XVI Lease is accompanied by a PILOT Agreement between the 
Agency and the Company dated as of November 1, 2012 which exempts the Company from paying 
any real property tax on the leased premises described in the GLDC Facility XVI Lease (the 
“GLDC Facility XVI PILOT Agreement”), and the GLDC Facility XVII Lease is accompanied by 
a PILOT Agreement between the Agency and the Company dated as of August 1, 2013 which 
exempts the Company from paying real property taxes on the leased premises described in the 
GLDC Facility XVII Lease (the “GLDC Facility XVII PILOT Agreement”). The GLDC Master 
PILOT Agreement, the GLDC Facility XVI PILOT Agreement and the GLDC Facility XVII 
PILOT Agreement are hereinafter sometimes collectively referred to as the “GLDC Zero PILOT 
Agreements”. 
 
 By virtue of the 20+ year “straight lease” arrangement that has existed between the Agency, 
as fee owner and landlord, and the Company, as tenant, the Company has been able to develop 
and/or redevelop Griffiss by, among other things: 
 

(a) donating 76± acres of land to the Rome City School District to enable the 
construction of the new Rome Free Academy and related facilities; 
 

(b) demolishing and removing over 2 million sq. ft. of Air Force building fabric in 
order to create additional developable property at Griffiss; 

 
(c) constructing, reconstructing, installing and/or reinstalling critical infrastructure 

at Griffiss including various roads and utility lines; 
 

(d) selling and/or leasing existing buildings and/or parcels of vacant property to 
third-party end-users to facilitate industrial, commercial and housing 
development at Griffiss; 

 
(e) creating and maintaining a sculpture park, disc golf course and trail system for 

use by the public at Griffiss; and 
 

(f) strengthening the position of the Air Force Research Laboratory, a major 
contributor to the local economy.  

 
As is more particularly outlined in a PowerPoint Presentation entitled “Griffiss Business 

and Technology Park – 2022 Investment”, a copy of which is attached to the Application as 
Exhibit A-2, since 1995 GLDC has overseen the investment of more than $950 million in the 
Griffiss Business Park, much of which is private-sector investment, as well as the creation and/or 
retention of over 6,000 jobs, most of which are private-sector jobs. Due to the Company’s efforts, 
the Griffiss Business Park is now home to more than 80 businesses and generates real property 
tax/or PILOT payment revenue in excess of $4.3 million annually for the benefit of the County of 



Oneida, the City of Rome and the Rome City School District (from properties that were exempt 
from real property tax for 50+ years while under the Federal Government’s ownership). 
 
 The Griffiss Properties comprising the leased premises covered by the GLDC Master 
Lease, the GLDC Facility XVI Lease, and the GLDC Facility XVII Facility Lease, and subject to 
the GLDC Master PILOT Agreement, the GLDC Facility XVI PILOT Agreement, and the GLDC 
Facility XVII PILOT Agreement, respectively, can be divided into two broad categories: (1) vacant 
lands which are readily developable (collectively, the “Developable Properties”) and (2) lands 
which are devoted primarily to common area or public uses or lands which have been set aside for 
conservation purposes such as the Griffiss Sculpture Park, the Bomber disc golf course and the 
Griffiss trail system (collectively, the “Open Space Properties”). The Developable Properties 
consist of 113 ± acres of land and the Open Space Properties consist of 927 ± acres of land. 
Attached to the Application as Exhibit B is a map depicting the Developable Properties (shaded 
in blue) and the Open Space Properties (shaded in green). 
 
 As a Section 501(c)(3) not-for-profit local development corporation which is using the 
property at Griffiss in furtherance of its corporate purposes, the Company would ordinarily be 
deemed to be exempt from real property taxes in its own right under Section 420-a of the Real 
Property Tax Law. However, as a precautionary measure and to forestall any argument to the 
contrary, the Agency always has entered into “zero PILOT agreements” with the Company such 
as the GLDC Zero PILOT Agreements so that there can be no dispute that the premises covered 
thereby are exempt from real property tax. With the GLDC Zero PILOT Agreements in place, the 
Company has been able to concentrate on carrying out its core mission of developing and/or 
redeveloping Griffiss without the necessity and uncertainty of having, each year, to apply for and 
justify a Section 420-a real property tax exemption to the local tax assessor. 
 

GLDC’s Application for Financial Assistance  
 

 The GLDC Leases (and accompanying GLDC Zero PILOT Agreements) are scheduled to 
expire in the near future. In order to position the Company so that it can continue its development 
and/or redevelopment efforts at Griffiss, the Company is applying to the Agency for the following: 
 

(a) to amend and restate the GLDC Master Lease so as to include the leased 
premises currently covered by each of the GLDC Facility XVI Lease and the 
GLDC Facility XVII Lease with the leased premises currently covered by the 
GLDC Master Lease;  
 

(b) to amend and restate the GLDC Master PILOT Agreement so that it covers all 
of the leased described in the GLDC Master Lease (as so amended and restated); 
and 
 

(c) to extend the term of the GLDC Master Lease (as so amended and restated) and 
the accompanying GLDC Master PILOT Agreement (as so amended and 
restated) as follows: 
 



(i) for an additional ten (10) exemption years as to the Developable 
Properties; and  
 

(ii) For an additional ten (10) exemption years as to the Open Space 
Properties.2 

 
GLDC anticipates being able to develop a substantial portion of the Developable Properties 

over the next ten (10) years. As for the Open Space Properties which, in many respects, are the 
functional equivalent of “forever wild” lands or parklands, GLDC views them as providing 
“quality of life” amenities to the Griffiss Business Park which facilitate its efforts to develop and/or 
redevelop the Developable Properties. 
 

Estimated Value of Requested Exemption from Real Property Taxes 
 

 According to the Rome City Assessor’s records, the current combined assessed value of 
the Griffiss Properties is $30,319,199 (the “Current Combined Assessed Value”). However, for 
the purposes of estimating the maximum value of the Company's requested 10-year exemption 
from real property taxes, the Company submits this number should be adjusted downward to reflect 
the following: 
 

(a) the lands comprising the Griffiss roadway system and other Griffiss public infrastructure 
(e.g., the water distribution system, the sanitary sewer system and the storm water drainage 
system) which the City of Rome has maintained and/or repaired for many years pursuant 
to the October 1, 2003 Service Fee Payment Agreement, are slated to be conveyed to the 
City sometime this year. The Company estimates that of the $30,319,199 Combined 
Current Assessed Value of the Griffiss Properties, $12,225,700 thereof is attributable to 
the Griffiss roadway system and other Griffiss public infrastructure.  
 

(b) various of the Griffiss Properties appear to be substantially over-assessed including the 
former Weapons Storage Area (Tax Parcel I.D. No. 224.000-1-6.1), the landfills (Tax 
Parcel I.D. Nos. 224.000-1-8 and 243.000-1-1.25), and the sandhill area (Tax Parcel I.D. 
No. 243.000-1-1.22). The Company estimates that of the $30,319,199 Current Combined 
Assessed Value, $8,365,376 thereof is attributable to these over-assessments. 
 

(c) The lands comprising Parcel F10A (Tax Parcel I.D. No. 206.000-2-76) and Parcel F3B 
(Tax Parcel I.D. No. 224.000-1-3.1) are slated to be conveyed to the City of Rome 
sometime this year pursuant to the October 1, 2003 Service Fee Payment Agreement. The 
Company estimates that of the $30,319,199 Current Combined Assessed Value, $449,959 
thereof is attributable to Parcel F10A and Parcel F3B. 

 

 
2 It is Applicant’s intent that the GLDC Master Lease (as so amended and restated) and the GLDC Master PILOT Agreement (as 
so amended and restated) cover all of the lands currently covered by the GLDC Leases and GLDC Zero PILOT Agreements, 
whether or not those lands are specifically referred to in this Application and/or have been assigned a specific Tax Parcel I.D. 
Number. Generally speaking, the lands to be covered by the GLDC Master Lease (as so amended and restated) and the GLDC 
Master PILOT Agreement (as so amended and restated) would include all of the lands comprising the original Griffiss Properties 
conveyed by the Federal Government to the Agency, less and excepting therefrom those portions thereof which have been conveyed 
out to third parties or which have been otherwise released from the GLDC Leases and GLDC Zero PILOT Agreements. 



Based on the foregoing adjustments, the Company would subtract the sum of $21,041,035 
from the $30,319,199 Current Combined Assessed Value to obtain an adjusted combined assessed 
value of $9,278,164 (the “Adjusted Combined Assessed Value”). 
 
 As stated above, the Company takes the position that it would be entitled to an exemption 
from real property tax in its own right pursuant to Section 420-a of the Real Property Tax Law if 
the Griffiss Properties were placed is its name. If the Company’s position were upheld, the value 
of the requested exemption from real property tax would be $0.00. If, on the other hand, the 
Company’s position were determined to be incorrect, either in whole of in part, the Company 
estimates that over the requested 10-year exemption term, based on the $9,278,164 Adjusted 
Combined Assessed Value of the Griffiss Properties, the maximum value of the 10-year tax 
exemption would be $6,781,293. 
 
 To summarize, the Company submits the estimated value of the requested 10-year 
exemption from real property taxes ranges between $0 and $6,781,293. 

Conclusion 
 
Since the closure and/or realignment of Griffiss AFB was announced by the Federal 

Government, and the occurrence of the severe economic dislocation caused thereby, particularly 
in the City of Rome and County of Oneida, the Agency and the Company have worked closely 
together to promote the development and/or redevelopment of Griffiss. Although their efforts have 
been successful so far, much work remains to be done.  
 

The Agency’s continued fee ownership of the Griffiss Properties, the continued leasing of 
the Griffiss Properties to the Company, and the continued extension of the Agency’s real property 
tax exempt status to the Griffiss Properties, will promote, encourage and assist the Company in its 
development and/or redevelopment of the Developable Properties and its stewardship of the Open 
Space Properties and will thereby advance the job opportunities, general prosperity and economic 
welfare of the residents of Oneida County. Moreover, the Agency’s continued involvement at 
Griffiss will further the development and/or redevelopment thereof by, among other things, (a) 
attracting new businesses, (b) growing existing businesses, (c) stimulating additional private 
investment, (d) creating and/or retaining jobs (particularly private sector jobs), (e) strengthening 
the competitive position of the Air Force Research Lab (a major economic driver in our area), (f) 
generating additional tax/PILOT payment revenues for the benefit of the County of Oneida, the 
City of Rome and the Rome City School District, and (g) enhancing the area’s quality of life 
through the Company’s continued stewardship of the Open Space Properties (e.g., the Sculpture 
Park, the trail system, the disc golf course, etc.), all of which has long been a priority for State and 
local officials.  



Rationale for Extending 
GLDC Master PILOT



OCIDA Master PILOT for Undeveloped GLDC Lands 
enable the growth and impact of Griffiss Park

The nature of the Company and the Properties:  Pursuant to its Certificate of Incorporation, the Company is operated “. . . 
exclusively for the charitable and public/quasi-public purposes of participating in the development and implementation of a 
comprehensive strategy to maintain, strengthen and expand the uses and viability of the former Griffiss Air Force Base in the City of 
Rome and Oneida County . . .”  The Agency and the Company have been working together since the Company was first established 
in 1994 to jointly promote redevelopment of the former Griffiss AFB.

The Agency agreed to accept fee title to the Properties from the Air Force under the Memorandum of Understanding, 
recognizing the importance of a public body accepting responsibility for the stewardship of the Properties. The Agency leases
the Properties to the Company as the Company is best suited to operate and oversee development. The Agency’s continued 
ownership of the Properties and lease of the Properties to the Company, and the extension of the Agency’s exempt status to 
the Properties, will promote, encourage and assist the Company in its redevelopment of the Developable Properties and in its 
stewardship of the Open Space Properties and will thereby advance the job opportunities, general prosperity and economic 
welfare of Oneida County residents. 

The economic condition of the area:  The Properties are located in an area that has been designated an economic development 
zone (Empire Zone) pursuant to Article 18-B of the General Municipal Law, and is therefore located in a "highly distressed area" (as 
defined in Section 854(18) of the New York General Municipal Law).  Redevelopment of this particular area (the former Griffiss AFB) 
has long been a priority for state and local government officials.

The extent to which financial assistance for the Properties will create or retain permanent, private sector jobs: There are 
more than 6,000 jobs across 76+ companies at Griffiss Business Park – the bulk of which are permanent, private sector jobs.  The
Company has been successful in facilitating redevelopment of the former Griffiss AFB, and the proposed Agency financial 
assistance will support the Company in achieving further success on behalf of the Utica-Rome MSA.



Impact of the proposed tax exemptions on affected tax jurisdictions:  The Properties were tax exempt during the 50+ 
years they were owned by the Government and the 20+ years they have been owned by the Agency.  The continuation of 
the tax-exempt status would not reduce the amount of tax revenue presently realized by the affected tax jurisdictions.  In 
fact, it has empowered GLDC to induce development and tax roll growth every year for the past two decades.

Impact on existing and proposed businesses and economic development projects in the vicinity:  Developing the 
Properties will attract new businesses and investment to the Griffiss Business Park and will also help existing businesses to
grow and prosper. Most notably, development of the Park has strengthened the position of the Air Force Research 
Laboratory, whose impact on the local economy exceeds $4 Billion annually.

The amount of private sector investment generated or likely to be generated:  Since 1995 GLDC has overseen the 
investment of more than $950 million in public and private funds in developing the Griffiss Business Park, much of which is 
private-sector investment.  Continuing to develop the remaining Developable Properties will result in new private sector 
investments to Griffiss Business Park – including increased taxable value, new good-paying jobs, and a stronger economy.

The extent to which additional sources of revenue for municipalities and school districts will be created:  The 
Company’s development of the Griffiss Business Park has created more than 76 businesses and generates real property 
tax/or PILOT revenue in excess of $4.3 million annually for the benefit of the County of Oneida, the City of Rome and the 
Rome City School District. Continued development of the Developable Properties will generate additional tax revenues 
and/or PILOT payments.  In the past 5 years, alone, GLDC projects have generated more than $1 million in new revenue to 
these taxing jurisdictions.

The extent to which redevelopment will provide a benefit (economic or otherwise) not otherwise available within 

the municipality:  Continued stewardship of the Open Space Properties will enable the continued aesthetic development 
of the Griffiss Business Park (e.g., the Sculpture Park, pedestrian trails, disc golf course, and other amenities). These 
amenities continue to help our employers to attract top-flight talent and enhance the community’s fitness, adventure, health, 
and wellness opportunities.

OCIDA Master PILOT for Undeveloped GLDC Lands 
enable the growth and impact of Griffiss Park



Public and Private Investment on Griffiss 
Park between 1995-2022

2019 2020 2021 2022 1995-2022 Total

Road 
Infrastructure/

Airfield 
Improvements

$17.33M $6M $8.6M $12.4M $131M

Demolition $17.3M - - - $28.9M

Renovations $24.56M $14.7M $11.2M $4.7M $233.6M

New 
Construction $11.05M $110.9M $46.7M $23.6M $499M

A/E and Fees $4.57M $8.5M 4.3M $1.5M $58M

Total Capital 
Expenditures $74,805,600 $140,149,269 $70,828,836 $25,200,000 $951,020,424



2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022

Total Griffiss
Tax Revenue:

$3,166,450 $3,299,110 $3,679,827 $3,625,802 $4,006,802 $4,347,149

Oneida County $475,250 $497,500 $637,179 $582,668 $639,686 $662,870

Schools $1,592,000 $1,682,350 $1,844,747 $1,882,291 $2,006,234 $2,370,306

City of Rome $1,099,200 $1,119,260 $1,197,900 $1,160,843 $1,277,605 $1,313,973

Griffiss Tax Revenue to Municipalities



Ecosystem Diversity is key to continued 
growth and sustainability of Griffiss Park.  
A wide spectrum of industry and land use 
insulate the community from economic 
downturns and unforeseen crises.

• Manufacturing
• Defense
• Financial Services
• Professional
• R&D
• Hospitality
• Child Care
• Education
• Tech Incubator
• Distribution
• Aviation & Aerospace
• Energy Systems

• Residential
• Retail
• Non-Profit
• Conservation
• UAS
• Recreation
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EXHIBIT C 
 

A. Lands covered by July 1, 2012 GLDC Master Lease accompanying PILOT Agreement 
 
Tax Map Parcel # Current Land   Current Building Current Total  Current Total Taxes  Estimated Post-Project 
    Assessment        Assessment   Assessment                 Amount ($)      Assessment1 
 
206.000-2-76   $11,000  N/A    $11,000            $0        unknown 
 
244.000-3-3.1   $1,302,794         1,198,520    $2,501,314            $0        unknown 
 
224.000-1-6.1   $4,138,100         2,513,300    $6,651,400            $0        unknown 
 
224.000-1-8  $25,000   N/A    $25,000            $0        unknown 
 
243.000-1-1.2  $1,661,700        1,120,450    $2,782,150            $0        unknown 
 
243.000-1-1.3  $206,580        175,000    $381,580            $0        unknown 
 
243.000-1-1.6  $1,184,400        110,000    $1,294,400            $0        unknown 
 
243.000-1-1.9  $253,000        7,380    $260,380            $0        unknown 
 
243.000-1-1.11  $439,000  N/A    $439,000            $0        unknown 
 
243.000-1-1.12  $1,978,900        20,000     $1,998,900            $0        unknown 
 
243.000-1-1.14  $34,000   N/A    $34,000            $0        unknown 
 
243.000-1-1.22  $231,700  N/A    $231,700            $0        unknown 
 
243.000-1-1.25  $746,300  N/A    $746,300            $0        unknown 
 

 
1 As substantial portion of the leased premises consists of streets and other infrastructure (e.g., the water distribution system, the sanitary sewer and the storm water drainage 
system) which has been maintained by the City of Rome for years pursuant to the October 1, 2003 Service Fee Payment Agreement and which is slated to be conveyed over to the 
City of Rome this year. Various of the tax parcels appear to be over assessed.  



243.000-1-1.33  $194,900        41,200    $236,100            $0        unknown 
 
243.000-1-1.55  $58,000         531,650    $589,650            $0        unknown 
 
243.000-1-1.57  $25,000   N/A    $25,000           $0               unknown 
 
243.000-1-1.62  N/A         8,700,000    $8,700,000           $0          unknown  
 
224.000-1-3.1  $1,120,000        242,500    $1,362,500           $0          unknown  
 

B. Lands covered by November 1, 2012 GLDC Facility XVI Lease and accompanying PILOT Agreement 
 
Tax Map Parcel # Current Land   Current Building Current Total  Current Total Taxes  Estimated Post-Project 
    Assessment        Assessment   Assessment                 Amount ($)      Assessment 
 
243.000-1-1.47  $111,500  N/A    $111,500           $0          unknown 
 
243.000-1-1.46  $1,170,700  N/A    $1,170,700           $0          unknown 
 
224.000-1-11  $203,200        182,900    $386,100           $0          unknown 
 
224.000-1-10  $67,200   N/A    $67,200           $0          unknown  
 

C. Lands covered by August 1, 2013 GLDC Facility XVII Lease and accompanying PILOT Agreement  
 
Tax Map Parcel # Current Land   Current Building Current Total  Current Total Taxes  Estimated Post-Project 
    Assessment        Assessment   Assessment                 Amount ($)      Assessment 
 
243.000-1-1.51  $45,824        $250,000    $295,825           $0          unknown 
 
243.000-1-1.52  $17,500   N/A    $17,500           $0           unknown  
TOTAL  $63,325        $250,000    $313,325           $0           unknown 
 
GRAND TOTAL $15,226,299       $15,092,900    $30,319,199           $0           unknown 
  of A, B &C 



COST/BENEFIT ANALYSIS

Required by §859-a(3) of the

New York General Municipal Law

GLDC Master PILOT 2023
Name of Applicant:

Description of Project:

Name of All Sublessees or Other Occupants of 
Facility:

Principals or Parent of Applicant:

Products or Services of Applicant to be produced Wholesale distributor 
or carried out at facility:

Estimated Date of Completion of Project:

Type of Financing/ Structure: Tax-Exempt Financing
Taxable Financing

x Sale/ Leaseback
Other: ________________________

Type of Benefits being Sought by Applicant: Taxable Financing
Tax-Exempt Bonds
Sales Tax Exemption on Eligible Expenses Until Completion
Mortgage Recording Tax Abatement

X Real Property Tax Abatement

ONEIDA COUNTY INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY  



Est. Project Costs

Land 0
demo & site 0
Existing Bldg. Rehab
Construction of New Building 0
Addition or Expansion
Engineering/ Architectural Fees 0
Equipment

Legal Fees (Bank, Bond, Transaction, Credit 
Provider, Trustee 0

Finance Charges (Title Insurance, Environmental 
Review, Bank Commitment Fee, Appraisal, Etc.) 0
Agency Fee
Other (provide detail)

TOTAL COST OF PROJECT 0

Assistance Provided by the Following:

EDGE Loan:
MVEDD Loan:
Grants - Please indicate source & Amount:
Other Loans - Please indicate source & Amount:



Company Information

Existing Jobs 6200 70000 (Tech survey average is $100K)
Created Jobs (over three years) 0 0
Retained Jobs 6200 70000

Earnings Information for Oneida County

Average Salary of Direct Jobs for Applicant 70000
Average of County Indirect Jobs 25000
Average of Construction Jobs 32000

Note: $1,000,000 in construction expenditures generates 22 person - years of employment
Construction Person Years of Employment: 0

Calculation of Benefits (3 Year Period)

Total Earnings Revenues
Direct Jobs

Created 0 0
Existing 1302000000 55335000

Indirect Jobs
Created 0 0
Existing 1162500000 49406250

Construction - only one year
Person Years 0 (assume no construction in yr 1)

TOTALS Calculation of Benefits (3 Year Period) 2464500000 104741250

Average Salary of these 

Positions



TAXABLE GOODS & SERVICES

Spending Rate Expenditures
State & Local Sales 
Tax Revenues

Direct Jobs
Created 36% 0 0
Existing 0.36 468720000 45700200

Indirect Jobs
Created 0.36 0 0
Existing 0.36 418500000 40803750

Construction - only one year
Person Years 0.36 0 0

TOTAL TAXABLE GOODS & SERVICES 887220000 86503950

65.44
Real Property Taxes Paid via "direct & indirect" workforce" : 27589504

COSTS:

Real Property Taxes Abated on Improvements Only annual : 6,781,293 Amount of Taxes that would be abated by applying PILOT.

based upon current $90M assessment & current tax rate
Mortgage Tax Abated (1.0%) 0
Estimated Sales Tax Abated During Constructions Period (8.75%) 0

Local (3 year) real property tax benefit (assuming 60% of jobs existing and created own a residence) 
with an average assessment of $80,000 and the remainder of jobs existing created pay real property 
taxes through rent based on an average assessment per apartment of $50,000.

(40% of the construction and 
Rehab costs times the NYS & 

Local Sales tax)

NOTE: If there is a tax-exempt financing of all or a portion of the project cost, there is a neutral cost/benefit because of lower 
interest rates by reason of exclusion of interest from gross income of bondholders for purposes of Federal and State income 
taxes.  Taxable financing carries the same cost/benefit for State Income Tax purposes. Such cost/benefits cannot be 
quantified.

Tax Rate for School District where facility is located: 
Tax Rate for Municipality where facility is located: 
Tax Rate for County:



Estimated Assessment in 1,000s 9,278.164$        9278164

Oneida County 10.538131$       (Provide)
City or Township** 20.195915$       (Provide)

Village** -$                  (Provide)
School District 34.70654492$   (Provide)

Total 65.44$               
**Verify equalization rates with jurisdiction for parity with other jurisdictions

Annual rate increase factor of 2% is used in calculator
1.02 PROPOSED

Full OTHER

Year 1 Payment 66.75$          619,312$           0
Year 2 Payment 68.08$          631,698$           0
Year 3 Payment 69.45$          644,332$           0
Year 4 Payment 70.83$          657,219$           0
Year 5 Payment 72.25$          670,363$           0
Year 6 Payment 73.70$          683,770$           0
Year 7 Payment 75.17$          697,446$           0 TOTAL GLDC 10 Year PILOT REDUCTION
Year 8 Payment 76.67$          711,395$           0 #######
Year 9 Payment 78.21$          725,623$           0

Year 10 Payment 79.77$          740,135$           0

Total Due: 6,781,293$        0

Full OTHER

Year 1
Year 2
Year 3
Year 4
Year 5
Year 6
Year 7
Year 8
Year 9

Year 10

PAYMENT IN LIEU OF TAX BENEFIT VALUE CALCULATOR

Information on Real Property Proposed For PILOT

Tax Rates Per 1k of Assessment at time of application*

*Do not include Special District Tax Rates

PILOT VALUE CALCULATOR VALUES

Abatement Percentages

To be used as guidance to calculate the PILOT Benefit value 

on Page 9 of application. Rates and assessments are for 
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Transcript Document No. [  ]

Inducement Resolution
Griffiss Local Development Corporation

Griffiss Business & Technology Park Facility
Master Lease and PILOT 2023 Extension

RESOLUTION OF THE ONEIDA COUNTY INDUSTRIAL 
DEVELOPMENT AGENCY TAKING OFFICIAL ACTION 
TOWARD EXTENDING THE TERM OF THE GLDC 
LEASES, EXTENDING THE TERM OF THE GLDC ZERO 
PILOT AGREEMENTS, AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION 
AND DELIVERY OF AN INDUCEMENT AGREEMENT, 
AUTHORIZING THE AGENCY TO CONDUCT A PUBLIC 
HEARING AND MAKING CERTAIN FINDINGS AND 
DETERMINATIONS WITH RESPECT TO THE PROJECT.

WHEREAS, Griffiss Local Development Corporation, a New York local 
development corporation (“GLDC”), was formed in 1994 to lead our region’s response 
to the Federal Government’s decision to close and/or realign the former Griffiss Air 
Force Base in the City of Rome and Oneida County and has operated exclusively for 
the charitable and public/quasi-public purposes of participating in the development and 
implementation of a comprehensive strategy to maintain, strengthen and expand the 
uses and viability of the former Griffiss Air Force Base, including, without limitation, the 
Rome Laboratory; and

WHEREAS, in 1999 GLDC requested that the Oneida County Industrial 
Development Agency (the “Agency”) assist in (i) the acquisition from the United States 
of America, acting by and through the Secretary of the Air Force (the “Air Force”) of 
certain parcels of land measuring approximately 1,600 acres in the aggregate at the 
former Griffiss Air Force Base and the numerous buildings situated thereon; (ii) 
demolition of and renovations to the existing buildings and construction of certain 
additions thereto; (iii) construction of new buildings; and (iv) the acquisition and 
installation of equipment thereon, to be used for the coordination of redevelopment 
efforts for the realigned Griffiss Air Force Base (collectively, the “GLDC Facilities”); and

WHEREAS, the Agency determined that the GLDC Facilities will promote job 
opportunities, health, general prosperity and the economic welfare of the inhabitants of 
the County and the people of the State of New York and improve their standard of 
living, and thereby serve the public purposes of the Act and, as such, approved the 
same; and
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WHEREAS, through a number of transactions that transpired between 2000 and 
2018, the Air Force conveyed to the Agency fee interest in the GLDC Facilities and the 
Agency leased each of the GLDC Facilities to GLDC under a number of sale-leaseback 
transactions; and

WHEREAS, over the years the Agency has divested itself of a number of the 
GLDC Facilities and currently retains fee ownership in lands at Griffiss Park that can be 
divided into two broad categories:

(A) 113 ± acres of vacant lands which are developable (collectively, the 
“Developable Properties”); and

(B) 927 ± acres of lands which are devoted primarily to common area or public 
uses or lands which have been set aside for conservation purposes such as the 
Griffiss Sculpture Park, the Bomber disc golf course and the Griffiss trail system 
(collectively, the “Open Space Properties”); and

WHEREAS, the Agency currently leases the Developable Properties and the 
Open Space Properties (collectively, the “GLDC Properties”) to GLDC pursuant to: (1) a 
Lease Agreement dated as of July 1, 2012 (the “GLDC Master Lease”), (2) a Lease 
Agreement dated as of November 1, 2012 (the “GLDC Facility XVI Lease”) and (3) a 
Lease Agreement dated as of August 1, 2013 (the “GLDC Facility XVII Lease” and 
together with the GLDC Master Lease and the GLDC Facility XVI Lease the “GLDC 
Leases”); and

WHEREAS, the GLDC Properties are fully exempt from real property taxes 
pursuant to the terms of the following documents: (1) a PILOT Agreement dated as of 
July 1, 2012 (the “GLDC Master PILOT”); (2) a PILOT Agreement dated as of 
November 1, 2012 (the “GLDC Facility XVI PILOT”); and (3) a PILOT Agreement dated 
as of August 1, 2013 (the “GLDC Facility XVII PILOT” and together with the GLDC 
Master PILOT and the GLDC Facility XVI PILOT, the “GLDC Zero PILOT Agreements”); 
and

WHEREAS, in order to position GLDC so that it can continue its development 
and/or redevelopment efforts at Griffiss Park, GLDC has applied to the Agency 
requesting the following (collectively, the “GLDC 2023 Master Lease Extension 
Project”):

(a) to amend and restate the GLDC Master Lease so as to include the 
leased premises currently covered by each of the GLDC Facility XVI 
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Lease and the GLDC Facility XVII Lease with the leased premises 
currently covered by the GLDC Master Lease; 

(b) to amend and restate the GLDC Master PILOT Agreement so that it 
covers all of the leased described in the GLDC Master Lease (as so 
amended and restated); and

(c) to extend the term of the GLDC Master Lease (as so amended and 
restated) and the accompanying GLDC Master PILOT Agreement (as 
so amended and restated) as follows:

(i) for an additional ten (10) exemption years as to the Developable 
Properties; and 

(ii) for an additional ten (10) exemption years as to the Open Space 
Properties; and

WHEREAS, the Act authorizes and empowers the Agency to promote, develop, 
encourage and assist projects such as the GLDC Master Lease Extension Project and 
to advance the job opportunities, health, general prosperity and economic welfare of the 
people of the State of New York; and

WHEREAS, the Agency is contemplating approving financial assistance in 
furtherance of the GLDC 2023 Master Lease Extension Project by extending the 
Agency’s ownership of the GLDC Properties and therefore extending the period of time 
during which the GLDC Properties will be fully exempt from real property taxes as 
described above (the “Financial Assistance”), which financial assistance is a deviation 
from the Agency’s Uniform Tax Exemption Policy (the “Policy”), and which will be more 
particularly set forth in a final authorizing resolution; and

WHEREAS, the Company estimates the value of the requested Financial 
Assistance ranges between $0 and $6,781,293.00; and

WHEREAS, attached hereto as Exhibit A is a presentation submitted by GLDC 
with its application materials supporting its request that the Agency deviate from its 
Policy, and below are additional reasons the Agency is deviating from Policy:

[To be edited following Agency discussion at meeting]

WHEREAS, prior to the closing of an amended sale-leaseback transaction, and 
the granting of any Financial Assistance, a public hearing (the “Hearing”) will be held so 



15705027.2 3/22/2023

that all persons with views in favor of or opposed to either the Financial Assistance 
contemplated by the Agency, or the location or nature of the GLDC 2023 Master Lease 
Extension Project, can be heard; and

WHEREAS, notice of the Hearing will be given prior to the closing of an 
amended sale-leaseback transaction, and the granting of any Financial Assistance, and 
such notice (together with proof of publication) will be substantially in the form annexed 
hereto as Exhibit B; and

WHEREAS, the minutes of the Hearing are or will be annexed hereto as 
Exhibit C; and

WHEREAS, the Agency has given due consideration to the application of the 
GLDC and to representations by the GLDC that the proposed amended sale-leaseback 
transaction is either an inducement to the GLDC to maintain and expand the Facility in 
the County or is necessary to maintain the competitive position of the GLDC in its 
industry; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Article 8 of the Environmental Conservation Law and 
the regulations adopted pursuant thereto by the Department of Environmental 
Conservation of the State of New York (collectively, the “SEQR Act” or “SEQRA”), the 
Agency constitutes a “State Agency”; and

WHEREAS, to aid the Agency in determining whether the GLDC 2023 Master 
Lease Extension Project may have a significant effect upon the environment, the GLDC 
has prepared and submitted to the Agency an Environmental Assessment Form and 
related documents (the “Questionnaire”) with respect to the GLDC 2023 Master Lease 
Extension Project, a copy of which is on file at the office of the Agency; and

WHEREAS, in connection with the realignment of Griffiss Air Force Base, the Air 
Force caused to be prepared a final environmental impact statement (“FEIS”) pursuant 
to the National Environmental Policy Act of 1969 (“NEPA”), assessing the potential 
environmental impacts of the realignment of the Base, including its conveyance for 
redevelopment; and

WHEREAS, SEQRA provides that where an FEIS has been prepared pursuant 
to NEPA, a State Agency has no obligation to prepare an additional statement and may 
rely upon the federal FEIS to make SEQRA findings; and

WHEREAS, the Common Council of the City of Rome, conducting as lead 
agency a coordinated SEQRA review of the proposed rezoning of the Base and other 
actions including the redevelopment of the Base and financing thereof, designated itself 
as lead agency and determined that the FEIS prepared by the Air Force formed a 
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sufficient basis for the adoption of SEQRA findings without the preparation of an 
additional FEIS; and

WHEREAS, the GLDC and the Agency were both SEQRA involved agencies, 
the coordinated review for which the Common Council of the City of Rome served as 
lead agency; and

WHEREAS, on October 14, 1998, the Common Council of the City of Rome 
adopted SEQRA findings and rezoned the property upon which the Facility is located; 
and

WHEREAS, the Agency has itself also determined that the FEIS prepared by the 
Air Force provides a sufficient basis for it to adopt SEQRA findings without the 
preparation of another FEIS and that the Agency adopted such findings in satisfaction 
of the requirements of SEQRA.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Oneida County Industrial 
Development Agency (a majority of the members thereof  affirmatively concurring) that:

Section 1. (a) The GLDC 2023 Master Lease Extension Project and the Agency’s 
Financial Assistance therefor, will promote job opportunities, 
health, general prosperity and the economic welfare of the 
inhabitants of the County and the people of the State of New York 
and improve their standard of living, and thereby serve the public 
purposes of the Act and the same is, therefore, approved.

(b) It is desirable and in the public interest for the Agency to extend the 
GLDC Master Lease (as so amended and restated) and the GLDC 
Master PILOT Agreement (as so amended and restated) and enter 
into an amended sale-leaseback transaction for the purpose of 
providing financial assistance for the GLDC 2023 Master Lease 
Extension Project, as reflected in GLDC’s application to the Agency 
and as amended from time to time prior to the closing of the 
amended sale-leaseback transaction.

(c) The SEQRA findings adopted by the Agency previously satisfied 
the requirements of SEQRA, and no new SEQRA review is 
required in connection with the GLDC 2023 Master Lease 
Extension Project.

Section 2. The form and substance of a proposed inducement agreement (in 
substantially the form presented to this meeting) by and between 
the Agency and the GLDC setting forth the undertakings of the 
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Agency and the GLDC with respect to the closing of the amended 
sale-leaseback transaction, and the completion of the GLDC 2023 
Master Lease Extension Project (the "Agreement") is hereby 
approved.  The Chairman of the Agency is hereby authorized, on 
behalf of the Agency, to execute and deliver the Agreement, with 
such changes in terms and form as the Chairman shall approve.  
The execution thereof by the Chairman shall constitute conclusive 
evidence of such approval.

Section 3. The Agency shall assist the GLDC in the GLDC 2023 Master Lease 
Extension Project, extend the GLDC Master Lease (as so amended 
and restated) and the GLDC Master PILOT Agreement (as so 
amended and restated), and will provide the Financial Assistance 
with respect thereto subject to (i) obtaining all necessary 
governmental approvals, (ii) approval of the directors of GLDC, (iii) 
approval of the members of the Agency, (iv) satisfactory completion 
of the environmental review of the Facility by the Agency in 
compliance with the State Environmental Quality Review Act, 
(v) agreement by the Agency and GLDC upon mutually acceptable 
terms and conditions for the amendment to the Leaseback 
Agreement and other documentation usual and customary to 
transactions of this nature, (vi) the condition that there are no 
changes in New York State Law which prohibit or limit the Agency 
from fulfilling its obligation and commitment as herein set forth to 
enter into the amended sale-leaseback transaction and (vii) 
payment by GLDC of the fees and disbursements of transaction 
counsel, more particularly described in the Inducement Agreement.

Section 4. The Agency hereby waives its transaction fee in connection with 
the GLDC 2023 Master Lease Extension Project, consistent with its 
past action in support of the development of the Griffiss Park.

Section 5. The Agency is hereby authorized and directed to schedule the 
Hearing, so that the Agency may receive comments from all 
interested parties on the financial assistance contemplated by the 
Agency and the Financial Assistance requested by GLDC.

Section 6. The law firm of Bond, Schoeneck & King, PLLC is appointed 
Transaction Counsel in connection with the amended sale-
leaseback transaction.

Section 7. Counsel to the Agency and Transaction Counsel are hereby 
authorized to work with counsel to GLDC and others to prepare, for 
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submission to the Agency, all documents necessary to effect the 
amended sale-leaseback transaction.

Section 8. The Chairman of the Agency is hereby authorized and directed 
(i) to distribute copies of this resolution to GLDC; (ii) distribute 
copies of this resolution (including the reasons for deviating from 
Policy) and notice of the Hearing by certified mail, return receipt 
requested, to the Oneida County Executive, the City of Rome 
Mayor; the Rome City School District Superintendent and the 
Rome City School District President of Board of Education and 
(iii) to do such further things or perform such acts as may be 
necessary or convenient to implement the provisions of this 
resolution.

Section 8. This resolution shall take effect immediately.
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STATE OF NEW YORK )
: ss.:

COUNTY OF ONEIDA )

I, the undersigned Secretary of the Oneida County Industrial Development 
Agency DO HEREBY CERTIFY THAT:

I have compared the foregoing copy of a resolution of the Oneida County 
Industrial Development Agency (the “Agency”), with the original thereof on file in the 
office of the Agency, and that the same is a true and correct copy of such resolution 
and of the proceedings of the Agency in connection with such matter.

Such resolution was passed at a meeting of the Agency duly convened in 
public session on March 28, 2023 at eight a.m., local time, at Rome, New York 
which the following members were:

Members Present: 
Members Present: WebEx: 

EDGE Staff Present: 
EDGE Staff Present: WebEx: 

Other Attendees:  
Other Attendees:  WebEx: 

The question of the adoption of the foregoing resolution was duly put to vote, 
which resulted as follows:

Voting Aye Voting Nay

and, therefore, the resolution was declared duly adopted.

The Agreement and the Application are in substantially the form presented to 
and approved at such meeting.
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I FURTHER CERTIFY that (i) all members of the Agency had due notice of 
said meeting, (ii) the meeting was open for the public to attend and public notice of 
the date, time and location for the meeting was duly given, (iii) the meeting in all 
respects was duly held, and (iv) there was a quorum present throughout the 
meeting.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand as of 
____________________, 2023.

_____________________________________________
Shawna Papale, Secretary
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EXHIBIT A
RATIONALE FOR EXTENDING GLDC MASTER PILOT
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EXHIBIT B
NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that a public hearing pursuant to Article 18-A of 
the New York State General Municipal Law, will be held by the Oneida County 
Industrial Development Agency (the “Agency”) on the ____ day of April 2023 at 
____, local time, at 584 Phoenix Drive, Rome, New York in connection with the 
following matters:

Griffiss Local Development Corporation, on behalf of itself and/or the 
principals of Griffiss Local Development Corporation, and/or an entity formed or to 
be formed on behalf of any of the foregoing (collectively, the “GLDC”) previously 
requested the Agency assist in (i) the acquisition from the United States of America, 
acting by and through the Secretary of the Air Force (the “Air Force”) of certain 
parcels of land measuring approximately 1,600 acres in the aggregate at the former 
Griffiss Air Force Base and the numerous buildings situated thereon; (ii) demolition 
of and renovations to the existing buildings and construction of certain additions 
thereto; (iii) construction of new buildings; and (iv) the acquisition and installation of 
equipment thereon, to be used for the coordination of redevelopment efforts for the 
realigned Griffiss Air Force Base (collectively, the “GLDC Facilities”).

Over the years, the Air Force conveyed to the Agency fee interest in the 
GLDC Facilities and the Agency leased each of the GLDC Facilities to GLDC under 
a number of sale-leaseback transactions. The Agency currently retains fee 
ownership in lands at Griffiss Park that can be divided into three broad categories: 
(A) 113 ± acres of vacant lands which are developable (collectively, the 
“Developable Properties”) and (B) 927 ± acres of lands which are devoted primarily 
to common area or public uses or lands which have been set aside for conservation 
purposes such as the Griffiss Sculpture Park, the Bomber disc golf course and the 
Griffiss trail system (collectively, the “Open Space Properties”). The Agency 
currently leases the Developable Properties and the Open Space Properties 
(collectively, the “GLDC Properties”) to GLDC pursuant to: (1) a Lease Agreement 
dated as of July 1, 2012 (the “GLDC Master Lease”), (2) a Lease Agreement dated 
as of November 1, 2012 (the “GLDC Facility XVI Lease”) and (3) a Lease 
Agreement dated as of August 1, 2013 (the “GLDC Facility XVII Lease” and together 
with the GLDC Master Lease and the GLDC Facility XVI Lease the “GLDC Leases”). 
The GLDC Properties are fully exempt from real property taxes pursuant to the 
terms of: (1) a PILOT Agreement dated as of July 1, 2012 (the “GLDC Master 
PILOT”); (2) a PILOT Agreement dated as of November 1,  2012 (the “GLDC Facility 
XVI PILOT”); and (3) a PILOT Agreement dated as of August 1, 2013 (the “GLDC 
Facility XVII PILOT” and together with the GLDC Master PILOT and the GLDC 
Facility XVI PILOT, the “GLDC Zero PILOT Agreements”).

In order to position GLDC so that it can continue its development and/or 
redevelopment efforts at Griffiss Park, GLDC has applied to the Agency requesting 
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the Agency assist with the following (collectively, the “GLDC 2023 Master Lease 
Extension Project”): (a) to amend and restate the GLDC Master Lease so as to 
include the leased premises currently covered by each of the GLDC Facility XVI 
Lease and the GLDC Facility XVII Lease with the leased premises currently covered 
by the GLDC Master Lease; (b) to amend and restate the GLDC Master PILOT 
Agreement so that it covers all of the leased described in the GLDC Master Lease 
(as so amended and restated); and (c) to extend the term of the GLDC Master 
Lease (as so amended and restated) and the accompanying GLDC Master PILOT 
Agreement (as so amended and restated) as follows: (i) for an additional ten (10) 
exemption years as to the Developable Properties; and (ii) for an additional ten (10) 
exemption years as to the Open Space Properties.
At the end of the lease term, the Agency will convey the GLDC Properties to GLDC. 

The Agency is contemplating providing the above described financial 
assistance in connection with the GLDC 2023 Master Lease Extension Project, 
which financial assistance is a deviation from the Agency’s Uniform Tax Exemption 
Policy, to be more particularly described in a Final Authorizing Resolution to be 
adopted by the Agency prior to the closing of the transactions described herein.

A representative of the Agency will at the above-stated time and place hear 
and accept written comments from all persons with views in favor of or opposed to 
either the proposed financial assistance to GLDC or the location or nature of the 
GLDC 2023 Master Lease Extension Project. Members of the public may listen to 
the Public Hearing by calling 1-408-418-9388 (Access code: ____________). 
Comments may also be submitted to the Agency in writing or electronically. Minutes 
of the Public Hearing will be transcribed and posted on the Agency’s website. A 
copy of the Application for Financial Assistance filed by GLDC with the Agency, 
including an analysis of the costs and benefits of the proposed GLDC 2023 Master 
Lease Extension Project, is available for public inspection at the offices of the 
Agency, 584 Phoenix Drive, Rome, New York.

ONEIDA COUNTY INDUSTRIAL
DEVELOPMENT AGENCY

Dated: _____, 2023 By:/s/ Shawna M. Papale, Executive Director 
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EXHIBIT B

MINUTES OF PUBLIC HEARING

Oneida County Industrial Development Agency
GLDC 2023 Master Lease Extension Project Expansion Project

1. Timothy Fitzgerald, representing the Oneida County Industrial Development 
Agency (the “Agency”), called the hearing to order at _____ a.m.

2. Mr. Fitzgerald being the Assistant Secretary of the Agency recorded the 
minutes of the hearing.

3. Mr. Fitzgerald then described the proposed project and related financial 
assistance as follows:

Griffiss Local Development Corporation, on behalf of itself and/or the 
principals of Griffiss Local Development Corporation, and/or an entity 
formed or to be formed on behalf of any of the foregoing (collectively, 
the “GLDC”) previously requested the Agency assist in (i) the 
acquisition from the United States of America, acting by and through 
the Secretary of the Air Force (the “Air Force”) of certain parcels of 
land measuring approximately 1,600 acres in the aggregate at the 
former Griffiss Air Force Base and the numerous buildings situated 
thereon; (ii) demolition of and renovations to the existing buildings and 
construction of certain additions thereto; (iii) construction of new 
buildings; and (iv) the acquisition and installation of equipment 
thereon, to be used for the coordination of redevelopment efforts for 
the realigned Griffiss Air Force Base (collectively, the “GLDC 
Facilities”).

Over the years, the Air Force conveyed to the Agency fee interest in 
the GLDC Facilities and the Agency leased each of the GLDC 
Facilities to GLDC under a number of sale-leaseback transactions. 
The Agency currently retains fee ownership in lands at Griffiss Park 
that can be divided into three broad categories: (A) 113 ± acres of 
vacant lands which are developable (collectively, the “Developable 
Properties”) and (B) 927 ± acres of lands which are devoted primarily 
to common area or public uses or lands which have been set aside for 
conservation purposes such as the Griffiss Sculpture Park, the 
Bomber disc golf course and the Griffiss trail system (collectively, the 
“Open Space Properties”). The Agency currently leases the 
Developable Properties and the Open Space Properties (collectively, 
the “GLDC Properties”) to GLDC pursuant to: (1) a Lease Agreement 
dated as of July 1, 2012 (the “GLDC Master Lease”), (2) a Lease 
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Agreement dated as of November 1, 2012 (the “GLDC Facility XVI 
Lease”) and (3) a Lease Agreement dated as of August 1, 2013 (the 
“GLDC Facility XVII Lease” and together with the GLDC Master Lease 
and the GLDC Facility XVI Lease the “GLDC Leases”). The GLDC 
Properties are fully exempt from real property taxes pursuant to the 
terms of: (1) a PILOT Agreement dated as of July 1, 2012 (the “GLDC 
Master PILOT”); (2) a PILOT Agreement dated as of November 1, 
2012 (the “GLDC Facility XVI PILOT”); and (3) a PILOT Agreement 
dated as of August 1, 2013 (the “GLDC Facility XVII PILOT” and 
together with the GLDC Master PILOT and the GLDC Facility XVI 
PILOT, the “GLDC Zero PILOT Agreements”).

In order to position GLDC so that it can continue its development 
and/or redevelopment efforts at Griffiss Park, GLDC has applied to the 
Agency requesting the Agency assist with the following (collectively, 
the “GLDC 2023 Master Lease Extension Project”): (a) to amend and 
restate the GLDC Master Lease so as to include the leased premises 
currently covered by each of the GLDC Facility XVI Lease and the 
GLDC Facility XVII Lease with the leased premises currently covered 
by the GLDC Master Lease; (b) to amend and restate the GLDC 
Master PILOT Agreement so that it covers all of the leased described 
in the GLDC Master Lease (as so amended and restated); and (c) to 
extend the term of the GLDC Master Lease (as so amended and 
restated) and the accompanying GLDC Master PILOT Agreement (as 
so amended and restated) as follows: (i) for an additional ten (10) 
exemption years as to the Developable Properties; and (ii) for an 
additional ten (10) exemption years as to the Open Space Properties. 
At the end of the appropriate lease term, the Agency will convey the 
GLDC Properties to GLDC. 

The Agency is contemplating providing the above described financial 
assistance in connection with the GLDC 2023 Master Lease Extension 
Project, which financial assistance is a deviation from the Agency’s 
Uniform Tax Exemption Policy, to be more particularly described in a 
Final Authorizing Resolution to be adopted by the Agency prior to the 
closing of the transactions described herein.

4. Mr. Fitzgerald then opened up the hearing for comments from the floor for or 
against the proposed financial assistance and the location and nature of the 
GLDC 2023 Master Lease Extension Project.  Attached is a listing of the 
persons heard and a summary of their views.

5. Mr. Fitzgerald then asked if there were any further comments, and, there 
being none, the hearing was closed at _____ a.m.

___________________________________
Tim Fitzgerald, Assistant Secretary
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STATE OF NEW YORK )
:  SS.:

COUNTY OF ONEIDA )

I, the undersigned Secretary of the Oneida County Industrial Development 
Agency, DO HEREBY CERTIFY:

That I have compared the foregoing copy of the minutes of a public hearing 
held by the Oneida County Industrial Development Agency (the “Agency”) on _____, 
2023 at _____ local time, 584 Phoenix Drive, City of Rome, New York, with the 
original thereof on file in the office of the Agency, and that the same is a true and 
correct copy of the minutes in connection with such matter.

I FURTHER CERTIFY that (i) the hearing was open for the public to attend 
and public notice of the date, time and location for said hearing was duly given, 
(ii) the hearing in all respects was duly held, and (iii) members of the public had an 
opportunity to be heard.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand as of _____, 2023.

_________________________________
Secretary
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RR  Project Memo 
 

TERMS OF FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE 
Board Summary 

 
General Project Information 
 
Company: Mohawk, Adirondack and Northern Railroad Co., Inc./Genesee & Mohawk Valley 
Railroad Co., Inc.  
 
Description of Project: 

Applicants are applying for renewal of the current lease agreement with the OCIDA. The complete real 
property tax relief provided under the current lease agreement is essential for the continued operation of 
the rail facilities and uninterrupted railroad transportation operations for its customers which depend 
upon freight rail service. 
 
Type of Facility: Rail Line Service 
 
Will Project involve the abandonment of a facility?  No 
 
Request for Financial Assistance:   PILOT  
 
Length of PILOT:  10 years  
 
Affected Tax Jurisdictions:  Numerous jurisdictions in Oneida County 
 
Describe PILOT Payments: 100%  Exempt  
 
Deviation from UTEP: Yes 
 
Current real estate taxes or current PILOT on property: Zero real property taxes paid 
 
Estimated PILOT Benefit:  $ 1,000,000 estimated 

Company Obligations for Financial Assistance 
 

1. Retain 12 existing and create 2 additional. The service they provide to other Oneida County 
businesses who employee hundreds, is also a major consideration. 

 
2. The existing sale-leaseback transaction shall be converted to a lease-leaseback transaction, and at 

closing the Agency will reconvey fee title to all property back to the Company subject to the new 
leasehold estates to be created; 

 
3. The Leaseback Agreement shall include insurance provisions containing such limits and terms to 

be recommended and approved by the Agency’s insurance agent; 
 

4. Due to the unique nature of the Facility being an infrastructure project and to nsure public safety, 
the Company agrees to regularly maintain the Facility and shall submit with its annual report a 
summary of annual maintenance activity and expenditures; 
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5. Evidence that the Company has entered into an agreement with GLDC to continue to provide rail 
service to Griffiss Business and Technology Park for a minimum of ten years; 

 
6. The following conditions in the existing Lease Agreement shall remain intact: 

 
                        Section 2.9     Grant of Easements, Licenses and Rights. 
 
                        (a)        The Company agrees not to unreasonably withhold or unreasonably 
condition access or crossing or utility rights (the “Rights”) to any municipality located in the 
County of Oneida, and to charge no more for existing and future Rights than actual and reasonable 
out-of-pocket costs incurred by the Company attendant with the portion of tracks to which the 
Rights pertain. 
 
                        (b)        The Company agrees not to unreasonably withhold or unreasonably 
condition easement or license agreements for utilities or access to adjacent private property owners 
provided however that the Company may charge such private property owners the actual costs 
incurred by the Company for creating and maintaining, and increased operating costs resulting 
from, such easements and licenses and further provided that the Company may charge private 
developers a market price for easements and licenses where other access is available to such private 
developers but access through and over the Facility is financially and/or practically advantageous 
to such private developers, and further provided that nothing contained herein shall be deemed or 
construed to prevent the Company from charging at all times and under all circumstances market 
prices for easements and licenses for utility (gas, oil, water, electricity, cable, telephone, Internet, 
etc.) transmission facilities to the extent they do not serve adjoining private property. 
 
                        (c)        The Company agrees to be responsible for regular maintenance and cleanup 
of the Facility, provided however, that nothing shall preclude the Company from requiring third 
parties to maintain and keep clean the specific areas covered by their easements or licenses. 
 
                        (d)       The obligations of the Company under this Section 2.9 shall continue so long 
as the Company enjoys tax exemptions for the Facility by reason of legal ownership of the Facility 
by the Agency or otherwise. 
 

 
  





















































ATTACHMENT 6(J)

MOHAWK ADIRONDACK & NORTHERN RAILROAD CORP. and
GENESEE & MOHAWK VALLEY RAILROAD CO., INC. 

APPLICATION FOR FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE

100% exemption from real property taxes

ASSESSMENTS

TOWN PARCEL # ASSESSED VALUE ACRES

MARCY 315-768-4800

304400 277.000-1-43 $801,600 110.07
304400 744.000-1-1 $647,590

BOONVILLE315-943-2052

22.000-1-5 town, MAN
302601 033.006-3-49 village, MAN $25,000 13.44
302601 033.006-3-88 village, IDA $10,000 2
302601 033.006-4-8 village, IDA $5,600 2.81
302689 048.000-1-4 town, MAN $1,800,000 95.03
302689 084.000-2-19 town, MAN $50,000 0.25

TRENTON 315-896-2664

305801 228.005-2-11 vill. Holland Pat $60,233 1
305807 159.011-1-12 vill. Remsen $9,516 1.1
305889 194.000-2-33.1
305889 194.000-2-54 village, Hol. Pat $6,000 6
305889 227.000-1-49 $88,321 12.1
305889 658.007-3-1
305889 658-089-5-1
305889 177.000-1-58

REMSEN 315-831-5558

305289 121.000-1-31
305289 140.000-1-3 vill. Remsen
305289 752.089-4-1 town Remsen
305289 752-089-4-2 town Remsen
305201 140.019-1-7 vill. Remsen
305201 652.001-3-1 vill. Remsen
305201 752.001-1-1 vill. Remsen

STEUBEN 305-865-5087 active parcels, no assessment, no tax bills

305600 756.000-1-1
305600 756.000-1-2
305600 756.000-1-3
305600 756.000-1-4



305600 756.000-1-5
305600 756.000-1-6
305600 756.000-1-7
305600 756.000-1-8
305600 756.000-1-9
305600 756.000-1-10
305600 756.000-1-11
305600 756.000-1-12
305600 756.000-1-13
305600 756.000-1-14
305600 756.000-1-15

CITY

ROME

243.017-1-5.1 $56,522
002.013-76-2 $8,695
242.074-2-20 $24,400
259.002-1.2.3 $38,875
222.000-1-92 $47,315
242.048-1-22 $82,309
222-000-1-67 $21,739
2.013-76-2
243.000-1-1.2

UTICA

178572
17-239170
318.008-1-53
318.008-1-60

NYS General Municipal Law requires any application for financial assistance to include an estimated value of 
each type of tax exemption sought to be claimed by reason of agency involvement in the project.  The railroads 
cite a disclaimer with the below estimate of financial assistance because the properties have been on the 
exempt tax roll for such a long period of time, it is difficult to calculate the value of financial assistance based 
on current assessment information. The property has been in the OCIDA name for RR over 20 years and many 
of the parcels have no tax assessment and/or no railroad tax assessment ceiling calculated by the 
NYS Office of Real Property Tax Services. 

Estimated PILOT Benefit with DISCLAIMER: $ 80,000 to $100,000 per year

THE DIRECT-TO-INDIRECT JOB MULTIPLIER RATE LIKELY IS GREATER THAN 2.5 FOR THIS PROJECT.  IT IS ESTIMATED 
THAT COMPANIES SERVED BY THE APPLICANTS WITHIN ONEIDA COUNTY EMPLOY MORE THAN 1050 PERSONS.  
WITHOUT RAIL SERVICE, MANY OF THESE JOBS WOULD DISAPPEAR.  SEVERAL YEARS AGO THE APPLICANTS WERE 
INSTRUMENTAL IN THE DECISION BY SOVENA TO REMAIN IN ONEIDA COUNTY AND NOT TO RELOCATE IN NEW JERSEY, 
SAVING UP TO 135 JOBS FOR ONEIDA COUNTY.  ADDITIONALLY, MANY MANUFACTURERES WILL NOT CONSIDER 
LOCATING NEW FACILITIES IN LOCATIONS WITHOUT RAIL SERVICE.



COST/BENEFIT ANALYSIS

Required by §859-a(3) of the

New York General Municipal Law

Name of Applicant: GVT/ MAN RR

Description of Project: Provisions of shortline rail operations

Name of All Sublessees or Other Occupants of 
Facility:

Principals or Parent of Applicant:

Products or Services of Applicant to be produced Rail service toOneida Co.  industrial businesses 
or carried out at facility:

Estimated Date of Completion of Project: Exisiting

Type of Financing/ Structure: Tax-Exempt Financing
Taxable Financing

X Sale/ Leaseback
Other: _________________________

Type of Benefits being Sought by Applicant: Taxable Financing
Tax-Exempt Bonds
Sales Tax Exemption on Eligible Expenses Until Completion
Mortgage Recording Tax Abatement

x Real Property Tax Abatement

  ONEIDA COUNTY INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY



Project Costs

Land
Existing Building
Existing Bldg. Rehab 0
Construction of New Building
Addition or Expansion 0
Engineering/ Architectural Fees
Equipment 0

Legal Fees (Bank, Bond, Transaction, Credit 
Provider, Trustee IDA legal fees 8500 to 10500

Finance Charges (Title Insurance, Environmental 
Review, Bank Commitment Fee, Appraisal, Etc.)
Agency Fee 5000
Other (provide detail)
Commitment fee 1000 refundable at closing
TOTAL COST OF PROJECT 5000

Assistance Provided by the Following:

EDGE Loan:
MVEDD Loan:
Grants - Please indicate source & Amount:
Other Loans - Please indicate source & Amount:



Company Information

Existing Jobs 12 50000
Created Jobs (over three years) 2 43500
Retained Jobs 12 50000

Earnings Information for Oneida County

Average Salary of Direct Jobs for Applicant 50000
Average of County Indirect Jobs 25000
Average of Construction Jobs 32000

Note: $1,000,000 in construction expenditures generates 22 person - years of employment
Construction Person Years of Employment: 0

Calculation of Benefits (3 Year Period)

Total Earnings Revenues
Direct Jobs

Created 300000 12750
Existing 1800000 76500

Indirect Jobs
Created 375000 15937.5
Existing 2250000 95625

Construction
Person Years 0 0

TOTALS Calculation of Benefits (3 Year Period) 4725000 200813

Average Salary of these 

Positions



TAXABLE GOODS & SERVICES

Spending Rate Expenditures
State & Local Sales 
Tax Revenues

Direct Jobs
Created 36% 108000 10530
Existing 0.36 648000 63180

Indirect Jobs
Created 0.36 135000 13162.5
Existing 0.36 810000 78975

Construction
Person Years 0.36 0 0

TOTAL TAXABLE GOODS & SERVICES 1701000 165848

504000
32.32
2.27
9.54

44.13 512000
Real Property Taxes Paid: 44836.08

COSTS:

Real Property Taxes Abated on Improvements Only (3 yr. Period): 300000 Amount of Taxes that would be abated by applying PILOT.

Mortgage Tax Abated (1.0%) 0

Local (3 year) real property tax benefit (assuming 60% of jobs existing and created own a residence) 
with an average assessment of $80,000 and the remainder of jobs existing created pay real property 
taxes through rent based on an average assessment per apartment of $50,000.

Tax Rate for School District where facility is located: 
Tax Rate for Municipality where facility is located: 
Tax Rate for County:



Estimated Sales Tax Abated During Constructions Period (.9%) 0 (40% of the construction and 
Rehab costs times the NYS & 

Local Sales tax)

NOTE: If there is a tax-exempt financing of all or a portion of the project cost, there is a neutral cost/benefit because of lower 
interest rates by reason of exclusion of interest from gross income of bondholders for purposes of Federal and State income 
taxes.  Taxable financing carries the same cost/benefit for State Income Tax purposes. Such cost/benefits cannot be 
quantified.
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Transcript Document No. [  ] 
 
 

Inducement Resolution 
Mohawk, Adirondack & Northern Railroad Corp./ 

Genesee & Mohawk Valley Railroad Co., Inc. 
2023 Lease and PILOT Extension 

 
 
RESOLUTION OF THE ONEIDA COUNTY INDUSTRIAL 
DEVELOPMENT AGENCY TAKING OFFICIAL ACTION 
TOWARD APPROVING FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE AND 
EXTENDING AN EXISTING LEASE, AUTHORIZING THE 
EXECUTION AND DELIVERY OF AN INDUCEMENT 
AGREEMENT, AUTHORIZING THE AGENCY TO 
CONDUCT A PUBLIC HEARING AND MAKING CERTAIN 
FINDINGS AND DETERMINATIONS WITH RESPECT TO 
THE PROJECT. 

 
 WHEREAS, Oneida County Industrial Development Agency (the “Agency”) 
acquired fee title to a certain industrial development facility consisting of a railroad yard 
in the City of Utica, trackage in the City of Rome and a line of rail running from City of 
Utica to the Oneida County – Lewis County line north of Boonville (collectively, the 
“Improvements”), all situated on a 450± acre parcel of land running through the City of 
Rome, the City of Utica, the Village of Boonville, the Village of Remsen, the Village of 
Holland Patent, the Town of Boonville, the Town of Steuben, the Town of Trenton and 
the Town of Marcy (collectively, the “Land”); and all equipment used in connection with 
the operation of the Improvements (the “Equipment”), all to be used for the purpose of 
providing essential rail service to customers in Oneida County (the Land, the 
Improvements and the Equipment referred to collectively as the “Facility”); and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Agency determined that the Facility will promote job 
opportunities, health, general prosperity and the economic welfare of the inhabitants of 
the County and the people of the State of New York and improve their standard of living, 
and thereby serve the public purposes of the Act and, as such, approved the same; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Agency leases the Facility to Mohawk, Adirondack & Northern 
Railroad Corp. and Genesee & Mohawk Valley Railroad Co., Inc. (collectively, the 
“Company”) for its operation pursuant to a First Amended and Restated Lease 
Agreement dated as of April 15, 2012 (the “First Amended Lease Agreement”); and 
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 WHEREAS, the Facility is fully exempt from real property taxes pursuant to the 
terms of a First Amended and Restated PILOT Agreement dated April 15, 2012 (the 
“First Amended PILOT Agreement”); and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Company has requested the Agency extend the term of the First 
Amended Lease Agreement and the First Amended PILOT Agreement for ten years, all 
to support the Company to continue to provide uninterrupted railroad transportation 
operations for its customers in Oneida County and to ensure the long term viability of 
local rail service in Oneida County (collectively, the “2023 Facility Extension”); and 
 
 WHEREAS, in its application, the Company has committed to retain 12 existing 
full time equivalent positions and create 2 additional full time equivalent positions prior 
to the third extended lease year as a result of the 2023 Facility Extension and as a 
condition of Financial Assistance (the “Employment Obligation”); and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Act authorizes and empowers the Agency to promote, develop, 
encourage and assist projects such as the Facility and to advance the job opportunities, 
health, general prosperity and economic welfare of the people of the State of New York; 
and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Agency is contemplating approving financial assistance in 
furtherance of the Facility by extending the period of time during which the Facility will 
be fully exempt from real property taxes for a period of ten additional years (the 
“Financial Assistance”), which Financial Assistance is a deviation from the Agency’s 
Uniform Tax Exemption Policy (the “Policy”), and which will be more particularly set 
forth in a final authorizing resolution; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Company estimates the value of the requested Financial 
Assistance is approximately $1,000,000.00; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Agency is contemplating deviating from its Policy by for the 
following reasons: 
 

o The nature of the proposed project: The Company provides necessary rail 
transportation services between businesses in Oneida County and CSX 
Corporation. 

 
o The nature of the property before the project begins: The project has been under 

a PILOT and an extension under the current terms is essential for the long-term 
viability of local rail service in Oneida County and uninterrupted railroad 
transportation operations. 
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o The economic condition of the area at the time of the application: The Facility is 
located in an area that was designated an economic development zone pursuant 
to Article 18-B of the General Municipal Law, and is therefore located in a "highly 
distressed area" (as defined in Section 854(18) of the New York General 
Municipal Law) and remains a targeted area for development. 

 
o The extent to which a project will create or retain permanent, private sector jobs: 

The company will be retaining 12 jobs and creating 2 jobs. 
 

o The impact of the project and the proposed tax exemptions on affected tax 
jurisdictions: It will have no impact on affected tax jurisdictions insofar as the 
project has been under a 100% PILOT for 20+ years 

 
o The impact of the proposed project on existing and proposed businesses and 

economic development projects in the County: Increasing of taxes on the project 
would result in increased fees to the users of the railroad service. The Company 
provides the sole rail service to the Griffiss Business & Technology Park and 
several tenants within the Park rely on its service. The company is dedicated to 
meeting the rail obligations to businesses under the rail lines. 

 
o The extent to which the proposed project will provide a benefit (economic or 

otherwise) not otherwise available within the County of Oneida: The sole 
business of the Company is to provide essential rail transportation services in 
Oneida County. 

 
 [To be further edited as necessary following Agency discussion at meeting] 
 
 WHEREAS, prior to the closing of an amended sale-leaseback transaction, and 
the granting of any Financial Assistance, a public hearing (the “Hearing”) will be held so 
that all persons with views in favor of or opposed to either the Financial Assistance 
contemplated by the Agency, or the location or nature of the Facility, can be heard; and 
 
 WHEREAS, notice of the Hearing will be given prior to the closing of an amended 
sale-leaseback transaction, and the granting of any Financial Assistance, and such 
notice (together with proof of publication) will be substantially in the form annexed 
hereto as Exhibit A; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the minutes of the Hearing are or will be annexed hereto as 
Exhibit B; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Agency has given due consideration to the application of the 
Company and to representations by the Company that the proposed amended sale-
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leaseback transaction is either an inducement to the Company to maintain and expand 
the Facility in the County or is necessary to maintain the competitive position of the 
Company in its industry; and 
 
 WHEREAS, pursuant to Article 8 of the Environmental Conservation Law and the 
regulations adopted pursuant thereto by the Department of Environmental Conservation 
of the State of New York (collectively, the “SEQR Act” or “SEQRA”), the Agency 
constitutes a “State Agency”; and 
 
 WHEREAS, to aid the Agency in determining whether the Facility may have a 
significant effect upon the environment, the Company has prepared and submitted to 
the Agency an Environmental Assessment Form and related documents (the 
“Questionnaire”) with respect to the Facility, a copy of which is on file at the office of the 
Agency; and 
 
 WHEREAS, by resolution adopted on March 16, 2012, the Agency determined 
that, based upon the review by the Agency of the materials submitted and the 
representation made by the Company relating to the Facility, the Facility would not have 
a "significant impact" or "significant effect" on the environment within the meaning of the 
SEQR Act; and 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Oneida County Industrial 
Development Agency (a majority of the members thereof affirmatively concurring) that: 
 
Section 1. (a) The 2023 Facility Extension and the Agency’s Financial Assistance 

therefor, will promote job opportunities, health, general prosperity 
and the economic welfare of the inhabitants of the County and the 
people of the State of New York and improve their standard of 
living, and thereby serve the public purposes of the Act and the 
same is, therefore, approved. 

 
  (b) It is desirable and in the public interest for the Agency to grant the 

Financial Assistance in support of the 2023 Facility Extension and 
enter into an amended sale-leaseback transaction for the purpose 
of providing continued Financial Assistance for the Facility, as 
reflected in the Company’s application to the Agency and as 
amended from time to time prior to the closing of the amended 
sale-leaseback transaction. 

 
  (c) The SEQRA findings adopted by the Agency previously satisfied 

the requirements of SEQRA, and no new SEQRA review is 
required in connection with the 2023 Facility Extension. 
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Section 2.  The form and substance of a proposed inducement agreement (in 

substantially the form presented to this meeting) by and between 
the Agency and the Company setting forth the undertakings of the 
Agency and the Company with respect to the closing of the 
amended sale-leaseback transaction, and the 2023 Facility 
Extension (the "Agreement") is hereby approved.  The Chairman of 
the Agency is hereby authorized, on behalf of the Agency, to 
execute and deliver the Agreement, with such changes in terms 
and form as the Chairman shall approve.  The execution thereof by 
the Chairman shall constitute conclusive evidence of such 
approval. 

 
Section 3. (a) The Agency shall assist the Company in the 2023 Facility 

Extension and will provide the Financial Assistance with respect 
thereto subject to (i) obtaining all necessary governmental 
approvals, (ii) approval of the directors of Company, (iii) approval of 
the members of the Agency, (iv) satisfactory completion of the 
environmental review of the Facility by the Agency in compliance 
with the State Environmental Quality Review Act, (v) agreement by 
the Agency and Company upon mutually acceptable terms and 
conditions for the amendment to the Leaseback Agreement and 
other documentation usual and customary to transactions of this 
nature, (vi) the condition that there are no changes in New York 
State Law which prohibit or limit the Agency from fulfilling its 
obligation and commitment as herein set forth to enter into the 
amended sale-leaseback transaction and (vii) payment by 
Company of the transaction fee and disbursements of the Agency 
and the fees and disbursements of transaction counsel, more 
particularly described in the Inducement Agreement. 

 
  (b) The Agency’s provision of Financial Assistance with respect to the 

2023 Facility Extension is also subject to the following conditions: 
 

i. The existing sale-leaseback transaction shall be converted to a 
lease-leaseback transaction, and at closing the Agency will 
reconvey fee title to all property back to the Company subject to 
the new leasehold estates to be created; 
 

ii. The Leaseback Agreement shall include insurance provisions 
containing such limits and terms to be recommended and 
approved by the Agency’s insurance agent; 
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iii. Due to the unique nature of the Facility being an infrastructure 

project and to ensure public safety, the Company agrees to 
regularly maintain the Facility and shall submit with its annual 
report a summary of annual maintenance activity and 
expenditures; 
 

iv. Evidence that the Company has entered into an agreement with 
GLDC to continue to provide rail service to Griffiss Business and 
Technology Park for a minimum of ten years; 
 

v. The following conditions in the existing Lease Agreement shall 
remain intact: 

 
(a) The Company agrees not to unreasonably withhold or 
unreasonably condition access or crossing or utility rights (the 
“Rights”) to any municipality located in the County of Oneida, 
and to charge no more for existing and future Rights than actual 
and reasonable out-of-pocket costs incurred by the Company 
attendant with the portion of tracks to which the Rights pertain. 
 
(b) The Company agrees not to unreasonably withhold or 
unreasonably condition easement or license agreements for 
utilities or access to adjacent private property owners provided 
however that the Company may charge such private property 
owners the actual costs incurred by the Company for creating 
and maintaining, and increased operating costs resulting from, 
such easements and licenses and further provided that the 
Company may charge private developers a market price for 
easements and licenses where other access is available to such 
private developers but access through and over the Facility is 
financially and/or practically advantageous to such private 
developers, and further provided that nothing contained herein 
shall be deemed or construed to prevent the Company from 
charging at all times and under all circumstances market prices 
for easements and licenses for utility (gas, oil, water, electricity, 
cable, telephone, Internet, etc.) transmission facilities to the 
extent they do not serve adjoining private property. 
 
(c) The Company agrees to be responsible for regular 
maintenance and cleanup of the Facility, provided however, that 
nothing shall preclude the Company from requiring third parties 
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to maintain and keep clean the specific areas covered by their 
easements or licenses. 

 
Section 4.  The Agency is hereby authorized and directed to schedule the 

Hearing, so that the Agency may receive comments from all 
interested parties on the financial assistance contemplated by the 
Agency and the Financial Assistance requested by Company. 

 
Section 5.  The law firm of Bond, Schoeneck & King, PLLC is appointed 

Transaction Counsel in connection with the amended sale-
leaseback transaction. 

 
Section 6.  Counsel to the Agency and Transaction Counsel are hereby 

authorized to work with counsel to Company and others to prepare, 
for submission to the Agency, all documents necessary to effect the 
amended sale-leaseback transaction. 

 
Section 7.   The Chairman of the Agency is hereby authorized and directed 

(i) to distribute copies of this resolution to Company; (ii) distribute 
copies of this resolution (including the reasons for deviating from 
Policy) and notice of the Hearing by certified mail, return receipt 
requested, to all affected taxing jurisdictions and (iii) to do such 
further things or perform such acts as may be necessary or 
convenient to implement the provisions of this resolution. 

 
Section 8.  This resolution shall take effect immediately. 
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STATE OF NEW YORK ) 
    : ss.: 
COUNTY OF ONEIDA ) 
 
 I, the undersigned Secretary of the Oneida County Industrial Development 
Agency DO HEREBY CERTIFY THAT: 
 
 I have compared the foregoing copy of a resolution of the Oneida County 
Industrial Development Agency (the “Agency”), with the original thereof on file in the 
office of the Agency, and that the same is a true and correct copy of such resolution 
and of the proceedings of the Agency in connection with such matter. 
 
 Such resolution was passed at a meeting of the Agency duly convened in 
public session on March 28, 2023 at eight a.m., local time, at Rome, New York 
which the following members were: 
 
Members Present:  
Members Present: WebEx:  
 
 
EDGE Staff Present:  
EDGE Staff Present: WebEx:  
 
 
Other Attendees:   
Other Attendees:  WebEx:  
 
 
 The question of the adoption of the foregoing resolution was duly put to vote, 
which resulted as follows: 
 

Voting Aye Voting Nay 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

and, therefore, the resolution was declared duly adopted. 
 
 The Agreement and the Application are in substantially the form presented to 
and approved at such meeting. 
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 I FURTHER CERTIFY that (i) all members of the Agency had due notice of 
said meeting, (ii) the meeting was open for the public to attend and public notice of 
the date, time and location for the meeting was duly given, (iii) the meeting in all 
respects was duly held, and (iv) there was a quorum present throughout the 
meeting. 
 
 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand as of 
____________________, 2023. 
 
 
 
 _____________________________________________ 
 Shawna Papale, Secretary
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EXHIBIT A 
 

NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING 
 

 NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that public hearings pursuant to Article 18-A of 
the New York State General Municipal Law, will be held by the Oneida County 
Industrial Development Agency (the “Agency”) on the ____ day of April 2023 at 
____, local time, at 584 Phoenix Drive, Rome, New York and on the ____ day of 
April 2023 at ____, local time, at Oneida County Office Building, [IDENTIFY 
LOCATION], 800 Park Avenue, Utica, New York in connection with the following 
matters: 
  
 The Agency acquired fee title to a certain industrial development facility 
consisting of a railroad yard in the City of Utica, trackage in the City of Rome and a 
line of rail running from City of Utica to the Oneida County – Lewis County line north 
of Boonville (collectively, the “Improvements”), all situated on a 450± acre parcel of 
land running through the City of Rome, the City of Utica, the Village of Boonville, the 
Village of Remsen, the Village of Holland Patent, the Town of Boonville, the Town of 
Steuben, the Town of Trenton and the Town of Marcy (collectively, the “Land”); and 
all equipment used in connection with the operation of the Improvements (the 
“Equipment”), all to be used for the purpose of providing essential rail service to 
customers in Oneida County (the Land, the Improvements and the Equipment 
referred to collectively as the “Facility”). 
 
 The Agency leases the Facility to Mohawk, Adirondack & Northern Railroad 
Corp. and Genesee & Mohawk Valley Railroad Co., Inc. (collectively, the 
“Company”) for its operation pursuant to a First Amended and Restated Lease 
Agreement dated as of April 15, 2012 (the “First Amended Lease Agreement”). The 
Facility is fully exempt from real property taxes pursuant to the terms of a First 
Amended and Restated PILOT Agreement dated April 15, 2012 (the “First Amended 
PILOT Agreement”). The Company has requested the Agency extend the term of the 
First Amended Lease Agreement and the First Amended PILOT Agreement for an 
additional ten years, all to support the Company as it continues to provide 
uninterrupted railroad transportation operations to its customers and to ensure the 
long term viability of local rail service in Oneida County (collectively, the “2023 
Facility Extension”). At the end of the lease term, the Agency will convey the Facility 
to Company. The Facility will be initially owned and/or operated by the Company. 
 
 The Agency is contemplating providing the above-described financial 
assistance in connection with the 2023 Facility Extension, which financial assistance 
is a deviation from the Agency’s Uniform Tax Exemption Policy, which is more 
particularly described in the Inducement Resolution adopted by the Agency on 
March 28, 2023 and to be confirmed in the final authorizing resolution to be adopted 
prior to the closing of the transactions described herein. 
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 A representative of the Agency will at the above-stated time and place hear 
and accept written comments from all persons with views in favor of or opposed to 
either the proposed financial assistance to Company or the location or nature of the 
Facility. Members of the public may listen to the Public Hearing by calling 1-408-418-
9388 (Access code: ____________). Comments may also be submitted to the 
Agency in writing or electronically. Minutes of the Public Hearing will be transcribed 
and posted on the Agency’s website. A copy of the Application for Financial 
Assistance filed by the Company with the Agency, including an analysis of the costs 
and benefits of the proposed Facility, is available for public inspection at the offices 
of the Agency, 584 Phoenix Drive, Rome, New York. 
 
     ONEIDA COUNTY INDUSTRIAL 
     DEVELOPMENT AGENCY 
 
Dated:  _____, 2023   By:/s/ Shawna M. Papale, Executive Director  
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EXHIBIT B 

MINUTES OF PUBLIC HEARING 
 

Oneida County Industrial Development Agency 
Mohawk, Adirondack & Northern Railroad Corp./ 

Genesee & Mohawk Valley Railroad Co., Inc. 
2023 Facility Expansion Project 

 
1. Timothy Fitzgerald, representing the Oneida County Industrial Development 

Agency (the “Agency”), called the hearing to order at _____ a.m. 

2. Mr. Fitzgerald being the Assistant Secretary of the Agency recorded the 
minutes of the hearing. 

3. Mr. Fitzgerald then described the proposed project and related financial 
assistance as follows: 

 The Agency acquired fee title to a certain industrial development 
facility consisting of a railroad yard in the City of Utica, trackage in the 
City of Rome and a line of rail running from City of Utica to the Oneida 
County – Lewis County line north of Boonville (collectively, the 
“Improvements”), all situated on a 450± acre parcel of land running 
through the City of Rome, the City of Utica, the Village of Boonville, the 
Village of Remsen, the Village of Holland Patent, the Town of 
Boonville, the Town of Steuben, the Town of Trenton and the Town of 
Marcy (collectively, the “Land”); and all equipment used in connection 
with the operation of the Improvements (the “Equipment”), all to be 
used for the purpose of providing essential rail service to customers in 
Oneida County (the Land, the Improvements and the Equipment 
referred to collectively as the “Facility”). 

 
 The Agency leases the Facility to Mohawk, Adirondack & Northern 

Railroad Corp. and Genesee & Mohawk Valley Railroad Co., Inc. 
(collectively, the “Company”) for its operation pursuant to a First 
Amended and Restated Lease Agreement dated as of April 15, 2012 
(the “First Amended Lease Agreement”). The Facility is fully exempt 
from real property taxes pursuant to the terms of a First Amended and 
Restated PILOT Agreement dated April 15, 2012 (the “First Amended 
PILOT Agreement”). The Company has requested the Agency extend 
the term of the First Amended Lease Agreement and the First 
Amended PILOT Agreement for an additional ten years, all to support 
the Company as it continues to provide uninterrupted railroad 
transportation operations to its customers and to ensure the long term 
viability of local rail service in Oneida County (collectively, the “2023 
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Facility Extension”). At the end of the lease term, the Agency will 
convey the Facility to Company. The Facility will be initially owned 
and/or operated by the Company. 

 
 The Agency is contemplating providing the above-described financial 

assistance in connection with the 2023 Facility Extension, which 
financial assistance is a deviation from the Agency’s Uniform Tax 
Exemption Policy, which is more particularly described in the 
Inducement Resolution adopted by the Agency on March 28, 2023 and 
to be confirmed in the final authorizing resolution to be adopted prior to 
the closing of the transactions described herein. 

 
4. Mr. Fitzgerald then opened up the hearing for comments from the floor for or 

against the proposed financial assistance and the location and nature of the 
Facility.  Attached is a listing of the persons heard and a summary of their 
views. 

5. Mr. Fitzgerald then asked if there were any further comments, and, there 
being none, the hearing was closed at _____ a.m. 

 ___________________________________ 
 Tim Fitzgerald, Assistant Secretary 
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STATE OF NEW YORK ) 
 :  SS.: 
COUNTY OF ONEIDA ) 

I, the undersigned Secretary of the Oneida County Industrial Development 
Agency, DO HEREBY CERTIFY: 

 That I have compared the foregoing copy of the minutes of a public hearing 
held by the Oneida County Industrial Development Agency (the “Agency”) on _____, 
2023 at _____ local time, 584 Phoenix Drive, City of Rome, New York, with the 
original thereof on file in the office of the Agency, and that the same is a true and 
correct copy of the minutes in connection with such matter. 
 
 I FURTHER CERTIFY that (i) the hearing was open for the public to attend 
and public notice of the date, time and location for said hearing was duly given, 
(ii) the hearing in all respects was duly held, and (iii) members of the public had an 
opportunity to be heard. 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand as of _____, 2023. 
 

_________________________________ 
Secretary 







Important Notes to Applicant: 

Upon the submission of this application to the OCIDA, the application becomes a public 
document. Be advised that any action brought before the Agency is public information. All 
agendas for the OCIDA are issued publicly prior to the full agency meeting. Upon the submission 
of this application to the OCIDA, the application becomes a public document and OCIDA is 
required by law to post on its website and make available to the public this Application and 
supporting materials. If when completing this Application, you deem any information to be 
specifically exempted from disclosure under Article Six of the Public Officers Law, please answer 
the question “This information is deemed to be exempt from disclosure under Article Six of the 
Public Officers Law and is submitted on the attached confidential addendum.” It is acceptable to 
submit any confidential addendum electronically as a .pdf file separate from the application, but 
any confidential addendum must still be submitted with the hard copy of the full application 
(see Page 1).  Please answer any such questions on a separate Addendum titled, “Confidential 
and Protected by Article Six of the Public Officers Law.” If OCIDA is challenged to produce any 
information the Applicant identifies as protected, the Applicant will be required at its sole cost 
to defend such assertion on behalf of OCIDA. 

The information requested by this application is necessary to determine the eligibility of your 
project for OCIDA benefits. Please answer all questions and respond “Not Applicable”, “NA”, or 
“none” where appropriate. If you’re response is an estimate, please indicate so. Attach 
additional sheets if more space is needed for a response. All applications must include a 
completed and signed NYS SEQR form and Cost Benefit Analysis form (please consult with 
OCIDA) before the application is considered complete. 

By signing and submitting this Application, the Applicant acknowledges that it received a copy 
of the Uniform Tax Exemption Policy and the Oneida County IDA Penalty for Failure to Meet 
Employment Levels as adopted by the Agency and Agency Memorandums pertaining to the 
benefits of projects financed through the Agency.

A project financed through the Agency involves the preparation and execution of significant 
legal documents. Please consult with an attorney before signing any documents in connection 
with the proposed project. You will receive an engagement letter from the OCIDA legal counsel. 
You will be asked to sign the engagement letter acknowledging you will be responsible for all 
legal fees of OCIDA legal counsel and that you understand the process. Should you not close 
and legal services have been rendered by the OCIDA legal counsel, Applicant will be responsible 
for those costs. 

If your project requires a public hearing, a representative of the applicant is required to be 
present. A date will be coordinated by the OCIDA legal counsel. 

If you have any questions how to calculate the OCIDA’s application fee please refer to the 
enclosed Memorandum to Companies -Sale Leaseback Transactions or contact the OCIDA.

(2)















(.75%)

(8.75%)



Please be as specific as possible







(Note:   the present owner is not necessarily the user of the facility, but that party which holds legal title to the facility.) 





155 Mappa
Ave.
Barneveld,
NY 13304













NYS SEQRA Environmental Review

• The applicant must complete, sign and return to the IDA either the Short Form
Environmental Assessment Form (SEAF) or the Full Environmental Assessment Form
(FEAF). See the NYS DEC website for the most current versions of these documents.

https://www.dec.ny.gov/permits/6191.html

• To determine which EAF form is appropriate for the project, the applicant
should consult with its engineer or legal counsel.

• It is the IDA’s strong preference that the municipality that governs the jurisdiction
where the project is located (e.g., a Planning Board, Zoning Board or other supervisory
board) serve as lead agency for the SEQR review.

• In limited cases, the IDA will act as lead agency, but it may lead to additional cost
to the applicant if a review is required to make a determination of environmental impact.

• If another public body is serving as lead agency for the SEQR review the applicant
should provide the IDA with a signed Part 2 (and Part 3 if using the Long Form) and any
minutes of meetings that detail the lead agency’s determination.

• The IDA cannot grant any financial assistance until the SEQR review process is
complete.



o
o

o

o



















Item Amount

Total Projected Year 1 Tax Obligation with PILOT 50,000.00$                    

Project Value Percentage of Project Project Uniform Assessed Taxable 2022-2023 Tax Rates Total
Taxing Jurisdiction (DCF Model) on Property Property Value Percentage Value Exemption Value (Per $1000) Tax Obligation
Tax Map Parcel No.  194.000-1-47

Tax Map Parcel No.  194.000-1-48

Total Projected Year 1 Tax Obligation Without PILOT 3,447,578.00$               2,068,547.00$               2,068,547.00$               47.791489$                   98,858.94$                    

Projected PILOT Benefit Analysis
Taxes

Tax Rates Taxes Taxes with PILOT
Year Tax Assessment (2% Escalator) Without Exemption with 485-b Exemption (2% Escalator) Variance

Total 3,229,811$                    809,506$                       1,601,515$                    1,628,296$                    
Total PILOT Benefit: 1,628,296$                    

ONEIDA COUNTY INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY

COLLINS SOLAR PROJECT

2022-2023 Real Property Tax Obligation without PILOT Agreement

Year 1 Real Property Tax Obligation with PILOT Agreement















































































































NOTICE OF GROUND LEASE

NOTICE OF GROUND LEASE 
SCOTT R. COLLINS, 

COLLINS SOLAR, LLC, 



[Signature Page to Follows]







EXHIBIT A
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Transcript Document No. [   ] 

 

 

Inducement Resolution 

Collins Solar, LLC 

Oneida East Community Solar Facility 
 
 
RESOLUTION OF THE ONEIDA COUNTY INDUSTRIAL 
DEVELOPMENT AGENCY TAKING PRELIMINARY OFFICIAL 
ACTION IN CONNECTION WITH A LEASE-LEASEBACK 
TRANSACTION FOR THE BENEFIT OF COLLINS SOLAR, LLC, 
ACCEPTING AN APPLICATION, AUTHORIZING THE 
EXECUTION AND DELIVERY OF AN INDUCEMENT 
AGREEMENT, AUTHORIZING THE AGENCY TO CONDUCT A 
PUBLIC HEARING, AND MAKING CERTAIN FINDINGS AND 
DETERMINATIONS WITH RESPECT TO THE PROJECT. 

 
 WHEREAS, Collins Solar, LLC, on behalf of itself and/or the principals of Collins Solar, 
LLC, and/or an entity formed or to be formed on behalf of any of the foregoing (collectively, the 
“Company”) has applied to the Oneida County Industrial Development Agency (the “Agency”) to 
enter into a transaction in which the Agency will assist in construction of an approximately 5 
megawatt AC solar facility consisting of racking and foundations, inverters and transformers, 
necessary electrical interconnections and all improvements and connections required to transfer 
and deliver generation offsite, access road and turnaround, security fencing and gating; safety 
signage and solar photo voltaic (“PV”) panels (collectively, the “Improvements”), situated on a 
21.78± acre portion of two parcels of land measuring 216.5± acre in the aggregate located at 
155 Mappa Avenue, Town of Trenton, County of Oneida (the “Land”), all for the purpose of 
furthering the mission of New York State renewable energy goals by providing renewable 
energy for consumers in the region under the New York State Community Solar Program (the 
Land and the Improvements are referred to collectively as the “Facility” and the construction of 
the Improvements is referred to as the “Project”); and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Land will be leased by Scott R. Collins (the “Owner”) to the Company 
pursuant to a lease (the “Ground Lease”); and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Company will lease the Facility to the Agency, pursuant to Article 18-A 
of the General Municipal Law of the State of New York and Chapter 372 of the Laws of 1970 of 
the State of New York, as may be amended from time to time (collectively, the “Act”) and the 
Agency will lease the Facility back to the Company pursuant to a Leaseback Agreement (the 
“Leaseback Agreement”); and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Act authorizes and empowers the Agency to promote, develop, 
encourage and assist projects such as the Facility, to promote the development of renewable 
energy projects to support  New York State’s renewable  energy  goals  as  may  be established 
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or amended from time to time, and to advance the job opportunities, health, general prosperity 
and economic welfare of the people of the State of New York; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Facility constitutes a “community solar project” as defined by the New 
York State Energy and Research Development Authority (“NYSERDA”) and a “renewable 
energy project” as defined in the Act; and 
 
 WHEREAS, on September 18, 2020 as amended on April 30, 2021 and March 25, 2022 
the Agency adopted a uniform tax exemption policy with respect to community solar projects 
(the “Solar UTEP”), in which it identifies terms of financial assistance for community solar 
projects and the related project eligibility criteria; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Agency contemplates that it will provide financial assistance to the 
Company in connection with the Project in the form of provision for a fixed payment in lieu of 
taxes (the “PILOT Payments”) to be made by the Company to the Agency for a period of twenty-
five years, during which time the Company shall make PILOT Payments equal to $10,000 per 
MW-AC of nameplate capacity with an annual increase of two percent (2%) applied during year 
2 through year 25, which will be allocated among the affected tax jurisdictions in the same 
proportion that taxes would have been paid but for the Agency’s involvement (the “Financial 
Assistance”), which Financial Assistance is consistent with the Solar UTEP, and which will be 
more particularly set forth in a final authorizing resolution; and 
 
 WHEREAS, based upon representations made by the Company in its Application for 
Financial Assistance dated March 13, 2023 (the “Application”) the value of the Financial 
Assistance is described as follows: 
 

• Real property tax abatement   $1,628,296.00 (approximately) 
• Mortgage recording tax exemption Not requested 

 
 WHEREAS, prior to the closing of a lease-leaseback transaction, and the granting of 
Financial Assistance, a public hearing (the “Hearing”) will be held so that all persons with views 
in favor of or opposed to either the Financial Assistance contemplated by the Agency, or the 
location or nature of the Facility, can be heard; and 
 
 WHEREAS, notice of the Hearing will be given prior to the closing of a lease-leaseback 
transaction, and the granting of any Financial Assistance, and such notice (together with proof 
of publication) will be substantially in the form annexed hereto as Exhibit A; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the minutes of the Hearing are or will be annexed hereto as Exhibit B; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Agency has given due consideration to the Application and to 
representations by the Company that the proposed lease-leaseback transaction is either an 
inducement to the Company to maintain and expand the Facility in the County or is necessary to 
maintain the competitive position of the Company in its industry; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Financial Assistance is conditioned upon the Company’s 
representations that the project will be completed substantially in accordance with the project 
that is contained in the Application (the “Project Obligation”); and 
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 WHEREAS, pursuant to Article 8 of the Environmental Conservation Law and the 
regulations adopted pursuant thereto by the Department of Environmental Conservation of the 
State of New York (collectively, the “SEQR Act” or “SEQRA”), the Agency constitutes a “State 
Agency”; and 
 
 WHEREAS, to aid the Agency in determining whether the Facility may have a significant 
effect upon the environment, the Company has prepared and submitted to the Agency an 
Environmental Assessment Form and related documents (the “Questionnaire”) with respect to 
the Facility, a copy of which is on file at the office of the Agency; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Town of Trenton Planning Board acted as lead agency for the purposes 
of SEQRA, and, prior to the granting of Financial Assistance, the Agency will adopt the 
determination and findings of the lead agency for purposes of SEQRA. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Oneida County Industrial Development 
Agency (a majority of the members thereof affirmatively concurring) that: 
 
Section 1. (a) The Agency accepts the Application submitted by the Company. 
 
  (b) The acquisition, construction and equipping of the Facility and the 

Agency’s financial assistance therefor, will promote job opportunities, 
health, general prosperity and the economic welfare of the inhabitants of 
the County and the people of the State of New York and improve their 
standard of living by supporting New York State’s renewable energy  
goals, and thereby serve the public purposes of the Act and the same is, 
therefore, approved. 

 
  (b) It is desirable and in the public interest for the Agency to enter into a 

lease-leaseback transaction for the purpose of providing Financial 
Assistance for the acquisition, construction and equipping of the Facility, 
as reflected in the Application and as amended from time to time prior to 
the closing of the lease-leaseback transaction. 

 
  (c) Based upon representations made by the Company in the Application, the 

Agency determines that the Project is eligible for Financial Assistance 
under the criteria described in the Solar UTEP. 

 
Section 2.  The form and substance of a proposed inducement agreement (in 

substantially the form presented to this meeting) by and among the 
Agency and the Company setting forth the undertakings of the Agency 
and the Company with respect to the closing of the lease-leaseback 
transaction, and the development of the Facility (the "Agreement") is 
hereby approved.  The Chairman of the Agency is hereby authorized, on 
behalf of the Agency, to execute and deliver the Agreement, with such 
changes in terms and form as the Chairman shall approve. The execution 
thereof by the Chairman shall constitute conclusive evidence of such 
approval. 
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Section 3.  The Agency shall assist the Company in the acquisition, construction and 

equipping of the Facility and will provide the Financial Assistance with 
respect thereto subject to (i) obtaining all necessary governmental 
approvals, (ii) approval of the members of the Company, (iii) approval of 
the members of the Agency, (iv) receipt by the members of all comments 
submitted to the Agency at the Hearing, (v) agreement by the Agency and 
the Company upon mutually acceptable terms and conditions for the 
Leaseback Agreement and other documentation usual and customary to 
transactions of this nature, (vi) the condition that there are no changes in 
New York State Law which prohibit or limit the Agency from fulfilling its 
obligation and commitment as herein set forth to enter into the lease-
leaseback transaction, (v) provision in the Leaseback Agreement for an 
annual payment to the Town of Trenton (the “Host Community”) in lieu of 
a Host Community Agreement, (viii) a decommissioning plan acceptable 
to the Agency and the Host Community, (ix) proof that provision has been 
made to reserve funds for decommissioning of the Project, and 
(x) payment by the Company of the Agency's transaction fee and the fees 
and disbursements of bond counsel or transaction counsel, more 
particularly described in the Inducement Agreement. 

 
Section 4.  The Agency is hereby authorized and directed to schedule the Hearing, 

so that the Agency may receive comments from all interested parties on 
the financial assistance contemplated by the Agency and the Financial 
Assistance requested by the Company. 

 
Section 5.  The law firm of Bond, Schoeneck & King, PLLC is appointed Transaction 

Counsel in connection with the lease-leaseback transaction. 
 
Section 6.  Counsel to the Agency and Transaction Counsel are hereby authorized to 

work with counsel to the Company and others to prepare, for submission 
to the Agency, all documents necessary to effect the lease-leaseback 
transaction. 

 
Section 7.   The Chairman of the Agency is hereby authorized and directed (i) to 

distribute copies of this resolution to the Company and (ii) to do such 
further things or perform such acts as may be necessary or convenient to 
implement the provisions of this resolution. 

 
Section 8.  This resolution shall take effect immediately. 
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STATE OF NEW YORK ) 
    : ss.: 
COUNTY OF ONEIDA ) 
 
 I, the undersigned Secretary of the Oneida County Industrial Development Agency 
DO HEREBY CERTIFY THAT: 
 
 I have compared the foregoing copy of a resolution of the Oneida County Industrial 
Development Agency (the “Agency”), with the original thereof on file in the office of the 
Agency, and that the same is a true and correct copy of such resolution and of the 
proceedings of the Agency in connection with such matter. 
 
 Such resolution was passed at a meeting of the Agency duly convened on March 28, 
2023 at eight a.m., local time, at Rome, New York which the following members were: 
 

Members Present:  
Members Present Webex/Teleconference:  

Member Excused:  

EDGE Staff Present:  
 
EDGE Staff Present Webex/Teleconference:  
 
Others Present:  
 
Others Present Webex/Teleconference:  
 

 
 The question of the adoption of the foregoing resolution was duly put to vote, which 
resulted as follows: 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 and, therefore, the resolution was declared duly adopted. 
 
 The Agreement and the Application are in substantially the form presented to and 
approved at such meeting. 
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I FURTHER CERTIFY that (i) all members of the Agency had due notice of said 
meeting, (ii) the meeting was open for the public to attend in person and public notice of the 
time and place of said meeting was duly given, (iii) the meeting in all respects was duly held, 
and (iv) there was a quorum present throughout the meeting. 
 
 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand on _____, 2023 
 
 
 
 _____________________________________________ 
 Shawna Papale, Secretary
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EXHIBIT A 

 
NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING 

 NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that a public hearing pursuant to Article 18-A of the 
New York State General Municipal Law, will be held by the Oneida County Industrial 
Development Agency (the “Agency”) on April __, 2023, at _____ a.m., local time, at Town of 
Trenton Municipal Center, 8520 Old Poland Road, Barneveld, Town of Trenton, Oneida 
County, New York in connection with the following matters: 
  
 Collins Solar, LLC, on behalf of itself and/or the principals of Collins Solar, LLC, 
and/or an entity formed or to be formed on behalf of any of the foregoing (collectively, the 
“Company”) applied to the Agency to enter into a transaction in which the Agency will assist 
in construction of an approximately 5 megawatt AC solar facility consisting of racking and 
foundations, inverters and transformers, necessary electrical interconnections and all 
improvements and connections required to transfer and deliver generation offsite, access 
road and turnaround, security fencing and gating; safety signage and solar photo voltaic 
(“PV”) panels (collectively, the “Improvements”), situated on a 21.78± acre portion of two 
parcels of land measuring 216.5± acre in the aggregate located at 155 Mappa Avenue, 
Town of Trenton, County of Oneida (the “Land”), all for the purpose of furthering the mission 
of New York State renewable energy goals by providing renewable energy for consumers in 
the region under the New York State Community Solar Program (the Land and the 
Improvements are referred to collectively as the “Facility” and the construction of the 
Improvements is referred to as the “Project”). The Facility will be initially operated and/or 
managed by the Company. Scott R. Collins (the “Owner”) owns the Land and leases it to the 
Company, and the Company will lease the Facility to the Agency. 
 
 The Agency contemplates providing financial assistance to the Company in the form 
of reduction of real property taxes for a period of twenty-five years, during which time the 
Company shall make PILOT Payments equal to $10,000.00 per MW-AC of nameplate 
capacity with an annual increase of two percent (2%) applied during year 2 through year 25, 
which financial assistance is consistent with the Agency’s Uniform Tax Exemption Policy 
(Community Solar Policy), to be more particularly described in a Final Authorizing 
Resolution to be adopted by the Agency prior to the closing of the transactions described 
herein. 
 
 A representative of the Agency will at the above-stated time and place hear and 
accept written comments from all persons with views in favor of or opposed to either the 
proposed financial assistance to the Company or the location or nature of the Facility. 
Comments may also be submitted to the Agency in writing or electronically prior to the 
Public Hearing. Members of the public may also listen to the Public Hearing by calling 1-
408-418-9388 (Access code: 263 426 20897). Minutes of the Public Hearing will be 
transcribed and posted on the Agency’ s website. A copy of the Application for Financial 
Assistance filed by the Company with the Agency, including an analysis of the costs and 
benefits of the proposed Project, is available for public inspection at the offices of the 
Agency, 584 Phoenix Drive, Rome, New York. 
 
      ONEIDA COUNTY INDUSTRIAL 
      DEVELOPMENT AGENCY 
 
Dated:  April __, 2023    By:/s/ Shawna M. Papale, Executive Director  
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EXHIBIT B 

MINUTES OF PUBLIC HEARING 
CONDUCTED ON APRIL __, 2023 

 
Oneida County Industrial Development Agency 

Lease-Leaseback Transaction 
Collins Solar, LLC (Barneveld Community Solar Facility) 

1. Mark Kaucher, representing the Oneida County Industrial Development 
Agency (the “Agency”), called the hearing to order at ________ a.m. 

2. Mr. Kaucher also recorded the minutes of the hearing. 

3. Mr. Kaucher then described the proposed project and related financial 
assistance as follows: 

Collins Solar, LLC, on behalf of itself and/or the principals of Collins 
Solar, LLC, and/or an entity formed or to be formed on behalf of any of 
the foregoing (collectively, the “Company”) applied to the Agency to 
enter into a transaction in which the Agency will assist in construction 
of an approximately 5 megawatt AC solar facility consisting of racking 
and foundations, inverters and transformers, necessary electrical 
interconnections and all improvements and connections required to 
transfer and deliver generation offsite, access road and turnaround, 
security fencing and gating; safety signage and solar photo voltaic 
(“PV”) panels (collectively, the “Improvements”), situated on a 21.78± 
acre portion of two parcels of land measuring 216.5± acre in the 
aggregate located at 155 Mappa Avenue, Town of Trenton, County of 
Oneida (the “Land”), all for the purpose of furthering the mission of 
New York State renewable energy goals by providing renewable 
energy for consumers in the region under the New York State 
Community Solar Program (the Land and the Improvements are 
referred to collectively as the “Facility” and the construction of the 
Improvements is referred to as the “Project”). The Facility will be 
initially operated and/or managed by the Company. Scott R. Collins 
(the “Owner”) owns the Land and leases it to the Company, and the 
Company will lease the Facility to the Agency. 
 
The Agency contemplates providing financial assistance to the 
Company in the form of reduction of real property taxes for a period of 
twenty-five years, during which time the Company shall make PILOT 
Payments equal to $10,000.00 per MW-AC of nameplate capacity with 
an annual increase of two percent (2%) applied during year 2 through 
year 25, which financial assistance is consistent with the Agency’s 
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Uniform Tax Exemption Policy (Community Solar Policy), to be more 
particularly described in a Final Authorizing Resolution to be adopted 
by the Agency prior to the closing of the transactions described herein. 
 

4. Mr. Kaucher then opened up the hearing for comments from the floor for or 
against the proposed financial assistance and the location and nature of the 
Facility.  Attached is a listing of the persons heard and a summary of their 
views. 

5. Mr. Kaucher then asked if there were any further comments, and, there being 
none, the hearing was closed at ______ a.m. 

 

 ___________________________________ 
 Mark Kaucher 
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STATE OF NEW YORK ) 
 :  SS.: 
COUNTY OF ONEIDA ) 

I, the undersigned Secretary of the Oneida County Industrial Development 
Agency, DO HEREBY CERTIFY: 

 That I have compared the foregoing copy of the minutes of public hearing 
held by the Oneida County Industrial Development Agency (the “Agency”) on April 
__, 2023 at _____ a.m. local time, at Town of Trenton Municipal Center, 8520 Old 
Poland Road, Barneveld, Town of Trenton, New York, with the original thereof on file 
in the office of the Agency, and that the same is a true and correct copy of the 
minutes in connection with such matter. 
 
 I FURTHER CERTIFY that (i) pursuant to Title 1 of Article 18-A of the New 
York General Municipal Law, the hearing was open to the general public to attend, 
and public notice of the time and place of said hearing was duly given in accordance 
with such Title 1 of Article 18-A, (ii) the hearing in all respects were duly held, and 
(iii) members of the public had an opportunity to be heard. 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand as of _____, 2023. 
 

___________________________________ 
Secretary 
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Transcript Document No. [    ] 

 

 

SEQR Resolution 

Collins Solar, LLC 

Barneveld Community Solar Facility 
 
RESOLUTION OF THE ONEIDA COUNTY INDUSTRIAL 
DEVELOPMENT AGENCY DETERMINING THAT ACTION 
TO PROVIDE FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE RELATING TO A 
PROJECT FOR THE BENEFIT OF COLLINS SOLAR, LLC 
WILL NOT HAVE A SIGNIFICANT EFFECT ON THE 
ENVIRONMENT 

 
 WHEREAS, Collins Solar, LLC, on behalf of itself and/or the principals of Collins 
Solar, LLC, and/or an entity formed or to be formed on behalf of any of the foregoing 
(collectively, the “Company”) applied to the Agency to enter into a transaction in which 
the Agency will assist in construction of an approximately 5 megawatt AC solar facility 
consisting of racking and foundations, inverters and transformers, necessary electrical 
interconnections and all improvements and connections required to transfer and deliver 
generation offsite, access road and turnaround, security fencing and gating; safety 
signage and solar photo voltaic (“PV”) panels (collectively, the “Improvements”), 
situated on a 21.78± acre portion of two parcels of land measuring 216.5± acre in the 
aggregate located at 155 Mappa Avenue, Town of Trenton, County of Oneida (the 
“Land”), all for the purpose of furthering the mission of New York State renewable 
energy goals by providing renewable energy for consumers in the region under the New 
York State Community Solar Program (the Land and the Improvements are referred to 
collectively as the “Facility” and the construction of the Improvements is referred to as 
the “Project”); and 
 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Article 8 of the Environmental Conservation Law, 
Chapter 43-B of the Consolidated Laws of New York, as amended (the "SEQR Act") 
and the regulations adopted pursuant thereto by the Department of Environmental 
Conservation of the State of New York, being 6 NYCRR Part 617, as amended (the 
"Regulations"), the Agency desires to determine whether the construction and equipping 
of the Facility may have a "significant effect on the environment" (as said quoted term is 
defined in the SEQR Act and the Regulations) and therefore require the preparation of 
an environmental impact statement; and 
 

WHEREAS, to aid the Agency in determining whether the construction, and 
equipping of the Facility may have a significant effect upon the environment, the 
Company has prepared and submitted to the Agency a long environmental assessment 
form (the "EAF"), a copy of which was presented to and reviewed by the Agency at this 
meeting and copies of which are on file at the office of the Agency; and 
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WHEREAS, to aid the Agency in determining whether the Project may have a 

significant effect upon the environment, the Agency has reviewed the minutes of the 
May 31, 2022 meeting of the Town of Trenton Planning Board, its findings and negative 
declaration in connection with its site plan review (the “Planning Board Review”), a copy 
of which was presented to and reviewed by the Agency at this meeting and copies of 
which are on file at the office of the Agency; and 

 
WHEREAS, pursuant to the Regulations, the Agency has examined the EAF and 

the Planning Board Review in order to make a determination as to the potential 
environmental significance of the Facility. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF 

THE ONEIDA COUNTY INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY AS FOLLOWS: 
 

Section 1. Based on an examination of the Application, the EAF, the 
Planning Board Review, and based further upon the Agency's knowledge of the area 
surrounding the Facility and such further investigation of the Facility and its 
environmental effects as the Agency has deemed appropriate, the Agency makes the 
following findings and determinations with respect to the Facility: 
 

(A) The Facility is as described in the Application and the EAF; 
 

(B) The Facility constitutes a "Type 1 Action" (as defined in the 
Regulations); 

 
(C) No potentially significant impacts on the environment are 

noted in the EAF for the Facility, and none are known to the Agency; 
 

(D) The Facility will not result in (i) substantial adverse change in 
existing air quality; ground or surface water quality or quantity, traffic or noise 
levels; a substantial increase in solid waste production; or a substantial increase 
in potential for erosion, flooding, leaching or drainage problems; (ii) the removal 
or destruction of large quantities of vegetation or fauna; substantial interference 
with the movement of a resident or migratory fish or wildlife species; impacts on a 
significant habitat area; substantial adverse impacts on threatened or 
endangered species of animal or plant, or the habitat of such species; or (iii) 
other significant adverse impacts to natural resources;  

 
(E) The Facility will not affect a critical environmental area as 

designated pursuant to 6 NYCRR 617.14(g);  
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(F) The Facility will not conflict with the community's current 
plans or goals as officially approved or adopted; 

 
(G) The Facility will not result in the impairment of the character 

or quality of important historical, archeological, architectural, or aesthetic 
resources or of existing community or neighborhood character;  

 
(H) The Facility will not result in a major change in the use of 

either the quantity or type of energy; 
 

(I) The Facility will not result in the creation of a hazard to 
human health; 

 
(J) The Facility will not result in a substantial change in the use, 

or intensity of use, of land including architectural, open space or recreational 
resources, or in its capacity to support existing uses; 

 
(K) The Facility will not result in encouraging or attracting of a 

large number of people to a place or places for more than a few days, compared 
to the number of people who would come to such place absent the action; 

 
(L) The Facility will not result in the creation of a material 

demand for other actions that would result in one or more of the above 
consequences;  

 
(M) The Facility will not result in changes in two or more 

elements of the environment, no one of which has a significant impact on the 
environment, but when considered together result in a substantial adverse impact 
on the environment; and 

 
(N) The Facility will not result in two or more related actions 

undertaken, funded or approved by an agency, none of which has or would have 
a significant impact on the environment, but when considered cumulatively would 
meet one or more of the criteria in 6 NYCRR Section 617.7(c).   

 
Section 2. The Agency hereby determines that the Facility will not have 

a significant impact on the environment and the Agency will not require the preparation 
of an environmental impact statement with respect to the Facility.  As a result, the 
Agency has prepared a negative declaration with respect to the Facility. 
 

Section 3. The Executive Director of the Agency is hereby directed to 
file in the Agency's records a negative declaration with respect to the Facility (said 
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negative declaration to be substantially in the form and substantially to the effect of the 
negative declaration attached hereto). 

 
Section 4. This resolution shall take effect immediately. 

 
                   [Remainder of page left blank intentionally] 
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STATE OF NEW YORK ) 
 :  SS.: 
COUNTY OF ONEIDA ) 

I, the undersigned Secretary of the Oneida County Industrial Development 
Agency, DO HEREBY CERTIFY THAT: 

I have compared the foregoing copy of a resolution of the Oneida County 
Industrial Development Agency (the “Agency”) with the original thereof on file in the 
office of the Agency, and the same is a true and correct copy of such resolution and of 
the proceedings of the Agency in connection with such matter. 

 Such resolution was passed at a meeting of the Agency duly convened on March 28, 
2023 at eight a.m., local time, at Rome, New York which the following members were: 
 

Members Present:  
Members Present Webex/Teleconference:  

Member Excused:  

EDGE Staff Present:  
 
EDGE Staff Present Webex/Teleconference:  
 
Others Present:  
 
Others Present Webex/Teleconference:  
 

 
 The question of the adoption of the foregoing resolution was duly put to vote, 
which resulted as follows: 
 

 

 

 

and, therefore, the resolution was declared duly adopted. 
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 I FURTHER CERTIFY that (i) all members of the Agency had due notice of said 
meeting, (ii) the meeting was open for the public to attend and public notice of the date, 
time, location and call-in information for said meeting was duly given, (iii) the meeting in 
all respects was duly held, and (iv) there was a quorum present throughout.. 

 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand as of _____, 2023. 
 
 

_________________________________ 
            Shawna Papale, Secretary 
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Resolution to Increase Value of 
Sales Tax Exemption and Extend 
Period of Agency Appointment 
Horsht, LLC Facility 
 

 
Date: March 28, 2023 

 
At a meeting of the Oneida County Industrial Development Agency (the 

“Agency”) held at 584 Phoenix Drive, Rome, New York 13441 on March 28, 2023, the 
following members of the Agency were: 
 

Members Present:  
 
Members Present Webex/Teleconference:  
 
EDGE Staff Present:  
  
 
Others Present:  
 
 
Others Present Webex/Teleconference:  
 
 
 
After the meeting had been duly called to order, the Chairman announced that 

among the purposes of the meeting was to consider and take action on certain matters 
pertaining to increasing the value and extending the time of previously approved 
financial assistance to Horsht, LLC. 
 

The following resolution was duly moved, seconded, discussed and adopted with 
the following members voting: 

 
Voting Aye Voting Nay 
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RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE AGENCY TO INCREASE THE VALUE OF A 
SALES TAX EXEMPTION, EXTEND THE PERIOD OF THE AGENCY 
APPOINTMENT AND EXECUTE RELATED DOCUMENTS WITH RESPECT TO 
THE HORSHT, LLC FACILITY LOCATED IN THE TOWN OF WHITESTOWN, 
ONEIDA COUNTY. 

 
WHEREAS, by Title 1 of Article 18-A of the General Municipal Law of the State of 

New York, as amended and Chapter 372 of the Laws of 1970 of the State of New York 
(collectively, the “Act”), the Agency was created with the authority and power among 
other things, to assist with the acquisition of certain industrial development projects as 
authorized by the Act; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Company previously requested the Agency’s assistance in 
connection with construction of a 6,000± square foot addition and a 8,500± square foot 
addition to existing buildings together with all site preparation and infrastructure to 
support the same (collectively, the “FIS Improvements”); construction of a 9,600± 
square foot addition to an existing building together with all site preparation and 
infrastructure to support the same (collectively, the “TLC Improvements” and together 
with the FIS Improvements, the “Improvements”) situated on parcels of land measuring 
11.62 acres in the aggregate located at 161 Clear Road, 175 Clear Road and 132 Base 
Road, Town of Whitestown, Oneida County New York (the “Land”) and the acquisition 
and installation of equipment in the Improvements (the “Equipment”), all for the purpose 
of supporting the expansion and growth of Fiber Instrument Sales, Inc. and its 
communication fiber optics and sheet metal bending operations and supporting the 
expansion and growth of The Light Connection, Inc. and its cable and tubing 
manufacturing operations (the Land, the Improvements and the Equipment are referred 
to collectively as the “Facility” and the construction and equipping of the Facility is 
referred to as the “Project”); and 

WHEREAS, on April 22, 2022 the Agency adopted a resolution approving 
financial assistance in support of the Facility, which included exemptions from sales and 
uses taxes in an amount not to exceed $161,664.00; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Company has submitted to the Agency a request to increase the 
value of the exemption to $186,479.00, and to extend the period of the agency 
appointment under which the Company may utilize the exemption to September 30, 
2023 (the “Amended Financial Assistance”) to allow the Company to complete 
construction of the Facility. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Oneida County Industrial 

Development Agency (a majority of the members thereof affirmatively concurring) as 
follows: 

 
Section 1.  The Agency hereby finds and determines: 
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(a) By virtue of the Act, the Agency has been vested with all powers 
necessary and convenient to carry out and effectuate the purposes and provisions of 
the Act and to exercise all powers granted to it under the Act; and 

 
(b) The Facility constitutes a “project”, as such term is defined in the Act; and 
 
(c) The Amended Financial Assistance will promote and maintain the job 

opportunities, health, general prosperity and economic welfare of the citizens of Oneida 
County and the State of New York and improve their standard of living and thereby 
serve the public purposes of the Act; and 

 
(d) The Amended Financial Assistance is reasonably necessary to induce the 

Company to maintain and expand its business operations in the State of New York; and 
 
(e) The SEQRA findings adopted by the Agency on April 22, 2022 

encompassed the actions to be undertaken by this resolution and no changes have 
been made since that time to the proposed action that would create new or increased 
adverse environmental impacts; and 

 
(f) It is desirable and in the public interest for the Agency to approve the 

Amended Financial Assistance. 
 
Section 2.  In consequence of the foregoing, the Agency hereby determines to:  

(i) increase the value of the sales tax exemption to an amount not to exceed 
$186,479.00, (ii) extend the agency appointment to September 30, 2023, and 
(iii) execute and deliver an agency appointment letter, Form ST-60 and related 
documents (the “Amended Sales Tax Documents”) in support of the Project, 
conditioned upon the Company paying the corresponding Agency fee of $1,418.00. 

 
Section 3.  The Agency is hereby authorized to to do all things necessary or 

appropriate for the accomplishment of the Amended Financial Assistance, and all acts 
heretofore taken by the Agency with respect to such Amended Financial Assistance are 
hereby approved, ratified and confirmed. 

 
Section 4.  The form and substance of the Amended Sales Tax Documents (each 

in substantially the forms presented to the Agency and which, prior to the execution and 
delivery thereof, may be redated) are hereby approved. 

 
Section 5. 
 
(a) The Chairman, Vice Chairman, Executive Director, Secretary or any 

member of the Agency are hereby authorized, on behalf of the Agency, to execute and 
deliver the Amended Sales Tax Documents, all in substantially the forms thereof 
presented to or approved by this meeting with such changes, variations, omissions and 
insertions as the Chairman, Vice Chairman, Executive Director, Secretary or any 
member of the Agency shall approve, and such other related documents as may be, in 
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the judgment of the Chairman and Agency Counsel, necessary or appropriate to effect 
the transactions contemplated by this resolution. The execution thereof by the 
Chairman, Vice Chairman, Executive Director or any member of the Agency shall 
constitute conclusive evidence of such approval. 

 
(b) The Chairman, Vice Chairman, Executive Director, Secretary or member 

of the Agency are further hereby authorized, on behalf of the Agency, to designate any 
additional Authorized Representatives of the Agency (as defined in and pursuant to the 
Leaseback Agreement). 

 
Section 6.  The officers, employees and agents of the Agency are hereby 

authorized and directed for and in the name and on behalf of the Agency to do all acts 
and things required or provided for by the provisions of the Amended Sales Tax 
Documents, and to execute and deliver all such additional certificates, instruments and 
documents, pay all such fees, charges and expenses and to do all such further acts and 
things as may be necessary or, in the opinion of the officer, employee or agent acting, 
desirable and proper to effect the purposes of the foregoing resolution and to cause 
compliance by the Agency with all of the terms, covenants and provisions of the 
Amended Sales Tax Documents binding upon the Agency. 

 
Section 7.   This resolution shall take effect immediately. 
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       March 21, 2023 
 
 
David C. Grow, Esq., Chairman 
Oneida County Industrial Development Agency 
584 Phoenix Drive 
Rome, New York 13340 
 
 RE: License Agreement between GLDC/OCIDA and Vincent Holdings, LLC 
  Premises: Building 302 – Brooks Road/March Street, Rome, New York 
 
Dear Mr. Grow: 
 
 As you know, our law firm represents Griffiss Local Development Corporation (“GLDC”).  
 
 The United States of America, acting by and through the Secretary of the Air Force, 
conveyed to the Oneida County Industrial Development Agency (”OCIDA”), by deed 
acknowledged December 11, 2018, and recorded in the Oneida County Clerk’s Office as 
Instrument No. 2020-017045, that certain 1.742-acre parcel of land, together with the building and 
other improvements situate thereon, located on the southwest corner of the Brooks Road/March 
Street intersection, in the City of Rome, County of Oneida, State of New York, commonly known 
as Building 302 (the “Building 302 Property”).  
 
 OCIDA leases the Building 302 Property (together with other premises) to GLDC.  Under 
the said lease, GLDC has the right to acquire all or any portion of the leased premises from OCIDA 
for nominal consideration.  
 
 Vincent Holdings, LLC (“Vincent Holdings”) approached GLDC with a plan to rehabilitate 
the Building 302 Property. GLDC, OCIDA and Vincent Holdings (collectively, the “Parties”) 
entered into a License Agreement with Option to Purchase, dated February 25, 2021 (the “License 
Agreement”), whereunder GLDC and OCIDA afforded Vincent Holdings a license to complete 
certain agreed upon rehabilitation work, whereafter Vincent Holdings may exercise its option to 
purchase the Building 302 Property. The Parties entered into an Amendment to the License 
Agreement, dated June 11, 2021, establishing the “Effective Date” under the License Agreement 
as July 14, 2021. 
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Vincent Holdings commenced work under the License Agreement, and to date has (i) 
completed the asbestos abatement, demolition and cleanup of the interior of the Building 302 
Property; (ii) substantially completed the exterior patching and painting of the Building 302 
Property; (iii) kept the Building 302 Property in a neat, clean and safe condition; (iv) submitted its 
site plan to the City of Rome Planning Board, and are anticipating approval at the next meeting 
and (iv) once the site plan approval is received, Vincent Holdings will have completed its due 
diligence work related to the Building 302 Property and will be prepared to close.  Vincent 
Holdings anticipates its financing will be in order and that it will be prepared to close within the 
next two (2) months.  Therefore, Vincent Holdings is requesting a one (1) month extension of time 
to (i) the License Term (from April 25, 2023 to May 25, 2023) and (ii) exercise the Purchase 
Option (from May 25, 2023 to June 25, 2023 – deadline in which Vincent Holdings must provide 
GLDC with a signed PSA) (the “Extensions”).  
 
 It is anticipated that GLDC’s Board of Directors will adopt a resolution at its next 
scheduled meeting, which is set for March 23, 2023, approving the Extensions.  Once said 
resolution is adopted, GLDC and Vincent Holdings will enter into a Second License Extension 
Addendum. I will present your counsel with the Second License Extension Addendum, for review 
and approval.  I will also provide your counsel with Vincent Holdings’ updated insurance 
certificates, naming GLDC and OCIDA as additional insureds.  
 

It is kindly requested that OCIDA’s Board approve the Extensions and authorize you to 
execute the Second License Extension Addendum, subject to your counsel’s approval hereafter. 
 
 Thank you for your consideration.   
 
       Very truly yours, 
 
       SAUNDERS KAHLER, L.L.P. 
 
MDC: hmg                 By:_______________________________ 
               Michael D. Callan 
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Authorizing Resolution 
Second Extension of GLDC License 
to Vincent Holdings 

 
 

Date: March 28, 2023 
 

At a meeting of the Oneida County Industrial Development Agency (the “Agency”) held 
at 584 Phoenix Drive, Rome, New York 13441 on the 28th day of March 2023, the following 
members of the Agency were: 

 
Members Present:  
 
 
EDGE Staff Present:  

 

Other Attendees:   
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

After the meeting had been duly called to order, the Chairman announced that 
among the purposes of the meeting was to consider and take action on certain matters 
pertaining to consent to the further extension of an existing license agreement from 
Griffiss Local Development Corporation to Vincent Holdings, LLC. 
 

The following resolution was duly moved, seconded, discussed and adopted with 
the following members voting: 

 
Voting Aye Voting Nay 
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RESOLUTION OF THE AGENCY CONSENTING TO THE 
SECOND EXTENSION OF AN EXISTING LICENSE 
AGREEMENT FROM GRIFFISS LOCAL DEVELOPMENT 
CORPORATION TO VINCENT HOLDINGS, LLC AND 
AUTHORIZING THE AGENCY TO EXECUTE RELATED 
DOCUMENTS WITH RESPECT TO BUILDING 302 
LOCATED IN THE GRIFFISS BUSINESS AND 
TECHNOLOGY PARK, CITY OF ROME, ONEIDA COUNTY. 

 
WHEREAS, by Title 1 of Article 18-A of the General Municipal Law of the State of 

New York, as amended and Chapter 372 of the Laws of 1970 of the State of New York 
(collectively, the “Act”), the Agency was created with the authority and power among 
other things, to assist with the acquisition of certain industrial development projects as 
authorized by the Act; and 
 

WHEREAS, Oneida County Industrial Development Agency (the “Agency”) 
leases to Griffiss Local Development Corporation (“GLDC”) a 1.742 acre parcel of land 
located on the southwest corner of the Brooks Road/March Street intersection in the 
City of Rome, together with the building and other improvements located thereon known 
as Building 302 (the “Facility”) pursuant to a lease agreement (the “Agency Lease 
Agreement”); and  

 
 WHEREAS, GLDC previously requested the Agency consent to the license of the 
Facility to Vincent Holdings, LLC (the “Licensee”) to allow the Licensee to perform 
certain rehabilitation work on the Facility, which consent the Agency granted by 
resolution adopted March 26, 2021; and 
 
 WHEREAS, GLDC previously requested the Agency consent to an extension of 
the license for a period of six months, which consent the Agency granted by resoltuion 
adopted October 21, 2022; and 
 
 WHEREAS, GLDC and the Licensee wish to extend the license for an additional 
one month and the time for the Licensee to exercise the option to purchase for an 
additional three months, and GLDC has requested the Agency consent to the same; 
and 
 
 WHEREAS, no public hearing is required to confirm such action as no additional 
financial assistance is requested. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Oneida County Industrial 
Development Agency (a majority of the members thereof affirmatively concurring) as 
follows: 

 
Section 1.  The Agency hereby finds and determines: 
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(a) By virtue of the Act, the Agency has been vested with all powers 
necessary and convenient to carry out and effectuate the purposes and provisions of 
the Act and to exercise all powers granted to it under the Act; and 

 
(b) The Facility constitutes a “project”, as such term is defined in the Act; and 
 
(c) Consenting to the further extension of the license will promote and 

maintain the job opportunities, health, general prosperity and economic welfare of the 
citizens of Oneida County and the State of New York and improve their standard of 
living and thereby serve the public purposes of the Act; and 

 
(d) Consenting to the further extension of the license is reasonably necessary 

to induce GLDC and/or the Licensee to maintain and expand their respective business 
operations in the State of New York; and 

 
(e) It is desirable and in the public interest for the Agency to consent to the 

further extension of the license. 
 

Section 2.  In consequence of the foregoing, the Agency hereby determines to:  
(i) consent to the further extension of the license; (ii) execute the second license 
extension to the extent necessary to acknowledge its consent. 

 
Section 3.  The form and substance of the license extension is hereby approved, 

subject to review and approval by Agency counsel and subject to receipt of current 
insurance certificates. 

 
Section 4. 
 
(a) The Chairman, Vice Chairman, Secretary or any member of the Agency 

are hereby authorized, on behalf of the Agency, to execute and deliver the license 
extension, in substantially the form thereof presented to this meeting or in the form to be 
approved by Agency Counsel, with such changes, variations, omissions and insertions 
as the Chairman, Vice Chairman, Secretary or any member of the Agency shall 
approve, and such other related documents as may be, in the judgment of the Chairman 
and Agency Counsel, necessary or appropriate to effect the transactions contemplated 
by this resolution (hereinafter collectively called the “Closing Documents”).  The 
execution thereof by the Chairman, Vice Chairman, or any member of the Agency shall 
constitute conclusive evidence of such approval. 

 
(b) The Chairman, Vice Chairman, Secretary or member of the Agency are 

further hereby authorized, on behalf of the Agency, to designate any additional 
Authorized Representatives of the Agency (as defined in and pursuant to the Agency 
Lease Agreement). 

 
Section 5.  The officers, employees and agents of the Agency are hereby 

authorized and directed for and in the name and on behalf of the Agency to do all acts 
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and things required or provided for by the provisions of the Closing Documents, and to 
execute and deliver all such additional certificates, instruments and documents, pay all 
such fees, charges and expenses and to do all such further acts and things as may be 
necessary or, in the opinion of the officer, employee or agent acting, desirable and 
proper to effect the purposes of the foregoing resolution and to cause compliance by the 
Agency with all of the terms, covenants and provisions of the Closing Documents 
binding upon the Agency. 

 
Section 6.   This resolution shall take effect immediately. 
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STATE OF NEW YORK ) 
    ) ss.: 
COUNTY OF ONEIDA ) 
 
 

I, the undersigned Secretary of the Oneida County Industrial Development 
Agency (the “Agency”), DO HEREBY CERTIFY: 

 
That I have compared the annexed extract of the minutes of the meeting of the 

Agency, including the resolutions contained therein, held on the 21st day of October 
2022 with the original thereof on file in my office, and that the same is a true and correct 
copy of the proceedings of the Agency and of such resolutions set forth therein and of 
the whole of said original insofar as the same related to the subject matters therein 
referred to. 

 
That the license extension contained in this transcript of proceedings is in 

substantially the form presented to the Agency and/or approved by said meeting. 
 
I FURTHER CERTIFY that (i) all members of the Agency had due notice of said 

meeting, (ii) the meeting was open for the public to attend in person, and minutes of the 
Agency meeting are (or will be) transcribed and posted on the Agency’s website, (iii) the 
meeting in all respects was duly held, and (iv) there was a quorum present throughout. 

 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand as of this ____ day of 

________________ 2023. 
 

ONEIDA COUNTY INDUSTRIAL 
DEVELOPMENT AGENCY 
 
 
By:___________________________________ 
     Shawna M. Papale, Secretary 



Page 1 of 1 
 

                                    
 
 
 
 

Memo to:  Oneida County IDA 
From:  Shawna Papale 
Date:  3/19/23 
RE:  Dart/ RAS 

You will recall as part of the IDA’s annual project review it was brought to the board’s 
attention that Dart Properties/Research Associates of Syracuse was not meeting its 
employment obligation because the Facility is vacant. On June 17, 2022 the members 
determined that if the Company was not able to identify a suitable replacement tenant 
before December 31, 2022 the Agency would terminate the Agency Documents. 

As you know the Company was negotiating a lease with the Rome City School District. 
We have been following up on the status and while a lease has been signed, it requires 
approval from the New York State Education Department before it can be finalized. The 
lease has been submitted for approval, but approval has not yet been confirmed. Because 
we have passed the date by which the Company was to secure a tenant, and this 
approval process is out of the control of the Company, staff would like to recommend 
the following path forward: 

(a) if the School District Sublease is approved, terminate the Agency Documents 
effective on the July 2023 taxable status date 

(b) if the School District Sublease is not approved, extend the period of time for the 
Company to identify a suitable tenant to June 30, 2023 

(c) if the Company identifies another suitable tenant and such tenant is eligible for 
financial assistance from the Agency and the Agency grants its consent, amend and 
restate the Agency Documents to reflect the new project, the new project goals, and the 
new tenant 

(d) if the Company does not identify another suitable tenant before June 30, 2023, 
terminate the Agency Documents effective on the July 2023 taxable status date. 

Anthony J. Picente Jr. 
County Executive 

 

Shawna M. Papale  
Secretary/Executive Director 

 
Timothy Fitzgerald 
Assistant Secretary 

 

 

David C. Grow 
Chairman 

Michael Fitzgerald 
Vice Chairperson 

 
Mary Faith Messenger 

Treasurer 
 

Ferris Betrus, Jr. 
Kirk Hinman 

Eugene Quadraro 
Stephen Zogby 

584 Phoenix Drive,  
Rome, New York 13441-4105 
(315) 338-0393, fax (315) 338-5694 
info@mvedge.org     www.mvedge.org  

mailto:info@mvedge.org
http://www.mvedge.org/
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Resolution to Extend Period of 
Time to Consent to Sublessee 
Dart Properties and Research 
Associates of Syracuse, Inc. 
Facility 
 

 
Date: March 28, 2023 

 
At a meeting of the Oneida County Industrial Development Agency (the 

“Agency”) held at 584 Phoenix Drive, Rome, New York 13441 on March 28, 2023, the 
following members of the Agency were: 
 

Members Present:  
 
Members Present Webex/Teleconference:  
 
EDGE Staff Present:  
  
 
Others Present:  
 
 
Others Present Webex/Teleconference:  
 
 
 
After the meeting had been duly called to order, the Chairman announced that 

among the purposes of the meeting was to consider and take action on certain matters 
pertaining to extending the time to secure a suitable tenant and obtain Agency consent 
(Dart Properties/Research Associates of Syracuse, Inc. Facility). 
 

The following resolution was duly moved, seconded, discussed and adopted with 
the following members voting: 

 
Voting Aye Voting Nay 
 
 
 
 
 
 
David Grow abstained from voting and all discussion 
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RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE AGENCY TO EXTEND THE PERIOD OF 
TIME TO SECURE A SUITABLE TENANT AND OBTAIN AGENCY CONSENT 
AND EXECUTE RELATED DOCUMENTS WITH RESPECT TO THE 
RESEARCH ASSOCIATES OF SYRACUSE, INC. FACILITY LOCATED IN THE 
CITY OF ROME, ONEIDA COUNTY. 

 
WHEREAS, by Title 1 of Article 18-A of the General Municipal Law of the State of 

New York, as amended and Chapter 372 of the Laws of 1970 of the State of New York 
(collectively, the “Act”), the Agency was created with the authority and power among 
other things, to assist with the acquisition of certain industrial development projects as 
authorized by the Act; and 
 

WHEREAS, Michael Baldwin and Diane Baldwin d/b/a Dart Properties (the 
“Company”) and Research Associates of Syracuse, Inc. (the “Sublessee”) previously 
requested the Agency’s assistance in connection with a project (the “Project”) to support 
the growth of and create and retain employment at the Sublessee’s existing facility, a 
7,400± square foot, single-story building (the “Improvements”) situated on a 2.124± acre 
parcel of land located at 111 Dart Circle, Griffiss Business and Technology Park, City of 
Rome, Oneida County, New York (the “Land”) by assisting with the acquisition and 
installation of office furniture and equipment in the Improvements (the “Equipment”), all 
to be used for the purpose of providing cutting-edge Electronic Warfare support to the 
Pentagon and the US intelligence community (the Land, the Improvements and the 
Equipment is referred to collectively as the “Facility”); and 

WHEREAS, the Agency provides financial assistance to the Company and the 
Sublessee in support of the Project consisting of exemptions from real property tax and 
exemptions from sales tax (the “Financial Assistance”), which Financial Assistance the 
subject of a Job Creation and Recapture Agreement dated as of July 1, 2015 (the 
“Recapture Agreement”) by and among the Agency, the Company and the Sublessee; 
and 

WHEREAS, the Agency has an obligation to review on an annual basis whether 
recipients of its financial assistance are meeting their stated project goals and if they are 
not, whether it is appropriate to terminate, reduce, or recapture financial assistance; and 

WHEREAS, during its annual project review the Agency determined the 
Company and the Sublessee are not meeting the conditions of Financial Assistance 
because the Facility is vacant and the Company and the Sublessee are not meeting the 
Employment Obligation (as defined in the Recapture Agreement); and 
 

WHEREAS, on June 17, 2022 the Agency determined if the Company was not 
able to identify a suitable replacement tenant before December 31, 2022 the Agency 
would terminate the Agency Documents; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Company signed a lease in August 2022 with the Rome City 

School District (the “School District Sublease”), however such School District Sublease 
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requires approval from the New York State Education Department before it can be 
finalized and such approval has not yet been confirmed; and 

 
WHEREAS, if the School District Sublease is approved it will not be necessary 

for the Agency to maintain the Agency Documents inasmuch as the School District is 
exempt by its own right; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Agency wishes to extend additional time to the Company to 

allow for the completion of the approvals process, which process is not in the 
Company’s control. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Oneida County Industrial 

Development Agency (a majority of the members thereof affirmatively concurring) as 
follows: 

 
Section 1.  The Agency hereby finds and determines: 
 
(a) By virtue of the Act, the Agency has been vested with all powers 

necessary and convenient to carry out and effectuate the purposes and provisions of 
the Act and to exercise all powers granted to it under the Act; and 

 
(b) The Facility constitutes a “project”, as such term is defined in the Act; and 
 
(c) Extending the time for the Company to identify a suitable tenant will 

promote and maintain the job opportunities, health, general prosperity and economic 
welfare of the citizens of Oneida County and the State of New York and improve their 
standard of living and thereby serve the public purposes of the Act; and 

 
(d) Extending the time for the Company to identify a suitable tenant is 

reasonably necessary to induce the Company to maintain and expand its business 
operations in the State of New York; and 

 
(e) It is desirable and in the public interest for the Agency to extend the time 

for the Company to identify a suitable tenant. 
 
Section 2.  In consequence of the foregoing, the Agency hereby determines to:  
 
(a) if the School District Sublease is approved, terminate the Agency Documents 

effective on the July 2023 taxable status date; and 
 
(b) if the School District Sublease is not approved, extend the period of time for 

the Company to identify a suitable tenant to June 30, 2023; and 
 
(c) if the Company identifies another suitable tenant and such tenant is eligible 

for financial assistance from the Agency and the Agency grants its consent, amend and 
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restate the Agency Documents to reflect the new project, the new project goals, and the 
new tenant; and 

 
(d) if the Company does not identify another suitable tenant before June 30, 

2023, terminate the Agency Documents effective on the July 2023 taxable status date. 
 
Section 3.  The Agency is hereby authorized to to do all things necessary or 

appropriate for the accomplishment of the action described in this resolution, and all 
acts heretofore taken by the Agency with respect to such extension of time are hereby 
approved, ratified and confirmed. 

 
Section 4.  The officers, employees and agents of the Agency are hereby 

authorized and directed for and in the name and on behalf of the Agency to do all acts 
and things required or provided for to accomplish the actions contemplated herein, and 
to execute and deliver all such additional certificates, instruments and documents, pay 
all such fees, charges and expenses and to do all such further acts and things as may 
be necessary or, in the opinion of the officer, employee or agent acting, desirable and 
proper to effect the purposes of the foregoing resolution and to cause compliance by the 
Agency with all of the terms, covenants and provisions of the Agency Documents 
binding upon the Agency. 

 
Section 5.   This resolution shall take effect immediately. 
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Memo To: Dave Grow, OCIDA Chairman 

From:  Steven J. DiMeo, President Mohawk Valley EDGE  

CC:  Shawna Papale, OCIDA Executive Director 

Date: March 21, 2023 

Re: Marcy Nanocenter – FAST NY Application – OCIDA as Project Sponsor 

New York State Empire State Development (ESD) has created the FAST NY Program to identify  
sites, secure permitting approvals and advance engineering and infrastructure improvements, to 
create shovel ready sites for certain targeted industries (semiconductor and semiconductor 
supply chain companies, clean technology, other high technology industries, advanced 
manufacturing, and distribution and logistics..  The program has $200 million in authorized 
funding in last year’s budget and recently promulgated regulations. ESD has opened the 
application portal and is now accepting applications from eligible applicants.     

MV EDGE has submitted an intent to apply for the Marcy Nanocenter site for the improvement 
of several critical path items for the remaining parcel of land “Parcel 2.” ESD notified EDGE that 
its intent to apply was approved and invited EDGE to submit a full application consistent with 
program eligibility requirements.   

Eligible applicants include the following entities: 

• Municipalities - a municipal subdivision that is a county, city, town, or village in New York 
State  

• Municipally designated non-profit economic development organizations - New York 
State-based nonprofit economic development corporations designated to act on the 
behalf of the municipality in which the site is located 

• Municipally designated Local Development Corporation/Industrial Development Agency 
– New York State-based nonprofit industrial development agencies and authorities 
designated to act on the behalf of the municipality in which the site is located 

EDGE consulted with ESD to determine which of the applicant criteria should it apply under. We 
would prefer to preserve the County as the applicant for the Griffiss Triangle site (do not believe 
that ESD would likely approve two applications from a single municipality) and it is not clear that 
EDGE fits within the municipally designated economic development category without additional 
consultation and confirmation from ESD on whether we need to be designated to act on the 
behalf of the Town of Marcy or Oneida County before finalizing an application. 

ESD recommended that the Marcy Nanocenter application be submitted through the IDA as 

http://www/


Industrial Development Agencies are eligible applicants and this eliminates the need to secure a 
reading from ESD on whether EDGE would fit under the municipally designated economic 
development corporation provision.  

In addition, the OCIDA’s consent of this request would allow EDGE to reduce the amount of 
required documentation and therefore expedite the application review and decision timeframe. 
Applications are being reviewed on a rolling application basis. It is anticipated the FAST NY 
Program will be oversubscribed so there is a sense of urgency in filing a complete application 
that can be considered by ESD.    

The funding request to ESD currently stands at roughly $18.5 M; but we are in the process of 
finalizing the project budget for the application with Ramboll Engineering and making provisions 
for relocation of the Overhead electric distribution line that is located along the discontinued 
Edic Road corridor (would be relocated in an underground duct bank along the County’s ROW  
along the Marcy SUNY Parkway.  It is expected that budget number may increase slightly 
(probably in the $18.5 M to $19.5 M) range. 

 
MV EDGE seeks FAST NY funding to support the following activities: 

1. Site Development and Grading of Parcel #2. Ramboll has prepared the rough site grading 
plan and cost estimate for the project.  

2. Relocation of Over Head Electric Line by National Grid along discontinued Edic Road and 
Edic Road Right of Way. National Grid will place in underground duct bank along Marcy SUNY 
Parkway. 

3. Site Advancement at EDGE’s Farmer Parcel. This includes clearing and grubbing, cut/fill, 
stormwater management plan improvements, and extension of utilities to site; gas, UG electric 
duct bank, water and sewer improvements. 

4. Engineering Design, Geotechnical, Surveying, construction inspections. 

It is requested that OCIDA agree to be the application sponsor on behalf of Mohawk Valley 
EDGE for the Marcy Nanocenter site. 

 

 



To: OCIDA

From: Staff 

Re: Ratify and Confirm PAAA Documents 

The following PAAA Documents require your ratification and confirmation: 

The following documents can be reviewed at 

http://www.oneidacountyida.org/ 

 OCIDA By-Laws

 OCIDA Procurement Policy

 Travel and Discretionary Funds Policy

 Audit Committee Charter

 Governance Committee Charter

 Board Member Compensation, Reimbursement and Attendance 
Policy

 Statement of Duties and Responsibilities

 Finance Committee Charter

 Whistleblower Policy

 Real Policy Acquisition Guidelines

 Property Disposition Guidelines

 Code of Ethics

 Defense and Indemnification Policy

 Investment and Deposit Policy

 Conflict of Interest and Confidentiality Policy 

http://www.oneidacountyida.org/OCLDC/index.asp?type=MATERIALS,_POLICIES,_DOCUMENTS


 
 
Authority Mission Statement and Performance Measurements 2023 

Name of Public Authority: Oneida County Industrial Development Agency 

Public Authority's Mission Statement: 

Assist in the enhancement and diversity of the economy of Oneida County by acting in 
support of projects in Oneida County that create and/or retain jobs and promote private 
sector investment utilizing the statutory powers of the Agency as set forth under the 
provisions of the of the laws of the State of New York. 

 
 
Date Adopted: May 22, 2008, Reaffirmed by Board action & vote on March 28, 2023 

 
 
List of Performance Goals (in bold) (If additional space is needed, please attach): 

 
OCIDA continues to assist local businesses in economic activity. Ensure private 
investment and retention and/ or creation of employment. 

 

2022 Performances: 
 

- Approved Sale/Leaseback, PILOT Agreements and/or sales & mortgage 
recording tax exemptions for (project investment, retained jobs, created jobs): 

- 1,343.5 retained jobs 
- 37.4 new jobs 
- $ 123,839,301 investment 

o Indium Corporation of America 
o B240 Phase 3- Air City Lofts 
o Delta Luxury Townhomes 
o McCraith Beverage 
o Horst, LLC (Fiber Instrument Sales and The Light Connection) 
o Central Utica Building,  LLC 
o Pivot Solar NY 4 
o GSPP Hillsboro & Dunbar LLC (Verona) 
o SSC Kirkland LLC Community Solar 
o SG Oneida PV Solar(Trenton) 

 
 
Establish a solid foundation for continued job growth and economic gains for the 

region. IDA supports regional efforts to ensure shovel sites meet the decision 

needs of companies looking to invest in the Mohawk Valley. 



 

 

2022 Performances: 
 

- OCIDA provided continued support in the redevelopment of the former Griffiss 
Air Force Base into the thriving Griffiss Business & Technology Park. This effort 
continues with the transfer of property from Federal ownership. Received report 
from GLDC detailing development progress. 

- OCIDA supports Rome Community Brownfield’s Restoration Corporation in its 
redevelopment of the former Rome Cable site. 

- OCIDA supports Mohawk Valley EDGE in the efforts to move forward the 
transformational project of Marcy Nanocenter at SUNY Polytechnic Institute. 

 
 
Carry out the required administrative, operational and monitoring functions of the 
Agency.  Comply with all financial and NYS requirements. 

 
2022 Performances: 

 
 

- Completed & filed 2021 Annual Financial Reports 
 

Additional questions: 
 

1. Have the board members acknowledged that they have read and understood the mission 
of the public authority? The OCIDA has reviewed the mission statement as well as 

the performance of 2022 and have adopted both by resolution on March 28, 2023 
 

2. Who has the power to appoint the management of the public authority? The seven 
members Board of Directors annually review and adopt a budget which includes 
a fee for administrative services. As directed by the Agency Members, those 
services are performed by the staff of Mohawk Valley EDGE. OCIDA designates 
the services it receives in the annual contract that it reviews, approves and 
executes. Further, the OCIDA Board of Directors selects and appoints individually 
the Executive Director who it charges to perform duties and activities on behalf of 
the Board. 

 

3. If the Board appoints management, do you have a policy you follow when appointing the 
management of the public authority? The agency members have made a 
determination through annual consideration of the staff services agreement 
between OCIDA and Mohawk Valley EDGE to contractually engage the 
professionals of EDGE to provide services. Mohawk Valley EDGE is a staff of 
economic development professionals that the IDA would otherwise have to 
directly retain through excess expenses i.e. it would have to retain an individual 
Executive Director, CFO and other economic development expertise in carrying 
out its duties and functions. 



 

4. Briefly describe the role of the Board and the role of management in the implementation 
of the mission. The Mission of the Oneida County Industrial Development Agency 
(OCIDA) was developed by the Board of Directors through much consideration 
and discussion. The IDA board is an independent body of members who all take 
their role and responsibility as Agency members very seriously. They consider 
the facts and implications when making determinations. They turn to the 
Executive Director to provide insight and recommendations, however all final 
decisions reside with the voting members of the Agency. 

 
5. Has the Board acknowledged that they have read and understood the responses to each 

of these questions? All members participated in the drafting, presentation for 
discussion, and approval of these responses. 
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* Project Name * Address Line 1 * State STE * Local STE County RPTE Local RPTE School RPTE

Mortgage 

RTE

Total 

Exemptions 

County PILOT 

Paid

Local PILOT 

Paid

School District 

PILOT Paid

* # of 

FTEs 
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IDA 

status

* Original 

estimate 

of jobs to 

be 

created

* Original 

estimate 

of jobs to 

be 

retained

* Current 

# of FTEs

* # of FTE 

construction 

jobs during 

the fiscal 

year

Not meeting 80% minimum

126 Business Park LLC 2019 126 Business Park Drive 0 4 0 54  Create 4 BF EOLY 3, Ret 48. PILOT in Adjusters report
63 Wurz Ave., LLC 53-63 Wurz Ave. 4,927.51     10,206.17      5,069.84          20,203.52       3,063.57    6,599.24     3,097.57          120 4 120 124 transfer 5 exist from ERL to facility by EOLY 1; create 4 FTE B4EOLY 3, and R 115 in OC
99 Otis 99 Otis Street 42,448.95   83,883.73      141,915.87      268,248.55     2,444.52    4,919.24     8,191.24          25 10 25 64 Ret 25, create 10 B4LY 3; create +10 B4LY 10,-NYSTEC
Adjusters International 126 Business Park Drive 36,388.17   74,338.00      72,565.69        183,291.86     20,809.24  42,804.25   41,871.82        14 5 0 19 Retain 19 thru March 31, 2023
Alder Creek Beverage, LLC 12044 State Route 12 49,927.35   7,421.68        118,234.28      175,583.31     16,645.78  8,103.75     78,034.63        44 10 44 49 Create 10 B4 LY 3; retain 44
American Alloy Steel 650 Harbor Way 25,215.00   63,292.00      83,757.00        172,264.00     20,992.00  41,481.00   69,728.00        23 0 23 36
B240 LLC 1371 Floyd Avenue 92,691.19   183,167.85    306,431.46      582,290.50     0 47 0 15 Create 47 by LY 3
B240 LLC Phase 2 129 & 143 Air City Blvd. 18,583.00    22,068.00    4,761.00     9,408.00        15,740.00        70,560.00       0 34.5 0 1 Creat 34.5
B240 LLC, Phase 3 109 and 169 Air City Blvd. 204,754.00  243,146.00  129,420 577,320.00     0 2 0 0 2 from application. No jobs committed
Baggs Square Partners, LLC 310 Broad Street 28,600.84   59,239.84      58,853.83        146,694.51     0 1 0 0 No jobs committed
Bonide 6301 Sutliff Road 7,217.00     3,010.00        23,345.00        33,572.00       4,811.00    2,006.00     23,345.00        0 15 18 253 Create should have been 4, Retain should have been 113. PILOT done 12/31/22
Booz Allen Hamilton Inc. 99 Otis Street 158 60 158 234 Create 60 B4EOLY 3, Ret 158
Brooklyn Brewery 50 Campion Road 7,883.09     16,204.53      15,825.37        39,912.99       5,254.87    10,801.94   10,549.19        0 6 0 6 Create 6 B4EOLY 3
Burrstone Energy 1656 Champlin Avenue 52,822.30   21,678.09      196,440.56      270,940.95     7,930.85    3,206.00     26,170.71        0 2 0 2.5
Cardinal Griffiss Realty, LLC-Buildout 153 Brooks Road 26,357.90   52,086.07      88,120.07        166,564.04     19,216.15  38,669.64   64,390.52        135 0 135 130
Champion Home Builders Co. Rte 12 & 20 75 0 75 168
Cold Point Corporation 510 Henry Street 930.09         1,104.48      25,702.15   51,721.74      86,124.15        165,582.61     12,544.98  25,244.89   42,036.39        37 15 37 53
Crane-Ballou LLC 316 Broad Street 9,195.57     19,045.43      18,922.32        47,163.32       0 0 0 8
Cree. Inc. 5737 Edic Rd. 479,306.98  569,177.03  755,495.21 98,629.80      2,768,562.05   4,671,171.07  57,153.95  97,113.14   211,356.27      0 614 0 352 250
Deployed Resources, LLC 162 McPike Rd. 22,982.40   46,248.65      77,010.66        146,241.71     2,598.25    5,228.59     8,706.36          30 16 30 89
ECR International, Inc. 2201 Dwyer Ave. 26,645.42   57,299.32      56,766.97        140,711.71     18,289.69  39,531.75   39,491.01        152 3 0 113 Create 3 B4EOLY 3 and Retain 152 
East Coast Olive Oil One Olive Grove Street 108,611.00 216,345.00    360,245.00      685,201.00     72,443.00  144,230.00 240,283.00      132 20 132 170
Eastern Star Home 8290 State Route 69 154 1 154 109
Engler Electric Inc.-Golden Prop. 1020 Erie St. 1,171.21      1,390.80      2,562.01         35 12 35 36
Family Dollar Services, Inc. 640 Perimeter Road 511,574.47 1,010,926.67 1,710,304.78   3,232,805.92  ######### 479,171.02 797,888.85      350 0 350 357
GLDC Alion 778 775 Daedalian Drive 11,268.62   22,268.01      37,673.39        71,210.02       5,588.22    11,245.46   55 15 55 51 Create 15, and retain 55 B4EOLY 3
GLDC Building 240 0 0 0 0
GLDC Building 770-774 584 Phoenix Drive 12,346.48   24,397.98      41,276.91        78,021.37       8,764.19    18,298.49   60 11 60 43
GLDC Building 776-778 584 Phoenix Drive 12,274.27   24,255.29      41,035.50        77,565.06       6,137.14    12,127.65   139 0 139 51
GLDC Building 780 584 Phoenix Drive 1,348.21     2,664.21        3,380.51          8,519.77         556.95       1,332.12     6 0 6 23
GLDC Building 796-798 584 Phoenix Drive 14,190.53   28,042.02      47,441.95        89,674.50       10,642.90  21,031.51   130 15 130 47
GLDC Facility XIII 584 Phoenix Drive 0 0 0
GLDC Master Lease 584 Phoenix Drive 0 0 0
GLDC XV (Parcel F6B-1b) Griffiss 0 0 0
GLDC XVII (Parcels F6B-6/7/10C-2/3+ F11B) Griffiss 0 0 0
GSPP 4575 State Route 69 4575 State Route 69 40,552.04   36,751.17      159,606.27      236,909.48     8,729.73    7,911.50     34,358.77        0 0 0
GUSC Co-Generation Facility 410 Phoenix Drive 16 2 16 19
Goodrich 104 Otis Street 58,502.69   115,607.67    187,193.25      361,303.61     51,482.37  101,734.75 164,730.06      240 5 240 293
Griffiss Surgery Center 105 Dart Circle 20 11 11 47
Gutchess Vernon 6395 and 6405 Skinner Rd 8,219.53     969.11           27,668.41        36,857.05       2,740.39    322.92        9,222.80          12 8 12 31
H.J. Brandeles Corporation 8101 Halsey Road 5,082.83     2,124.83        12,988.09        20,195.75       45 5 45 47 Create 5 and Retain 45 B4EOLY 3
Hale's Bus Garage, LLC 37 Kirkland Avenue 11,471.62   7,847.28        47,024.06        66,342.96       6,628.67    33,225.48        29 13 29 35 Create 13, retain 29 B4EOLY 3
Hangar Road Rome, LLC 184 Brooks Rd. 7,286.89     14,399.69      24,090.02        45,776.60       15,747.57   13,169.47        90 22 90 91 Create 22, retain 90 B4EOLY 3
Housing Visions/Canal Village LLC 1201 East Fayette St 7,274.08     14,638.00      24,374.38        46,286.46       2,113.68    4,253.48     6,612.04          0 1.5 0 2
Indium Corporation 5836 Success Drive 15,797.91   20,577.00      52,475.40        88,850.31       10,531.94  13,718.00   34,983.60        12 12 12 142
JGV-Alfred-Vicks 123 Dry Road 20,340.68   8,480.39        65,800.69        94,621.76       4,034.25    1,547.73     12,257.88        123 0 114 76 Retain 79 at 5166 CommDr and 35 at facility
Kris Tech Wire 2018 80 Otis Street 62,127.13   122,769.95    207,704.52      392,601.60     12,077.91  24,304.98   30,103.79        58 10 58 130
LT Group LLC/ New Hartford Office 6007 Fair Lakes Road 21,143.60   8,677.26        89,859.38        119,680.24     21,143.60  8,677.26     89,859.38        0 10 0 11
Lithia Real Estate, Inc. 5712 Horatio St. 90 12 90 0 Terminated

MGS Manufacturing 2021 Exp. 122 Otis 0 0 0 0
MGS Manufacturing, Inc. 122 Otis Street 20,131.38   40,511.39      67,457.30        128,100.07     8,217.81    16,537.12   26,372.45        45 3 45 47 Create 3 and retain 45 B4EOLY 3
Marcy Nano Cree PIF 5737 Edic Rd. 0 0 0 0
Marcy Nano Electric Substation 5815 SUNY-Marcy Pkwy 3,571.53     466.26           12,876.59        16,914.38       0 0 0 0
Matt Brewing Co., Inc. 814 Edward Street 44,624.74   95,071.16      95,694.71        235,390.61     33,853.88  72,924.69   71,421.31        114 0 114 114
McCraith-STD 20 Burrstone Road 25,026.75   30,707.96      77,703.39        133,438.10     19,512.18  24,898.42   66,937.63        93 14 93 107 Create 14, Retain 93
Med-Care Administrators, LLC 9360 River Road 3,732.14     487.23           13,755.00        17,974.37       2,488.09    324.82        9,170.00          43 17 43 33 maintain 60 or 90% of all employees in Oneida County
Mohawk ADK RR (Genesee Valley Trans) 1 Mill St. Suite 101 18 0 18 11 NO JOB AGREEMENT
Mohawk Valley Community College 1101 Sherman Drive 13 3 13 8.5
Nortek Powder Coating, LLC-2016 Facility 5900 Success Drive 7,154.04     9,318.23        31,326.01        47,798.28       4,298.70    5,599.04     20,885.05        14 4 14 18 Create 4, retain 14 B4Y 7
Northland Communications 9560 Main St. 11,049.06   4,293.42        37,533.32        52,875.80       10,049.25  3,904.92     28,149.99        68 3 68 82
One-Pull Solutions Wire and Cable 5880 Success/7500 CPDr 4,183.59     5,449.83        13,802.61        23,436.03       1,394.53    1,816.61     9,200.03          0 0 0 13
Orgill, Inc. 1 Atlas Drive 412,225.43 814,602.19    1,347,659.03   2,574,486.65  74.36         150.79        236.13             0 225 0 273
Oriskany MFG Tech/Broad St Warehouse 2 Wurz Avenue 12,990.00   18,292.22      44,443.20        75,725.42       10,392.00  15,062.99   35,552.16        80 0 80 88
Owl Wire & Cable, Inc. (Rome) 3127 Seneca Turnpike 5,739.58     11,342.03      19,064.98        36,146.59       4,357.41    8,619.94     20,464.96        46 0 46 54
Park Outdoor Advertising of NY Inc. 2429 Chenango Road 2,601.03     5,351.94        5,221.26          13,174.23       16 1 16 17
Polce Management Group, LLC 401 Phoenix Dr. 4,767.09     9,593.06        16,229.71        30,589.86       2,082.28    4,190.29     10,309.42        22.5 5 22.5 32.5
Renmatix, Inc 679 Ellsworth Road 34,979.42   70,390.84      117,210.90      222,581.16     5,494.44    11,056.75   18,589.47        0 13 0 8 Through 6/30/2022, any violation in excess of 8 current jobs waived

Research Associates of Syracuse 111 Dart Circle 6,434.80     12,949.08      21,296.02        40,679.90       4,289.87    8,632.72     14,197.35        15 10 15 0 Waiver ended Jan 1 2023
Runnings Supply/JR&R II 5865 Success Drive 35,156.05   46,632.08      117,802.77      199,590.90     14,971.95  19,859.25   44,744.97        16 2 16 52
SQ1 Holdings 2021 170 Base Rd. 24 6 24 17 Maintain 17 at 2017 Project, create 6 B4EOLY 8
SQ1 Holdings, LLC 170 Base Road 1,804.17     752.21           5,712.52          8,268.90         434.02       166.51        1,251.99          11 6 11 17 Create 6 and maintain 11
Special Metals Corporation 4317 Middle Settlement Rd. 90,527.33   37,152.10      384,737.17      512,416.60     26,752.15  10,621.73   112,950.00      323 2 323 351
Suit-Kote Corporation 191 Dry Road 5,031.28     2,098.40        16,277.80        23,407.48       4,055.26    1,691.34     16,544.80        13 3 13 40
The Hartford 301 Woods Park Drive 86,170.15   33,943.02      357,646.32      477,759.49     86,170.15  33,943.02   357,646.32      600 0 500 769 Requirement to report jobs expired Feb 28, 2023
The Indium Corporation of America 34 Robinson Rd 10,843.77   8,159.54        41,089.00        60,092.31       5,870.14    3,603.45     23,445.62        636 0 636 636
The Sloan Family Trust 8089 Halsey Road 17,894.55   7,463.30        63,177.66        88,535.51       15,729.45  6,560.30     59,355.66        61 8 61 82
Universal Photonics (JH Rhodes) 10 Ward St 12,067.00   1,343.00        38,358.00        51,768.00       6,033.00    672.00        19,179.00        55 20 55 54 Create 20, retain 55
Utica First Insurance Company 5981 Airport Road 12,070.17   5,407.53        39,119.55        56,597.25       8,046.78    3,605.02     26,079.70        80 5 80 131
Varflex Corporation 5780 Success Drive 18 5 18 23 See below..Need to retain 23 here
Varflex Corporation 2020 5780 Success Drive 12,492.10   14,483.74      19,138.07        46,113.91       5,778.26    7,525.74     14,949.15        0 5 0 5 Create 5 B4EOLY 10 and retain 23 at the 2018 facility. 28 total for 2022
West Dacks, LLC/Lodging Kit Co 13492 State Route 12 7,605.08     10,482.51      18,009.79        36,097.38       4,042.57    5,267.27     9,297.46          23 3 23 31
Woodhaven Ventures 1130 Floyd Ave. 30,504.00    36,224.00    66,729.00       0 0 0 1
Quiet Meadows Solar Farm 1 NEW 4330 Stoney Brook Dr. 24,660.46   5,842.79        101,927.65      132,430.90     5,610.32    863.47        21,526.21        0 0 0 0
Quiet Meadows Solar Farm 2 NEW 4426 Sholtz Rd. 34,751.89   5,436.21        125,562.06      165,750.16     7,264.00    809.84        26,926.16        0 0 0 0
GSPP 7024 Fox Rd. Solar NEW 7024 Fox Rd. 26,201.00        0 0 0 0
GSPP Hillsboro & Dunbar Solar NEW Hillsboro & Dunbar Rds. 91,421.31        91,421.31       9,947.00          0 0 0 0
Camden Renewables Solar NEW 1751 NYS Rt. 69 0 0 0 0
Matt Brewing Co., Inc. NEW 811 Edward St. 23,582.60    28,004.34    51,586.94       0 20 0 5 Convert 20 PT leasedemp to Co. emp no later than exempt year 15 (1/1/ 2024)
Parco Properties, Inc. NEW 23 Garden St. 40,545.00      103,461.00      144,006.00     40,545.00   103,461.00      168 17 168 176 Create 17 B4EOLY 3, retain 168
Delta Luxury Townhomes NEW Liam Lane(48 Addresses) 42,255.00    50,178.00    70,500   162,933.00     0 0 0 0 25
Central Utica Building NEW 601 State Street 39,135.00    46,423.00    85,558.00       147 15 147 0 146.5 and 14.5
Horsht - FIS & TLC NEW 161/ 175 Clear/132 Base 58,305.68    69,238.01    127,543.69     336 15 336 348 Create 15 B4EOLY 3, retain 336, retain 394 in NYS as a result of project
McCraith Beverages, Inc.-STDn NEW 20 Burrstone Rd. 31,662.09    37,598.73    69,260.82       128 10 128 21 Create 10 B4EOLY 3, retain 128, retain 107 at earlier project
Pivot Solar NY 4 NEW 5718 Tilden Hill Rd. 22,208   22,208.00       0 0 0 0
Indium WPD-ICA Holdings NEW 301 Woods Park Dr. 97 0 97 97 Company has 737 total employees. 97 above earlier agreement for 636 retained.
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